
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

THURSDAY 7TH MARCH, 2013 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Anthony Finn (Chairman) 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Joan Scannell (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors 
 

Geof Cooke 
Brian Gordon 
John Marshall 
 

Arjun Mittra 
Alison Moore 
Hugh Rayner 
 

Alan Schneiderman 
Reuben Thompstone 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Andrew Strongolou 
Ross Houston 
 

Barry Rawlings 
Rowan Quigley Turner 
 

  
 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Aysen Giritli – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Andrew Charlwood 020 8359 2014 

andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk 
 

Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DIRECTORATE 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  
 

 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Interests  
 

a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Non Pecuniary 
Interests 

b) Whipping Arrangements (in accordance with Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17) 

 

4.   Public Question Time (If any)  
 

 

5.   Members' Items (submitted in accordance with Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rule 9) (If any)  
 

 

 Performance  
 

 

6.   Quarter 3 2012/13 Financial and Corporate Performance  
 

1 - 56 

7.   Adoption Service Performance  
 

57 - 68 

 One Barnet  
 

 

8.   One Barnet Programme Highlight Report  
 

69 - 86 

9.   Initiatives to Contribute to the Safer Communities Strategy  
 

87 - 94 

 Work Programme  
 

 

10.   Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Forward Work Programme  
 

95 - 102 

11.   Any Other Items the Chairman Decides are Urgent  
 

 

 



 
    

 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Andrew 
Charlwood 020 8359 2014 andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties 
who have a text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our 
Committee Rooms also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Budget and Performance Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 7 March 2013 

Subject Quarter 3 2012/13 Financial and 
Corporate Performance  

Report of Scrutiny Office / Corporate 

Performance 

Summary This report presents information for financial and 
Corporate Plan performance for quarter three 
2012/13.  

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected 

Key Decision 

All 

N/A 

Reason for urgency / exemption    
from call-in  

n/A 

Function of 

 
Enclosures 

Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Annex A: Quarter 3 Monitoring 2012/13, Report to 
Cabinet Resources Committee, 25 February 2013  

Contact for Further Information: Contact for further information:  
Andrew Charlwood: � 020 8359 2014, 
andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk  
 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM 6

1



 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That the Committee consider the Quarter 3 Monitoring Report for 2012/13 

(as set out in Annex A) and make comments and recommendations as 
appropriate.  

 
1.2 That the Committee consider the Quarter 3 Corporate Performance 

Indicators for 2012/13 (as referred to in the Background Information 
section of the report) and make comments and recommendations as 
appropriate. 

 
2 RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Annual Council meeting 19 May 2009 – agreed the new scrutiny 

arrangements, which includes the reporting of Corporate Plan performance 
measures to this Committee.  

 
 
3.1 COPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 This report presents the latest available information for all finance and 

performance indicators in relation to the three Corporate Priorities in the 
Corporate Plan 2012-13 which are: 

 

• Better services with less money 

• Sharing opportunities, sharing responsibilities 

• A successful London Suburb 
 
 
4.      RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Review of finance and performance issues by this Committee should 

contribute to performance improvement, and therefore mitigate the risk of non-
improvement and failure to meet Corporate Plan performance targets.  

 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 As set out in the equalities section in section 5 of the Cabinet Resources 

Committee (CRC) report contained in Annex A.  
 

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 As set out in the use of resources issues raised in section 6 of the CRC report 

contained in Annex A. 
 
 

2



 

7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 As set out in the legal issues raised in section 7 of the CRC report contained in 

annex A. 
 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 
 Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The scope of Overview and Scrutiny Committees are contained within Part 2, 

Article 6 of the Constitution;  
 
8.2 Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution). The 

Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee has, amongst 
other duties, responsibility for scrutinising the overall performance, 
effectiveness and value for money of Council services, including the planning, 
implementation and outcomes of all corporate improvement strategies 

 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 

Financial Performance  
 
9.1 Annex A of this report contains the Quarter 3 Monitoring 2012/13 report which 

was considered by the Cabinet Resources Committee on 25 February 2013. It 
contains information on revenue, capital, performance and projects. 

 
Corporate Performance  

 
9.2  The Corporate Plan for 2012/13 sets out the Council’s direction and strategy.  

Every service undertakes a range of activities to deliver these priorities, 
ensuring that the Council provide effective, efficient, and value for money 
services to residents.  The Council measure and publish progress against the 
Corporate Plan quarterly.  This information is available via the Council’s 
website.  In accordance with current practice, Quarter 3 Performance data has 
been circulated to Committee Members via e-mail.  Committee Members have 
been requested to highlight any areas of concern and refer these to the 
Chairman who will request a written response to the issue(s) raised.  Where 
the Chairman considers it appropriate, Cabinet Members and/or officers will be 
invited to attend the Committee meeting to respond to specific performance 
issues.  The Committee can request in-depth performance reports on specific 
performance issues to be presented to future meetings if they consider this 
appropriate. 

 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 Quarter 3 Corporate Performance: 

http://www.barnet.gov.uk/info/725/corporate_plan_and_performance/270/corp
orate_plan_and_performance 

3



4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Annex A 
 
 

 

Meeting Cabinet Resources Committee 

Date 25 February 2013 

Subject Quarter 3 Monitoring 2012/13 

Report of Cabinet Member for Resources and 
Performance 

Summary To consider the Quarter 3 Monitoring 2012/13 report and 
instruct officers to take appropriate action. 

Officer Contributors Maria G. Christofi – Assistant Director, Financial Services  
Catherine Peters – Head of Finance, Closing & Monitoring 
Antony Russell – Finance Manager, Closing & Monitoring 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected Not applicable 

Enclosures 
Appendix A – Performance Report 
Appendix B – Revenue Monitoring by Directorate 
Appendix C – Capital Programme Adjustments 
Appendix D – Capital Monitoring Analysis 
Appendix E – Corporate Risk Register 
Appendix F – One Barnet Programme 
Appendix G – Virements 

For decision by Cabinet Resources Committee 

Function of Executive 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

Not applicable 

Contact for further information:  Catherine Peters, Head of Finance, Closing & Monitoring,                                                                     
.                                                  020 8359 7142 

 
 
 
 
 

5



 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That Directors take appropriate action to ensure costs are kept within budget and 

income targets are met. (Paragraph 9.1.2) 
 
1.2 That Directors take appropriate action to improve performance against those 

corporate performance, Human Resources (HR), project, and risk measures where 
quarter one performance remains a challenge (Sections 9.3, 9.10, and Appendix A). 

 
1.3 That a request for an ongoing virement of £0.450m within central expenses from 

contingency to Insurance be approved. (Paragraph 9.4.1) 
 
1.4 That the Agency Costs for the first quarter be noted. (Paragraph 9.6.1) 
 
1.5 That the write off of income debts under £5,000 with a total value of £0.304m 

approved under the Chief Finance Officer’s authority be noted. (Paragraph 9.7.1) 
  
1.6 That Directors ensure that those capital projects in their services are managed 

closely to ensure they are delivered within budget and in accordance with the 
agreed timeframe. (Paragraph 9.8.1) 

 
1.7 That the proposed 2012/13 capital additions/deletions totalling £9.281m and 

slippage of £54.308m as set out in Table 4 (Paragraph 9.9.1) and Appendix C and 
the related funding implications summarised in Table 5 (Paragraph 9.10.1) be 
approved. 

 
1.8 That the Corporate Risk Register at Appendix E be noted. 
 
1.9      The One Barnet Programme (Paragraph 9.12 and Appendix F) be noted. 
 
1.10 That a request for a one off virement of £1.303m to realign the Insurance budgets 

from central expenses to services be approved (Paragraph 9.5.1 and Appendix G) 
 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Council, 6 March 2012 (Decision item 4.1.1) – approved the Council Budget and Council 

Tax 2012/2013. 
 
2.2 Cabinet Resources Committee, 20 June 2012 (Decision item 9) – approved the Outturn 

Report 2011/12. 
 
2.3 Cabinet Resources Committee, 18 October 2012 (Decision item 12) – approved the 

Quarter 1 Monitoring  2012/13. 
 
2.4 Cabinet Resources Committee, 17 December 2012 (Decision item 5) – approved the 

Quarter 2 Monitoring  2012/13. 
 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Robust budget and performance monitoring are essential to ensuring that there are 

adequate and appropriately directed resources to support delivery and achievement of 
Council priorities and targets as set out in the Corporate Plan.  In addition, adherence to 
the Prudential Framework ensures capital expenditure plans remain affordable in the 6



 

longer term and that capital resources are maximised. 
 
3.2   Relevant Council strategies and policies include the following: 

• Corporate Plan 2012-13; 

• Medium Term Financial Strategy; 

• Treasury Management Strategy; 

• Debt Management Strategy; 

• Insurance Strategy; 

• Risk Management Strategy; and 

• Capital, Assets and Property Strategy. 
 

 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 The revised forecast level of balances needs to be considered in light of the risk 

identified in 4.2 below. 
 

4.2 Various projects within the Council’s revenue budget and capital programme are 
supported by time-limited grants.  Where there are delays to the implementation of these 
projects, there is the risk that the associated grants will be lost.  If this occurs either the 
projects will be aborted or a decision to divert resources from other Council priorities will 
be required. 

 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Under the Equality Act 2010, the council and all other organisations exercising public 

functions on its behalf must have due regard to the need to:  a) eliminate discrimination, 
harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; b) 
advance equality of opportunity between those with a protected characteristic and those 
without; c) promote good relations between those with a protected characteristic and 
those without. The ‘protected characteristics’ referred to are: age; disability; gender 
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex and sexual 
orientation.  With respect to a) the ‘protected characteristics’ also include marriage and 
civil partnership.   

 
5.2 Financial monitoring is important in ensuring resources are used to deliver equitable 

services to all members of the community. 
 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance and 

Value for Money, Staffing, ICT, Property, Sustainability)  
 
6.1 Robust budget and performance monitoring plays an essential part in enabling an 

organisation to deliver its objectives efficiently and effectively.   
 
6.2 Use of Resources implications are covered within Section 9 of the body of the report and 

in the attached appendices. 
 
6.3 The projected overspend of £0.236m is forecast to reduce General Fund balances from 

£15.780m to £15.544m. The General Fund balances are therefore forecast to remain 
above the recommended target level of £15m. 

 
 

7



 

7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 states that: “without prejudice to section 

111, every local authority shall make arrangements for the proper administration of their 
financial affairs and shall secure that one of their officers has responsibility for the 
administration of those affairs”. Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972,  relates 
to the  subsidiary powers of local authorities. 

 
7.2 Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) imposes a statutory duty on  a 

billing or major precepting authority to monitor, during the financial year, its income and 
expenditure against the budget calculations. If the monitoring establishes that the 
budgetary situation has deteriorated, the authority must take such action as it considers 
necessary to deal with the situation. Definition as to whether there is a deterioration  in 
an authority’s financial position is set out in sub-section 28(4) of the Act.   

 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 The Council’s Constitution, in Part 3, Responsibility for Functions, states in paragraph 

3.6 the functions of the Cabinet Resources Committee including: 
 

(a) Monitor the trading position of appropriate Council services, carry out debt analysis 
and look at income sources and charging policies; 

(b) To write off debt; 
(c) To determine external or cross-boundary trading limit; and 
(d) Approval of schemes not in performance management plans but not outside the 

Council's budget or policy framework. 
 
8.2 The Council’s Constitution, Part 4, Financial Regulations Part 1 section 4.17 states the 

Chief Finance Officer will report in detail to Cabinet Resources Committee at least four 
times a year on the revenue and capital budgets and wider financial standing in addition 
to two summary reports at the beginning and end of the financial year. 

 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
9.1 2012/13 Revenue Monitoring 
9.1.1 Table 1 below provides a summary of the 2012/13 outturn analysis compared to the 

revised budget position. As at the end of Quarter 3 the actual net General Fund spend 
was £130.345m. This represents 46% of the revised budget (61% excluding Housing 
Benefit where Grants income and expenditure are not yet aligned). The position for the 
end of the year is currently anticipated to be forecast at an overspend of £0.236m. A 
breakdown of revenue monitoring by each service directorate is set out in Appendix B. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 8



 

Table 1: 2012/13 Revenue Quarter 3 Analysis – Summary 
Description

Green Green 

Amber

Red 

Amber

Red

Adult Social Care 95,815 97,103 96,866 (237) 98,896 5 1 1 -

Central Expenses 63,143 57,501       56,951 (550) 59,345 n/a n/a n/a n/a

Chief Executive 16,131 17,086 17,348 262 10,819 4 - 1 1

Childrens Services (excluding DSG) 57,701 58,116 57,927 (189) 56,423 7 - 1 2

Commercial Services 14,248 14,799 15,398 599 15,851 3 - - 1

Corporate Governance 5,859 5,826 5,833 7 5,678 1 - - -

Deputy Chief Executive 5,620 6,190 6,188 (2) 12,987 2 2 1 4

Environment, Planning & Regeneration 22,472 24,327 24,673           346 25,601 4 2 1 3

Total 2012/13 General Fund Forecast 280,989 280,948 281,184 236 285,600 26 5 5 11

Allocations agreed from GF Balances              -                -                -                -   

General Fund Balances as at 01/04/12 - -              -   (15,780)

Projected General Fund Balances 

(excluding schools balances) at 31/03/13

- -              -   (15,544)

PerformanceOriginal 

Budget

£'000

Revised 

Budget as 

at 

31/12/12

£'000

Forecast 

Outturn 

as at 

31/12/12

Forecast 

Outturn 

Variation 

as at 

31/12/12

£'000

2011/12 

Outturn

£'000

  
 

Description Original 

Budget

Revised 

Budget as 

at 31/12/12

Forecast 

Outturn as 

at 31/12/12

Forecast 

Outturn 

Variation 

as at 
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Revenue Account               -                 -                 -   (7,202)  
 

9.1.2 Directors are reminded that they are accountable for any budget variations within their 
services and the associated responsibility to ensure costs and income are managed 
within agreed budgets. To ensure this is successfully achieved, it is essential that 
Directors develop action plans for all significant emerging variances, with the aim of 
ensuring that overall expenditure is kept within their total budget available. 

 
9.2  Commentary about Revenue Outturn 
9.2.1 The Council’s overall position has declined since setting the Budget, but improved since 

quarter 2. The quarter 3 forecast has resulted in a projected overspend of £0.236m. The 
Council’s General Fund Balances are forecast to remain above the recommended level 
of £15m, and are currently projected to be £15.544m. Service recovery plans should be 
aiming to ameliorate any significant budget variances and bring the forecast level of 
balances back up to the recommended level. 

 
9.2.2 Specific areas for concern continue to be in the Chief Executive, Commercial services 

and Planning and Regeneration Directorates.  
 
9.2.3 The Chief Executive Directorate is forecasting an overspend of £0.262m which relates 

primarily to Customer Services and Registration. The overspend is due to the benefits of 
the Customer Services Transformation programme slipping to later than anticipated as a 
result of contractual issues with the telephone provider. 

 
9.2.4 The Commercial Services Directorate is forecasting an overspend of £0.599m, which 

includes: 

• an Information Systems overspend of £0.331m for additional costs of the Open 
Revenues system licences. 

• an overspend of £0.215m as a result of planned savings in Corporate 
Procurement that are unlikely to be achieved. Work is ongoing within the 
Directorate to identify further potential procurement savings. 

9



 

• an overspend of £0.158m in Property Services and Asset Management due to a 
shortfall in income, primarily on car parking fees and the sub letting of Barnet 
House that is no longer taking place. 

• a Corporate Programmes & Consultancy underspend of £0.105m for staff 
vacancies. This has reduced the overall overspend in Commercial Services, even 
thought this has reduced slightly on the forecast in quarter 2.  

 
9.2.6 The Environment, Planning and Regeneration Directorate is forecasting an overspend of 

£0.346m. This has reduced significantly since quarter 2 where the service was 
forecasting to overspend by £1.085m.  The Special Parking Account has an allowance in 
the budget for amendments to existing infrastructure provisions and additional 
infrastructure provisions. In this financial year many have been funded from external 
sources and capital schemes.  This has freed up the revenue element in the budget.  
The latest forecast includes the following: 

• a reduction in the Recycling income projection due to lower prices being received 
for materials. In addition there is cost pressure from contract inflation. This is 
resulting in a forecast overspend of £0.289m. 

• Car park income continues to forecast an overspend of £0.273m. This is due to 
continuing low usage of Council car parks even after tariff changes. Further tariff 
changes are still being considered. 

• The legal process around the implementation of the Central Management System 
(CMS) has caused a delay to the planned savings and resulted in a forecast 
overspend of £0.190m. 

• Routine highways maintenance continues to exceed budget, resulting in a 
forecast overspend of £0.181m. A review of capital and revenue schemes is to be 
undertaken in quarter 4 to realign budgets.  

• An overspend of £0.115m on Environmental Health/Cemetery & Crematorium as 
a result of crematorium income being below expectation, unexpected expenditure 
on buildings and repairs on the cemetery and crematorium and a reduction in pest 
control income due to an unusually low number of wasp complaints. 

• The Special Parking Account is now projecting an underspend of £0.545m. This is 
as a result of a reduction in recharges from Traffic and Development (there is no 
impact on Traffic and Development where targets will still be met). 

• £0.155m underspend on Community Protection as a result of lower running costs 
and staff vacancies. 

 

9.2.7 Specific areas for concern (highlighted above) are high risk areas and it is important to 
ensure the budget and performance of the service is managed so that it does not 
continue to be a budget pressure next year. 

 
9.2.8 The council was required to deliver £13.301m savings as part of the 2012/13 budget 

setting process.  Of this total, £1.192m shown in Table 2 below, is still being identified as 
high risk. The remainder have been implemented or are on course to being implemented 
in line with original timescales. For the high risk savings, alternative proposals or action 
plans have been developed by services.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

10



 

Table 2: Savings Monitor – key risks and remaining issues outstanding 
Service Service area Savings Type Description of saving 2012/13 

£'000

Chief Executive Libraries Efficiencies Implementation of RFID self-service in all 

sites (for book loans and issues). 

(50)

Chief Executive Libraries Efficiencies Shared services partnership.  To consider 

options to work with another local 

authority, including a review of the home 

and mobile library service , schools library 

service, and provision of online resources.

(25)

Chief Executive Libraries Income Increasing fees and charges, using 

vending machines, selling merchandise. 

(20)

Commercial Services IS Efficiencies Further review of contracts and supplier 

costs on consolidation (IS).

(20)

Commercial Services IS Efficiencies IS Transformation - Reduced supplier 

costs. 

(95)

Commercial Services IS Efficiencies IS Transformation - Reduced software 

licensing costs. 

(76)

Commercial Services Procurement Efficiencies Review of Council contracts. (440)

Commercial Services Estates Efficiencies Reduction in costs of maintaining 

properties pending sale. 

(120)

Commercial Services Estates - Mill Hill 

depot

Efficiencies Savings in Facilities Management and 

Security from relocation of depot.

(10)

Commercial Services Estates - Property 

Services

Efficiencies Property Services - increased charging to 

services and projects 

(10)

Commercial Services Estates  - Public 

offices

Income Office consolidation (170)

Environment, Planning and 

Regeneration

Highways Service Reductions Reprofiling the new column installation 

programme for street lighting and 

investing the saving in new technology to 

include energy measures which will 

reduce energy consumption.

(150)

Environment, Planning and 

Regeneration

Revenue Income 

Optimisation

Income Charging for parking in the boroughs 7 

remaining free car parks.

(6)

 
 

9.3 Q3 performance against the 2012/13 Corporate Plan Indicators (CPIs) 
9.3.1   Of a total of 50 indicators, 46 were required to report in quarter 3. Of the indicators that 

reported, there were 54.3% of targets met (25 targets rated as green) and 45.7% of 
targets missed (21 targets rate as red, red-amber, or green-amber). 28 CPIs show a 
positive or neutral direction of travel, 13 CPIs demonstrate a negative direction of travel. 
8 CPIs have reported no change. 5 CPIs have moved from being off target to on target in 
quarter three, and 4 CPIs have deteriorated from on target to off target. 

 
9.3.5   There are a number of performance issues in quarter 3: 

• There were no completions of new homes on the regeneration estates. There were 
also no completions of affordable homes in the borough during quarter 3. 

• In Commercial Services, the target for savings achieved through renegotiation of 
contracts was missed, with an outturn of 6.1% against a goal of 10%. 

• The average length of time spent in temporary emergency accommodation has 
continued to increase from 28.5 days to 29.1. 

• Overall percentage of savings achieved across the council is 90.3%. 
11



 

• Staff absence levels remain above the target of 6 days at 7.7 days over the last 12 
months. 

• Performance within Customer Services has remained below the target, despite 
significantly stronger performance at the call centre during quarter 3. The 
performance of three call centres (Parking, Adult Social Care, and Environment and 
Operations) was below 50% of calls answered within 20 seconds. 

• Progress has been made to improve customer satisfaction and reduction of the 
case load backlog in the Planning Service, but performance remains below the 
service’s target. 

• There is significant slippage in the capital programme, increasing from 12.2% in 
quarter 2 to 46.3% in quarter 3. 

 
9.3.6 There are also a number of areas where particularly strong performance or improvement 

has been reported in quarter 3. 

• The council rated as second in London for the comparative Value for Money of 
council services. 

• In Children’s Services there was progress closing the achievement gap at key 
stages 2 and 4, and in increasing the GCSE performance of children with special 
educational needs. 

• In Adult Social Care and Health there was a continued increase in the proportion of 
service users taking their personal budget as a direct payment, to 20.8%. 

• Performance responding to FOI requests continued to improve, from 94% 
responded to in time during quarter 2 to over 98% in quarter 3. 

• In finance, the variation between revised budget and forecast outturn reduced from 
0.9% in quarter 2 to 0.6% in quarter 3. 

• Satisfaction with the council’s telephone service increased to 93.5% from 86% in 
quarter 2. 

 
9.4 Movements to and from Contingency 
9.4.1 An ongoing virement from contingency to Insurance of £0.450m from within central 

expenses is requested.  This has been assumed in the revenue Monitoring in table 1 and 
Appendix B. 

 
9.5 Virement 
9.5.1 Insurance budgets are managed centrally.  When the premiums have been confirmed, 

insurance budgets held within service areas are adjusted each year.  In accordance with 
the financial regulations the following Insurance virement requires member approval 
(Recommendation 1.10) and is detailed further in Appendix G: 

• A one off virement of £1.303m from central expenses to realign the Insurance 
budgets in services. 

 
9.6 Agency Costs 
9.6.1 The table below details all agency staff costs incurred for quarter 3 of 2012/13. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 

 
Table 3: Agency Costs to 31 December 2012 

2011/12 Quarter 1 Quarter 2

Service

Total Agency 

& Consultants 

expenditure

Total  Agency 

and 

Consultants 

Expenditure

Total Agency 

and 

Consultants 

Expenditure*

Agency 

Spend

Consultants 

Spend

Total Agency and 

Consultants 

Expenditure*

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult Social services 1,980             625                   880                   895              319                    1,214                   

Chief Executive 1,884             566                   651                   702              179                    881                      

Childrens Services 10,542           1,331                1,608                896              801                    1,697                   

Commercial Services ** 4,294             979                   1,814                799              1,094                 1,893                   

Corporate Governance 423                101                   166                   11                11                        

Deputy Chief Executive 2,548             226                   398                   317              71                      388                      

Environment, Planning & Regeneration 5,424             531                   777                   650              2,736                 3,386                   

Totals 27,095           4,359                6,294                4,270           5,200                 9,470                   

Quarter 3

 
  * Data as at 31st December 2012 includes revenue (£7.266m) and capital spend 
(£2.204m) 

** Commercial Services includes "One Barnet" project expenditure £0.254m (Agency) and 
£1.050m (Consultants) for 12/13. 

 
9.7 Write off of debt under Chief Finance Officer’s Authority 
9.7.1 The Council constitution in Part 3, Responsibility for Functions, paragraph 6.7 gives the 

Chief Finance Officer authority to write-off individual debts up to and including £5,000, in 
consultation with the London Borough of Harrow Head of Legal/Practice Director Joint 
Legal Service. This action is then reported retrospectively to Cabinet Resources 
Committee. The amount of income debt written off is £0.304m. 

 
9.8 2012/13 Capital Programme Monitoring 
9.8.1 Directors are reminded of the continuing need to closely monitor and manage capital 

projects during 2012/13, to ensure that they are delivered within budget and in 
accordance with the agreed timeframe. 

 

9.9  2012/13 Capital Monitoring Analysis 
9.9.1 Table 4 below summarises the 2012/13 capital programme. The capital monitoring 

summary and scheme details by service directorate is set out in Appendix D. 
 
Table 4: 2012/13 Capital Quarter 3 Analysis – Summary 

Service 2012/13 

Latest 

Approved 

Budget

Additions/ 

Deletions 

recommended 

to Feb CRC

Slippage / 

Accelerated 

Spend 

recommended 

to Feb CRC

2012/13 

Budget 

(including 

Feb CRC)

Forecast 

to year-

end

Variance 

from 

Revised 

Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult Social Care 2,143 (1,026) -                        1,117 1,117 (1,026)

Central Expenses 2,178 (2,178) -                        -               -              (2,178)

Chief Executive 2,783 417 (1,900) 1,300 1,300 (1,483)

Childrens Services 41,517 (1,153) (19,943) 20,421 20,421 (21,096)

Commercial Services 19,138 (10) (13,524) 5,604 5,604 (13,534)

Corporate Governance 29 -                        (29) -               -              (29)

Deputy Chief Executive -                -                        -                        -               -              -                 

Environment, Planning & Regeneration 38,903 (956) (18,912) 19,035 19,035 (19,868)

General Fund Programme 106,691 (4,906) (54,308) 47,477 47,477 (59,214)

HRA Capital 21,440 (4,375) -                        17,065 17,065 (4,375)

Total Capital Programme 128,131 (9,281) (54,308) 64,542 64,542 (63,589)  
 
 
 

13



 

 
9.10 Proposed changes to the 2012/13 Capital Programme 
9.10.1 Table 5 below summarises the proposed funding changes to the Capital Programme.  A 

detailed analysis of the proposed changes including additions, deletions and budget 
movements is provided in Appendix C. 

 
Table 5: 2012/13 Capital Funding Changes 

Service Grants S106 / 

Other

Capital 

Receipts

Revenue Borrowing Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adult Social Care (1,026) (1,026)

Central Expenses (2,178) (2,178)

Chief Executive (1,513) 30 (1,483)

Childrens Services (4,431) (6,639) (1,224) (8,802) (21,096)

Commercial Services (13,534) (13,534)

Corporate Governance (29) (29)

Deputy Chief Executive -                

Environment, Planning & Regeneration (3,399) (2,472) (3,103) (5,024) (5,870) (19,868)

General Fund Programme (8,856) (2,472) (26,996) (6,248) (14,642) (59,214)

HRA Capital -                -                -                (4,375) -                 (4,375)

Total Capital Programme (8,856) (2,472) (26,996) (10,623) (14,642) (63,589)

 
9.10.2 There has been a significant reduction in the Capital programme this quarter. The main  

projects affected are as follows: 

• Adults Social Care deletions for capital works (£1.026m)  

• Central Expenses deletions for redundancies (£2.178m). 

• Chief Executive additions for CCTV Installation £0.377m 

• Children’s deletions for the Pupil referral unit (£1.000m) 

• HRA deletions for Regeneration (£4.000m) and Cash incentives (£0.375m) 

• The total forecasted slippage of £54.308m is made up primarily of the following: 
Chief Executive (£1.900m) 
� Customer Access Centre (£1.900m) 
Children’ s service (£19.943m) 
� Urgent Primary places (£15.338m) 
� Schools Modernisation & access improvement (£1.188m) 
� Targeted capital 14-19 SEN (£1.023m) 
� General School Organisation (£0.870m) 
� Other Children’s projects (£1.274m) 
Commercial Services (£13.524m) 
� Depot relocation (£11.548m) 
� Corporate IM Program (£1.958m) 
Environment, Planning & Regeneration (£18.912m) 
� General Fund regeneration – primarily Grahame Park (£16.539m),  
� Disabled Facilities Projects (£1.000m). 
� Highways non-TFL (£0.413m) 
� Other EPR projects (£0.550m) 

This spend is planned to be incurred in future years and has been re-profiled 
appropriately. 

 
 

9.11 Corporate Risk Register 
9.11.1 The Corporate Risk Register is a summary of the main risks that the Council faces and 

describes the Control Actions put in place to mitigate these risks. The Corporate Risk 
Register can be found as Appendix E to this report. 

 
 
 

14



 

  

9.12 One Barnet programme 
9.12.1  The latest budgeted figures for each project currently in the One Barnet Programme are 

detailed in Appendix F, Table 1. The total budget for Wave 1 Projects is £9.847m. The 
spend in 2012/13 is £2.566m. The total projected spend for the projects through to 
2014/15 is £9.821m.  

 
 

9.12.2 The budget and related savings achieved and projected for each project over the period 
2010-19 is detailed in Appendix F, Table 3. The cumulative saving figure is now £121.7m 
due to the updated NSCSO savings in the Medium Term Financial Strategy reported to 
Cabinet in November 2012. 

 
9.12.3 At Cabinet on 20 February 2012 the extension of the corporate change programme to 

include five new major projects and three 'enabling' projects was approved. Details of the 
latest budgeted figures for each of the five new projects in the One Barnet Programme 
are detailed in Appendix F, Table 2. The table also includes projected figures for the 
Information Management System enabling project, the continuation of the Customer 
Services Transformation Project, the Reorganisation of the Senior Officer and Council 
Structures Project and the costs of funding the Programme Management Office. 

 
 
9.13 Key projects, including One Barnet programme 
9.13.1 A total of 36 projects have been monitored over quarter 3. Of these, two have been given 

a red rating due to milestone or general project slippage. The projects are:  

• MASH – Multi-Agency Support Hub (Children’s Safeguarding): whilst there are 
some interim working arrangements in place, the full MASH is not due to by up 
and running until Spring 2013. It had been scheduled to be operational by late 
2012. 

• NLWA Procurement: this project is marked as red because some slippage has 
occurred. However, it is anticipated that this project will deliver the required 
outcomes. 

 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH/MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) TE 

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

: 
Q

u
a
rt

e
r 

T
h

re
e
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 

 C
o

n
te

n
ts

1
. 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
v

e
rv

ie
w

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.1
 

2
.W

h
o

le
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 t

a
b

le
s

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.3
 

3
. 

M
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 f

o
r 

tr
a

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 

ra
ti

n
g

s
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

.1
0

 

17



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

1
.1

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 d

a
s

h
b

o
a

rd
 

 
T

h
e
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 f

o
r 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
n
g
 t

h
e
s
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 r

a
ti
n
g
s
 i
s
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 i
n
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 3

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

. 
 

D
ir

e
c

to
ra

te
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
P

la
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 

b
u

d
g

e
t

a
c

tu
a

l
v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 

£
’0

0
0

C
a

p
it

a
l

a
c

tu
a

l
v
a
ri

a
n

c
e

£
’0

0
0

M
T

B
H

R
/P

e
o

p
le

 
K

e
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

ra
ti

n
g

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n

d
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

5
(2

3
7

)
(1

,0
2

6
)

1
-2

.5
n

/a

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

3
(1

8
9

)
(2

1
,0

9
6

)
-1

-3
.5

1

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t,
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 &

 R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

1
.5

3
4
6

(1
9

,8
6

8
)

1
-3

9

  
  

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
5
9
9

(1
3

,5
3

4
)

-3
1

0

D
e
p

u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

-2
(P

)
(2

)
0

2
1

n
/a

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

(i
n

c
l.
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 &

 L
ib

ra
ri

e
s
) 

2
.5

2
6
2

(1
,4

8
3

)
-1

-3
.5

1

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

1
7

(2
9

)
2

1
0

C
e
n

tr
a
l 

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s
 

n
/a

(5
5

0
)

(2
,1

7
8

)
n

/a
 

n
/a

 
n

/a
 

T
o

ta
ls

[1
]

4
2
3
6

(6
3
,5

8
9
)

2
-2

.5
4
.5

1
. 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 

18



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

2
. 

W
h

o
le

 c
o

u
n

c
il
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

 t
a
b

le
s
 

2
.1

 K
e

y
 f

in
a

n
c

e
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
rs

  

In
d

ic
a
to

r
2
0
1

2
/1

3
 

(P
o

s
it

io
n

 

a
t 

3
1
/1

2
/1

2
)

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 

(P
o

s
it

io
n

 

a
t 

3
0
/0

9
/1

2
)

A
c
h

ie
v

e
d

 

/T
re

n
d

1
R

e
v

e
n

u
e
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(a
) 

B
a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
:

  
  

(i
) 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

£
'm

1
5
.5

4
1

3
.7

1

  
  

(i
i)

 H
R

A
 B

a
la

n
c
e
s

£
'm

1
5
.0

1
1

1
.0

1

  
  

(i
ii)

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
B

a
la

n
c
e
s

£
'm

1
5
.0

9
1

5
.0

9

(b
) 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
B

u
d
g
e
t:

V
a

ri
a
ti
o
n
s
:

  
  

(i
) 

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n

d
s

£
'm

4
.1

5
5
.5

6

  
  

(i
i)

 U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s

£
'm

3
.9

1
3
.4

9

2
C

a
p

it
a
l 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

(i
) 

T
o
ta

l 
S

lip
p
a

g
e

£
'm

5
4
.3

1
1

3
.4

3

3
D

e
b

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

(i
) 

T
o
ta

l 
D

e
b
t 
O

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

3
0
 

d
a

y
s

£
'm

1
1
.5

7
5
.1

(i
) 

T
o
ta

l 
D

e
b
t 
O

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

1
2
 

m
o
n
th

s
£

'm
1
.5

1
.2

9

(i
iii

) 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

T
a

x
 -

 %
 p

a
id

 
%

8
3
.8

3
5

6
.7

4

4
C

re
d

it
o

r 
P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

(i
) 

%
 o

f 
C

re
d
it
o
rs

 p
a
id

 w
it
h

in
 3

0
 d

a
y
s

%
9

7
.8

7
9

7
.9

8

 

2
.2

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
–

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 o
v

e
rv

ie
w

S
e

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
 2

.3
  

  
C

a
p

it
a

l 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
–

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 o
v

e
rv

ie
w

 

S
e

e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
   

19



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
4

2
.4

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 -
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w

   * 
A

 C
P

I 
h
a
s
 n

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
o
 h

a
s
 n

o
 R

A
G

 r
a
ti
n
g
 s

o
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
  

 
**

 A
 C

P
I 

d
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
e

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
  

 
  P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

: 
W

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 N
/A

 o
r 

b
la

c
k
 t

h
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
s
 

    

R
A

G
 r

a
ti

n
g

s
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

T
o

ta
l 

n
o

. 
o

f 
C

o
rp

 
P

la
n

in
d

ic
a

to
r

s
G

re
e

n
G

re
e

n
a
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

a
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

P
o

s
it

iv
e

/
n

e
u

tr
a

l
D

o
T

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e

D
o

T

N
o

. 
o

f 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
e
x
p

e
c
te

d
to

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

d
a

ta
 i

n
 Q

3
 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n

d
 H

e
a
lt

h
 

7
 

5
 

1
 

1
 

 
4
 

3
 

7
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
1
 

6
 

 
2
 

2
 

8
 

2
 

1
0
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
, 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

1
0
 

4
 

2
 

1
 

3
 

7
 

2
 

1
0
 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

4
 

3
 

 
 

1
 

4
 

0
 

4
 

D
e
p

u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
 (

p
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l)

 
1
0
 

2
 

1
 

1
 

4
 

5
 

2
 

8
 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

1
0
 

4
 

 
1
 

1
 

7
 

2
 

6
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

1
 

1
 

 
 

 
1
 

0
 

1
 

T
o

ta
l

5
0

2
5

(5
4

.3
%

)

4

(8
.7

%
) 

6

(1
3

%
) 

1
1

(2
3

.9
%

) 
3
6

1
1

4
6

20



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
5

2
.5

 H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
/P

e
o

p
le

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 -

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 o
v
e
rv

ie
w

K
e
y
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 H

R
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
  

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
P

e
ri

o
d

c
o

v
e

re
d

 

T
a
rg

e
t 

A
m

b
e

r 
c
ri

te
ri

a
Q

3
 A

c
tu

a
l 

(N
o

.)
 

Q
3

 A
c
tu

a
l 

%
 

o
f 

to
ta

l 
 

Q
3

(n
u

m
e
ra

to
r/

d
e
n

o
m

in
a
to

r)
 

T
a

rg
e
t 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

Q
3

D
o

T
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
  

A
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s

ic
k
n

e
s

s
 

a
b

s
e
n

c
e
 d

a
y
s

 p
e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 

(R
o

ll
in

g
 y

e
a

r)
 

J
a

n
 1

2
 -

 D
e

c
 1

2
 

6
 

6
 -

 6
.5

 
7

.7
N

/A
 

1
8

4
5

0
/2

4
0

3
 

-2
8
%

 
!

 

0
.2

%
 

1
0
.1

 d
a

y
s
 

(C
IP

F
A

, 
A

ll 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 &
 

o
th

e
r 

U
n

it
a
ry

 A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

2
0
1

1
) 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

b
s
e

n
c

e
 

d
a

y
s

 p
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 t

h
is

 
q

u
a
rt

e
r

(t
a

rg
e

t 
is

 s
e
a

s
o

n
a

ll
y
 a

d
ju

s
te

d
) 

O
c
t 

1
2

 -
 D

e
c
 1

2
 

1
.7

1
 

1
.7

2
 -

1
.8

4
 

2
.2

N
/A

 
5

2
4

9
/2

3
7

5
 

-2
9
.2

%
 

!
 

1
5

.1
%
 

2
.2

5
 d

a
y
s
 

(C
IP

F
A

, 
A

ll 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 &
 

o
th

e
r 

U
n

it
a
ry

 A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

2
0
1

1
) 

%
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 s
u

b
m

it
ti

n
g

 a
 

m
o

n
th

ly
 a

b
s

e
n

c
e

 r
e
tu

rn
 

O
c
t 

1
2

 -
 D

e
c
 1

2
 

1
0
0
%

 
>

9
0

%
 

3
9

1
9

2
.7

%
 

3
9

1
/4

2
2

 
7
.4

%
 

"
 

1
.1

%
 

N
/A

 :
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 a
p
p

lic
a

b
le

 
to

 L
B

B
 o

n
ly

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

%
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
s

 
c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 f
o

r 
e
li
g

ib
le

 s
ta

ff
 o

n
ly

 

A
p
r 

1
2
 -

 M
a

r 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%

 
>

9
0

%
 

N
e
x
t 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 Q
u

a
rt

e
r 

1
 2

0
1

3
/2

0
1
4
 

%
 m

id
 y

e
a

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 f

o
r 

e
li
g

ib
le

 s
ta

ff
 

o
n

ly
 

A
p
r 

1
2
 -

 M
a

r 
1
3
 

1
0
0
%

 
>

9
0

%
 

2
1

1
2

9
5

.3
%

 
2

1
1

2
/2

2
1

5
 

4
.7

%
 

N
o

t 
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 

N
/A

 :
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 
a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 t
o
 L

B
B

 o
n
ly

 

C
o

s
t 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
p

a
y
b

il
l 

to
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

O
c
t 

1
2

 -
 D

e
c
 1

2
 

£
2

8
,4

7
3

,0
2

4
 

+
/-

5
%

 
£

2
5

,2
5

9
,4

1
1

-1
1
.3

%
 

2
5

2
5

9
4

1
1

/ 
2

8
4

7
3

0
2

4
 

-1
1
.3

%
 

"
 

2
.7

%
 

N
/A

 :
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 
a
p
p
lic

a
b
le

 t
o
 L

B
B

 o
n
ly

 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
In

d
ic

a
to

r 
P

e
ri

o
d

 c
o

v
e

re
d

 
Q

3
 A

c
tu

a
l 

(N
o

.)
 

Q
3

 A
c
tu

a
l 

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

 
Q

3
(n

u
m

e
ra

to
r/

d
e
n

o
m

in
a
to

r)
 

D
o

T
Q

3
 %

 
B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 

21



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
6

D
iv

e
rs

it
y
 D

a
ta

 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

to
p

 5
%

 e
a

rn
e

rs
 

th
a
t 

a
re

 f
e

m
a

le
 

A
s
 a

t 
3

1
 D

e
c
 2

0
1

2
 

6
9

4
9

.6
%

 
6

9
/1

3
9

 
"

 
1

.4
%

 

 W
o

m
e

n
 i
n

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 p
o

s
ts

 
4
9
.9

%
 

(C
IP

F
A

, 
A

ll 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
 &

 o
th

e
r 

U
n

it
a

ry
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 2

0
1

1
) 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

B
M

E
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 a

s
 

%
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

A
s
 a

t 
3

1
 D

e
c
 2

0
1

2
 

8
1

5
3

1
.9

%
 

8
1

5
/2

5
5

6
 

_
 

0
.0

%

B
la

c
k
 a

n
d

 M
in

o
ri

ty
 E

th
n

ic
 

lo
c
a

l 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 3

3
.1

%
 

(S
ta

te
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 J

u
n

e
 

2
0
1
1
) 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
e
c
la

re
d

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 
s

ta
ff

 a
s

 %
 o

f 
to

ta
l 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s

 
A

s
 a

t 
3

1
 D

e
c
 2

0
1

2
 

7
7

2
.9

%
 

7
7

/2
6

6
9

 
"

 
1

.8
%

 

2
.3

3
%

 
(C

IP
F

A
, 

A
ll 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

 &
 o

th
e

r 
U

n
it
a

ry
 A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 2

0
1

1
) 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 R

e
la

ti
o

n
s
 

H
ig

h
 R

is
k
 -

 E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 

R
e

la
ti

o
n

s
 c

a
s

e
s

 a
s

 %
 o

f 
to

ta
l 

c
a

s
e
s

 

A
s
 a

t 
3

1
 D

e
c
 2

0
1

2
 

7
7

.7
%

 
7

/9
1

 
!

 
1

5
.5

%
 

N
/A

 :
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

 t
o

 
L

B
B

 o
n

ly
 

2
.6

 S
ta

ff
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 b

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

A
s
 a

t 
3
1
 D

e
c
 2

0
1
2

E
S

T
A

B
L

IS
H

E
D

 
P

O
S

IT
IO

N
S

 A
S

 F
T

E
 

 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

S
 C

O
V

E
R

IN
G

 
E

S
T

A
B

L
IS

H
E

D
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N
S

 A
S

 F
T

E
 

M
S

P
R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
A

S
H

E
A

D
C

O
U

N
T

 

N
O

N
 M

S
P

 R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

 A
S

 
H

e
a

d
c

o
u

n
t 

  

A
V

A
IL

A
B

L
E

 
C

A
S

U
A

L
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

A
S

 F
T

E
 

 

T
o

ta
l

E
s
ta

b
li
s
h

e
d

 
P

o
s
it

io
n

s
(F

T
E

)

O
c
c
u

p
ie

d
 

(F
T

E
)

P
e
rm

a
n

e
n

t

F
ix

e
d

T
e
rm

,
T

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

, 
S

e
a
s
o

n
a
l

T
O

T
A

L
T

O
T

A
L

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 

p
a
id

 i
n

 
th

e
q

u
a
rt

e
r

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 
p

a
id

 i
n

 t
h

e
 

q
u

a
rt

e
r

T
O

T
A

L
 

T
o

ta
l

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

4
1

1
.5

8
 

3
2

5
.2

1
 

2
9

4
.7

6
 

2
5

.5
4

 
3

2
0

.3
0

 
 

8
4

 
2

 
9

 
1

1
 

3
.0

0
 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

3
1

5
.9

9
 

2
6

7
.5

1
 

2
3

6
.0

2
 

2
1

.0
4

 
2

5
7

.0
6

 
 

8
4

 
0

 
9

 
9

 
1

2
.0

0
 

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

9
7

4
.0

6
 

8
4

0
.6

9
 

6
5

2
.0

8
 

1
5

7
.0

3
 

8
0

9
.1

1
 

 
8

8
 

1
2

 
1

7
 

2
9

 
2

5
9

.6
6

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 
5

6
.0

0
 

4
0

.4
8

 
3

4
.4

7
 

7
.0

0
 

4
1

.4
7

 
 

2
 

0
 

1
 

1
 

1
3

.0
0

 

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

2
2

5
.6

0
 

1
8

0
.6

1
 

1
4

0
.3

9
 

3
4

.2
2

 
1

7
4

.6
1

 
 

2
7

 
3

 
7

 
1

0
 

5
.0

0
 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
4

7
.1

9
 

1
0

9
.7

7
 

9
7

.7
7

 
1

1
.0

0
 

1
0

8
.7

7
 

 
2

4
 

3
 

7
 

1
0

 
0

.0
0

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n

t,
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

&
 R

e
g
e
n
. 

7
9

0
.5

1
 

6
5

4
.1

0
 

6
0

9
.7

6
 

4
9

.5
3

 
6

5
9

.2
9

 
 

2
0

4
 

1
 

2
6

 
2

7
 

8
4

.0
0

 

T
o
ta

l 
2
,9

2
0
.9

3
 

2
,4

1
8
.3

6
 

2
,0

6
5
.2

4
 

3
0

5
.3

6
 

2
,3

7
0
.6

0
5

1
3

.0
0

 
2

1
.0

0
 

7
6

.0
0

 
9

7
.0

0
3

7
6

.6
6

 

22



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
7

2
.7

 K
e

y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 –
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 

 K
e
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 q
u

a
rt

e
r 

3
: 

A
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

3
6
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 o

v
e
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

3
, 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 2
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 a

 R
e
d
 R

A
G

 r
a
ti
n
g
 d

u
e
 t

o
 m

ile
s
to

n
e

 o
r 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

s
lip

p
a

g
e

, 
th

e
s
e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
. 

 
1

. 
M

A
S

H
 –

 M
u

lt
i-

A
g

e
n

c
y
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 H

u
b

 (
C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

):
 W

h
ils

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 l
im

it
e
d
 i
n
te

ri
m

 w
o
rk

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

th
e
 f

u
ll 

M
A

S
H

 i
s
 n

o
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 b

y
 u

p
 a

n
d
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 u

n
ti
l 
S

p
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
. 

It
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 t

o
 b

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
b
y
 l
a
te

 2
0
1
2
. 

 2
. 

N
L

W
A

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
–
 T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 m

a
rk

e
d
 a

s
 r

e
d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 R

A
G

 m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 s

o
m

e
 s

lip
p
a
g
e
 h

a
s
 

o
c
c
u
rr

e
d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a
 

R
e
d

S
ta

tu
s

A
m

b
e
r

S
ta

tu
s

G
re

e
n

S
ta

tu
s

T
o

ta
l

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

's
 O

ff
ic

e
  

1
1

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

1
1
0

7
1
8

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

0

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 O

n
e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

0

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 &

 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

1
2

1
4

1
7

  
 T

o
ta

ls
 

2
1
2

2
2

3
6

23



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
8

3
. 
M

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 f

o
r 

tr
a
ff

ic
 l
ig

h
t 

ra
ti

n
g

s
 

3
.1

 T
h

re
s
h

o
ld

s
 f

o
r 

a
w

a
rd

in
g

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

-l
e

v
e

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 r
a
ti

n
g

 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
ts

 

G
re

e
n

G
re

e
n

 A
m

b
e
r

R
e
d

 A
m

b
e

r 
R

e
d

G
o

o
d

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

G
o

o
d

, 
w

it
h

 
s
o

m
e
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
S

o
m

e
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 

S
e
ri

o
u

s
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 &

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

m
g

t 
 -

 
v

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 %
 (

a
b

o
v

e
 a

n
d

 b
e

lo
w

) 
0

%
 

<
 0

.5
%

 
0

.5
 -

 1
%

 
M

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 1
%

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 &

 H
R

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 

s
c

o
re

s
M

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 2
 

0
.5

 t
o

 2
 

-1
 t

o
 0

. 
L

e
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 -

1
 

 3
.2

 M
e

th
o

d
 f

o
r 

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
, 

H
R

/P
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
c

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

 r
a

ti
n

g
s

 

E
a

c
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
te

d
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 f
o

u
r 

p
o

in
t 

tr
a

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 

s
c
a

le
: 

G
re

e
n

, 
G

re
e

n
 A

m
b

e
r,

 R
e

d
 A

m
b

e
r 

a
n

d
 R

e
d

. 
P

o
in

ts
 f

o
r 

e
a

c
h

 a
re

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

, 
a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

n
 a

d
d
e

d
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

h
e

a
lt
h

 r
a

ti
n

g
 s

c
o

re
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

. 
 

 
   F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

if
 t

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 f
o

u
r 

in
d

ic
a
to

rs
 i
n

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 a
n

d
 e

a
c
h

 a
c
h

ie
v
e
d

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

fo
u

r 
tr

a
ff

ic
 l
ig

h
ts

, 
th

e
 n

e
t 
re

s
u

lt
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 s
c
o

re
 o

f 
0

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
 R

e
d

 A
m

b
e

r 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

h
e

a
lt
h

 r
a

ti
n

g
, 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 t

a
b

le
 a

b
o
v
e

. 

 
 3

.3
 M

e
th

o
d

 f
o

r 
p

ro
d

u
c

in
g

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c

e
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

tr
a

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t 

ra
ti

n
g

s
 

A
n

y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

th
a

t 
is

 m
e

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

s
 a

 G
re

e
n

 t
ra

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t.

 T
a

rg
e

ts
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 m

e
t,

 b
u

t 
w

h
e

re
 8

0
%

 o
r 

m
o

re
 o

f 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
, 

w
ill

 b
e

 g
iv

e
n

 a
 G

re
e

n
 A

m
b

e
r 

tr
a

ff
ic

 l
ig

h
t.

P
o

in
ts

 f
o

r 
e

a
c

h
 

in
d

ic
a

to
r

G
re

e
n

1
 

G
re

e
n

 A
m

b
e

r 
 0

.5
 

R
e

d
 A

m
b

e
r 

-0
.5

 

R
e

d
-1

 

24



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
9

If
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 b

e
lo

w
 8

0
%

 b
u

t 
a

b
o

v
e

 6
5

%
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 g

e
t 

a
 R

e
d

 
A

m
b

e
r 

ra
ti
n

g
. 

F
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
, 

if
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 i
s
 8

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 1

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
, 

th
e

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

is
 2

0
. 

8
0

%
 o

f 
2

0
 i
s
 1

6
, 
s
o

 t
h

e
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 w
o

u
ld

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 a
t 

le
a

s
t 

9
6

 p
e

o
p

le
 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 G
re

e
n

 A
m

b
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
t 

le
a
s
t 

9
3

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 R

e
d

 A
m

b
e

r.
  

W
h

ils
t 

in
it
ia

l 
tr

a
ff

ic
 l
ig

h
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 b
a

s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

is
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 c
ri

te
ri
o

n
, 

th
e

y
 m

a
y
 

s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 d
is

c
u

s
s
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 D

ir
e

c
to

ra
te

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
e

a
m

, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
p

e
c
ts

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 
ta

rg
e

t.
 W

h
e

re
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 o

c
c
u

rr
e

d
 i
t 

w
ill

 b
e

 c
le

a
rl

y
 s

ta
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 

g
iv

e
n

. 

T
h

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 f
o

r 
re

d
 a

n
d

 a
m

b
e

r 
tr

a
ff

ic
 l
ig

h
ts

 f
o

r 
H

R
/P

e
o

p
le

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 d

if
fe

r 
fo

r 
e

a
c
h

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r;
 t

h
e

 a
m

b
e

r 
c
ri

te
ri

o
n

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 a
lo

n
g

s
id

e
 t

h
e

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
r 

in
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
d

a
ta

 t
a

b
le

s
. 

  

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 c
ri

te
ri

a
, 

A
n

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
th

a
t 

is
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a

n
 1

0
%

 o
ff

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

n
d

 h
a

s
 a

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
w

ill
 a

u
to

m
a

ti
c
a

lly
 q

u
a

lif
y
 

to
 b

e
 a

m
b

e
r 

ra
te

d
. 

B
o

th
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 m
e

t 
if
 a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 r

e
d

-r
a

te
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
a
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 e

it
h

e
r 

a
 g

re
e
n

-
a

m
b

e
r 

o
r 

a
 r

e
d

-a
m

b
e

r:
 

 
F

o
r 

a
n

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 b
e

 r
a

te
d

 a
s

 G
re

e
n

 a
m

b
e

r:
 

1
. 

N
o

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

%
 o

ff
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 a
n

d
; 

2
. 

A
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 

F
o

r 
a

n
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

to
 b

e
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 R

e
d

 a
m

b
e

r:
 

1
. 

B
e

tw
e

e
n

 >
5

%
 a

n
d

 n
o

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 1

0
%

 o
ff

 t
a

rg
e

t,
 a

n
d

; 
2

. 
P

o
s
it
iv

e
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
o

r 
n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 d
ir

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l 
n

o
t 

in
 e

x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
2

.5
%

 (
if
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 h

a
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

s
to

ry
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

) 

T
ra

ff
ic

 L
ig

h
t 

%
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

te
d

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t
a

c
h

ie
v

e
d

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

G
re

e
n

1
0

0
%

 o
r 

m
o

re
 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

r 
e

x
c
e

e
d

in
g

 t
a

rg
e

t 

G
re

e
n

 A
m

b
e

r 
>

8
0

%
 <

1
0

0
%

 
N

e
a

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
w

it
h

 s
o

m
e

 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 

R
e

d
 A

m
b

e
r 

>
6

5
%

 <
8

0
%

 
P

ro
b

le
m

a
ti
c
 

R
e

d
<

6
5

%
 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
s
 

25



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 b

y
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
3

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

C
a

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
3

4
,0

8
1

3
4

,9
4

0
3

5
,2

1
0

2
7

0
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 f

ro
m

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 i
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 Y
C

B
 b

lo
c
k
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t.

C
a

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
7

,1
1

4
6

,4
5

1
6

,4
7

1
2

0
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
lie

n
ts

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 d
u

e
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 h
ig

h
 c

o
s
t 

c
a

s
e

s
 o

n
 a

u
ti
s
ti
c
 s

p
e

c
tr

u
m

C
a

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 O
ld

e
r 

A
d

u
lt
s
 -

 P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
D

is
a

b
ili

ti
e

s
4

2
,0

8
5

4
4

,0
3

2
4

4
,1

8
6

1
5

4
M

a
in

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 r

e
la

te
s
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 D
ir
e

c
t 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 &

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

3
,8

5
5

3
,5

5
1

3
,4

5
0

(1
0

1
)

U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 s
a

v
in

g
 o

n
 i
n

te
ri
m

 j
o

in
t 

D
ir
e

c
to

r 
w

it
h

 C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 

v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 &

 S
u

p
p

ly
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
8

,7
4

1
8

,1
9

0
7

,6
1

0
(5

8
0

)
S

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 r

e
la

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

-d
ir
e

c
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 l
o

w
e

r 
le

v
e

l 
p

re
v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
G

ra
n

t 
In

c
o

m
e

(6
1

)
(6

1
)

(6
1

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   

T
o

ta
l

9
5

,8
1

5
9

7
,1

0
3

9
6

,8
6

6
(2

3
7

)

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
:

a
) 

  
  

 2
4

  
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

b
) 

  
  

 2
6

  
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 g
ro

s
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
m

c
) 

  
  

  
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 a

b
o

v
e

.

C
e

n
tr

a
l 

E
x

p
e

n
s

e
s

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
3

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
u

b
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
s

3
1

4
3

1
4

3
1

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

L
e

v
ie

s
2

7
,8

3
1

2
7

,6
3

2
2

7
,0

8
2

(5
5

0
)

U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 l
e

v
ie

s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d

 a
 r

e
fu

n
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 N
o

rt
h

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 W
a

s
te

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

C
e

n
tr

a
l 
C

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c
y

9
,2

7
5

4
,0

8
1

4
,0

8
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 

R
a

te
 R

e
lie

f
4

3
3

4
3

3
4

3
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
1

9
,4

6
9

1
9

,2
2

0
1

9
,2

2
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 

E
a

rl
y
 R

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 

c
o

s
ts

5
,0

0
4

5
,0

0
4

5
,0

0
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 

F
R

S
1

7
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

t
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

- 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

- 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

C
a

r 
L

e
a

s
in

g
2

2
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 F
e

e
s
 &

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

7
9

9
7

9
9

7
9

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

M
is

c
e

lla
n

e
o

u
s
 F

in
a

n
c
e

1
6

1
6

1
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 

C
D

C
 D

R
M

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
- 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

- 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

T
o

ta
l

6
3

,1
4

3
5

7
,5

0
1

5
6

,9
5

1
(5

5
0

)

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
:

a
) 

  
  

 1
  

c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
 o

v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

b
) 

  
  

0
  

c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 g
ro

s
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
m

c
) 

  
  

  
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 a

b
o

v
e

.

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

26



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
3

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e

c
to

rs
5

5
2

4
6

7
4

7
5

8
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 o
ly

m
p

ic
s
 c

o
s
ts

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
2

,1
3

3
2

,3
3

3
2

,3
6

3
3

0
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

ra
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

re
c
h

a
rg

e
 i
n

c
o

m
e

G
ra

n
ts

5
4

8
7

8
2

8
3

6
5

4
G

ra
n

t 
p

re
s
s
u

re
, 

s
e

e
k
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 o
u

ts
id

e
 a

g
e

n
c
y

L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

5
,3

6
8

5
,3

5
9

5
,2

6
2

(9
7

)
D

u
e

 t
o

 t
ig

h
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 i
n

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
 v

e
ry

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 a
n

d
 l
ik

e
ly

 r
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

6
,5

1
0

5
,7

8
8

5
,7

8
8

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 R
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
1

,0
2

0
2

,3
5

7
2

,6
2

4
2

6
7

C
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
is

s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

c
a

u
s
in

g
 s

lip
p

a
g

e
 t

o
 C

S
T

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

d
e

liv
e

ra
b

le
s
.

T
o

ta
l

1
6

,1
3

1
1

7
,0

8
6

1
7

,3
4

8
2

6
2

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
:

a
) 

  
  

5
  

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

b
) 

  
  

1
  

  
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 g
ro

s
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
m

c
) 

  
  

  
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 a

b
o

v
e

.

C
h

il
d

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
3

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e

a
m

1
,7

7
9

1
,2

8
3

1
,3

0
7

2
4

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 c
o

s
ts

 o
ff

s
e

t 
b

y
 s

h
a

re
d

 c
o

s
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 p

o
s
t

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 D
iv

is
io

n

S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

2
,6

8
5

2
,4

5
3

2
,3

4
0

(1
1

3
)

S
a

la
ry

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

e
a

m

C
h

ild
re

n
 I

n
 C

a
re

1
9

,9
1

9
2

0
,3

6
3

2
1

,1
1

4
7

5
1

N
e

t 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
v
e

r 
a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
s
p

e
n

d
s
. 

M
a

in
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 i
s
 i
n

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
.

C
h

ild
re

n
 I

n
 N

e
e

d
4

,1
1

4
4

,4
4

9
4

,4
8

1
3

2
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
e

rn
u

m
e

ra
ry

 a
g

e
n

c
y
 s

ta
ff

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 &

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

2
,1

2
5

2
,1

1
8

2
,0

4
9

(6
9

)
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 i
n

 E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 w

e
lf
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s
 &

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

c
o

m
e

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

ly
 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 t
e

a
c
h

e
rs

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
, 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

1
,0

8
4

1
,2

5
9

1
,2

7
0

1
1

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
ru

n
n

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 o
ff

s
e

t 
b

y
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s

E
a

rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 &

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 (

B
R

S
I)

8
,5

9
1

9
,0

5
8

9
,2

9
4

2
3

6
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

e
a

c
h

e
rs

 i
n

 c
h

ild
re

n
's

 c
e

n
tr

e
s

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 Y
o

u
th

 &
 P

la
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
4

,2
1

2
4

,2
1

5
3

,8
4

1
(3

7
4

)
S

a
v
in

g
 o

n
 v

a
c
a

n
t 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

Y
O

S
 p

o
s
t,

 o
th

e
r 

u
/s

 o
n

 s
a

la
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 o

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 C
o

m
p

le
x
 N

e
e

d
s

1
1

,1
4

1
1

0
,8

0
1

1
0

,0
6

9
(7

3
2

)
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 m
a

in
ly

 f
ro

m
 1

3
/1

4
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 e

a
rl
y

O
th

e
r 

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 B

u
d

g
e

ts
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 P

P
P

 &
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 F

u
n

d
in

g
)

2
,0

5
1

2
,1

1
7

2
,1

6
2

4
5

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 &

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t

e
a

m
 o

ff
s
e

t 
b

y
 u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 i
n

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 o

th
e

r 

a
re

a
s
.

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 D

ir
e

c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   

T
o

ta
l 

(e
x

c
lu

d
in

g
 S

D
M

)
5

7
,7

0
1

5
8

,1
1

6
5

7
,9

2
7

(1
8

9
)

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
:

a
) 

  
  

  
2

1
  

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

b
) 

  
  

  
3

2
  

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 g
ro

s
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
m

c
) 

  
  

  
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 a

b
o

v
e

.

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

27



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
3

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 &

 C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
c
y
 

6
9

2
8

2
1

7
1

6
(1

0
5

)
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
7

,5
0

3
7

,9
2

6
8

,0
8

4
1

5
8

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 s
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

in
 i
n

c
o

m
e

, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 f

e
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
 l
e

tt
in

g
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

H
o

u
s
e

 

n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

ta
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
(2

5
7

)
(1

0
0

)
1

1
5

2
1

5
S

h
o

rt
fa

ll 
o

n
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
; 

w
o

rk
 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 S

y
s
te

m
s

6
,3

1
0

6
,1

5
2

6
,4

8
3

3
3

1
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

O
p

e
n

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s
 l
ic

e
n

c
e

s

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   

T
o

ta
l

1
4

,2
4

8
1

4
,7

9
9

1
5

,3
9

8
5

9
9

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
:

a
) 

  
  

  
 7

  
 c

o
s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

b
) 

  
  

  
 5

  
 c

o
s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 g
ro

s
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
m

c
) 

  
  

  
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 a

b
o

v
e

.

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
3

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

L
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

,7
5

0
1

,7
7

8
1

,8
8

8
1

1
0

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 c

o
s
ts

 p
lu

s
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 f

ro
m

 d
is

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

rt
fa

ll 
o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

D
e

m
o

c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
6

5
4

6
6

2
6

5
8

(4
)

M
e

m
b

e
rs

1
,5

9
1

1
,5

8
8

1
,4

7
7

(1
1

1
)

D
u

e
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

llo
w

a
n

c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
 v

a
c
a

n
t 

p
o

s
t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti
 F

ra
u

d
 T

e
a

m
7

2
2

7
2

2
7

2
3

1

E
le

c
ti
o

n
s

4
2

1
4

2
1

4
7

9
5

8
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 c

a
n

v
a

s
s
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

C
iv

il 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
1

7
5

1
7

5
1

7
4

(1
)

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 &
 I

n
fo

 R
ig

h
ts

 T
e

a
m

2
3

0
2

4
8

2
3

9
(9

)

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

rs
3

1
6

2
3

2
2

0
3

(2
9

)
S

a
la

ry
 u

n
d

e
r 

s
p

e
n

d

L
e

a
d

e
rs

 O
ff

ic
e

1
0

1
0

2
(8

)

In
s
u

ra
n

c
e

(1
0

)
(1

0
)

(1
0

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   

T
o

ta
l

5
,8

5
9

5
,8

2
6

5
,8

3
3

7

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
:

a
) 

  
  

  
2

  
 c

o
s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

b
) 

  
  

  
4

  
 c

o
s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 g
ro

s
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
m

c
) 

  
  

  
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 a

b
o

v
e

.

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

28



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

D
e

p
u

ty
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v

e

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
3

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s

1
1

5
6

0
6

3
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

F
in

a
n

c
e

3
,5

5
7

3
,8

8
1

3
,8

8
1

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
,9

4
8

2
,2

4
9

2
,2

4
4

(5
)

T
o

ta
l

5
,6

2
0

6
,1

9
0

6
,1

8
8

(2
)

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
:

a
) 

  
  

  
  

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

b
) 

  
  

  
  

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 g
ro

s
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
m

c
) 

  
  

  
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 a

b
o

v
e

.

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
3

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

L
a

n
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

(9
6

4
)

(9
6

4
)

(9
1

4
)

5
0

L
a

n
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 b
e

lo
w

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
.

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

/ 
C

e
m

 &
 C

re
m

1
,2

3
8

1
,2

5
0

1
,3

6
5

1
1

5
C

e
m

e
te

ry
 &

 C
re

m
a

to
ri
u

m
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 b
e

lo
w

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
. 

U
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

n
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 

re
p

a
ir
s
 o

n
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 a

n
d

 C
re

m
a

to
ri
u

m
. 

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 P
e

s
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
in

c
o

m
e

 d
u

e
 t

o
 u

n
u

s
u

a
lly

 l
o

w
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

W
a

s
p

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
.

P
la

n
n

in
g

4
7

8
5

3
3

5
4

0
7

S
lig

h
t 

o
v
e

r 
s
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 s

lig
h

t 
in

c
o

m
e

 b
e

lo
w

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
.

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 H

o
u

s
in

g
)

6
3

4
6

3
4

6
3

9
5

B
u

ild
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l
(6

6
5

)
(2

2
0

)
(2

7
7

)
(5

7
)

L
o

w
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
.

H
o

u
s
in

g
3

,6
2

3
3

,3
2

3
3

,4
2

5
1

0
2

P
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

s
h

o
rt

 t
e

rm
 T

A
, 

p
a

rt
ia

lly
 o

ff
s
e

t 
b

y
 v

a
c
a

n
t 

p
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 P

S
L

 i
n

c
o

m
e

.

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

(2
2

4
)

(1
7

5
)

(1
8

0
)

(5
)

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

1
,3

1
1

1
,3

2
4

1
,3

8
8

6
4

S
ta

ff
in

g
 P

re
s
s
u

re

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 I

n
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
/M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

2
,2

6
5

1
,9

9
6

2
,1

7
7

1
8

1
R

o
u

ti
n

e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 e

x
c
e

e
d

 b
u

d
g

e
t.

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 b
u

d
g

e
ts

 i
n

c
l.
 N

R
S

W
A

(8
9

7
)

(8
7

1
)

(8
5

7
)

1
4

G
re

e
n

s
p

a
c
e

s
4

,8
6

9
4

,9
6

3
4

,9
6

5
2

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
4

,0
8

7
4

,2
3

6
4

,1
2

7
(1

0
9

)
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 d
u

e
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ro
-a

c
ti
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
g

e
n

c
y
 s

ta
ff

R
e

fu
s
e

 (
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

n
d

 t
ra

d
e

 w
a

s
te

)
3

,2
7

1
3

,4
1

5
3

,4
3

5
2

0
O

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 s

ta
ff

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
fr

o
m

 S
tr

e
e

t 
C

le
a

n
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

.

P
a

rk
in

g
(9

7
9

)
(6

7
8

)
(4

0
5

)
2

7
3

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 l
o

w
 u

s
a

g
e

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
a

r 
p

a
rk

s
 e

v
e

n
 a

ft
e

r 
ta

ri
ff

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

ta
ri
ff

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
.

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

(1
6

5
)

(1
3

1
)

(2
3

9
)

(1
0

8
)

U
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 f

le
e

t 
c
o

s
ts

R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
3

,3
8

3
3

,5
3

1
3

,8
2

0
2

8
9

R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 p
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 l
o

w
e

r 
p

ri
c
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

o
r 

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 c

o
s
t 

p
re

s
s
u

re
 f

ro
m

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

in
fl
a

ti
o

n
.

S
tr

e
e

t 
L

ig
h

ti
n

g
5

,8
0

0
6

,3
9

6
6

,5
8

6
1

9
0

S
a

v
in

g
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 b

y
 l
e

g
a

l 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
M

S
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
2

1
1

2
2

3
1

7
5

(4
8

)
S

a
v
in

g
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 v
a

c
a

n
c
ie

s

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
1

,2
2

9
1

,2
8

5
1

,1
3

0
(1

5
5

)
S

a
v
in

g
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s

L
e

is
u

re
8

6
3

1
,3

6
4

1
,4

2
5

6
1

O
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 r
e

p
a

ir
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
t 

b
o

th
 H

e
n

d
o

n
 a

n
d

 F
in

c
h

le
y
 

W
O

M
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
0

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
2

9
,3

6
8

3
1

,4
3

4
3

2
,3

2
5

8
9

1

S
p

e
c

ia
l 

P
a

rk
in

g
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t

(6
,8

9
6

)
(7

,1
0

7
)

(7
,6

5
2

)
(5

4
5

)
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 r
e

a
lli

g
n

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

re
c
h

a
rg

e
s
 f

ro
m

 T
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 T

o
ta

l 
(i

n
c

 S
P

A
)

2
2

,4
7

2
2

4
,3

2
7

2
4

,6
7

3
3

4
6

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
:

a
) 

  
  

 8
  

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

b
) 

  
  

 2
  

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 g
ro

s
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
m

c
) 

  
  

  
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 a

b
o

v
e

.

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

29



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 B

D
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
' 
G

ra
n

t

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
3

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

C
e

n
tr

a
lly

 R
e

ta
in

e
d

2
7

,6
3

5
3

0
,8

1
1

2
9

,5
2

9
(1

,2
8

2
)

O
v
e

ra
ll 

th
e

re
 a

re
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
v
e

r 
a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
s
p

e
n

d
s
 o

n
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 c

e
n

tr
a

lly
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 c

o
s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 

b
u

t 
th

e
 m

a
in

 u
n

d
e

rs
p

e
n

d
 i
n

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 c

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c
ie

s
.

IS
B

2
2

3
,0

1
4

1
7

0
,7

4
2

1
7

0
,7

4
2

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

D
S

G
 &

 L
S

C
 G

ra
n

t
(2

5
0

,7
8

1
)

(2
0

1
,6

4
4

)
(2

0
1

,6
4

4
)

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

T
o

ta
l

(1
3

2
)

(9
1

)
(1

,3
7

3
)

(1
,2

8
2

)

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
:

a
) 

  
  

 1
2

  
  

c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

b
) 

  
  

 9
  

  
 c

o
s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 g
ro

s
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
m

c
) 

  
  

  
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 a

b
o

v
e

.

H
o

u
s

in
g

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 A

c
c

o
u

n
t

O
ri

g
in

a
l

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t 

V
1

Q
3

F
o

re
c

a
s

t

2
0

1
2

/1
3

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

£
0

0
0

L
B

B
 R

e
ta

in
e

d
1

,5
4

2
2

3
7

1
1

2
(1

2
5

)
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 o
n

 s
a

la
ri
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
u

n
n

in
g

 c
o

s
ts

H
R

A
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
1

,1
2

6
1

,1
2

6
(2

1
6

)
(1

,3
4

2
)

M
o

re
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e

c
o

v
e

ra
b

le
 f

ro
m

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 t
h

e
n

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 a
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re

H
R

A
 O

th
e

r 
In

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 (

n
e

t)
(5

,0
3

4
)

(3
,7

2
9

)
(9

,4
5

6
)

(5
,7

2
7

)
L

o
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 b

u
d

g
e

te
d

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

ra
te

 p
a

y
a

b
le

 o
n

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
lo

a
n

s
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 r

e
n

ta
l 

in
c
o

m
e

 f
ro

m
 l
o

w
e

r 
v
o

id
 l
o

s
s
 r

a
te

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 b

u
d

g
e

te
d

 s
to

c
k
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 &

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 o

n
 M

R
R

 f
in

a
n

c
in

g
 H

R
A

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

5
7

6
5

7
6

5
7

6
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 -
 

In
te

re
s
t 

o
n

 B
a

la
n

c
e

s
(8

0
)

(8
0

)
(8

8
)

(8
)

H
R

A
 S

u
rp

lu
s
/D

e
fi
c
it
 f

o
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r

1
,8

7
0

1
,8

7
0

1
,8

7
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 -

 

T
o

ta
l

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(7

,2
0

2
)

(7
,2

0
2

)

W
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 n

e
t 

o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
:

a
) 

  
  

2
  

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
,0

0
0

b
) 

  
  

1
  

  
c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

v
e

r 
£

5
0

,0
0

0
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 c
o

s
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
’s

 g
ro

s
s
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
is

 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n
 £

1
m

c
) 

  
  

  
A

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 o
v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
s
 o

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 a

b
o

v
e

.

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

V
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

30



2
0
1
2
/1

3
 C

a
p

it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C

if
 A

d
d

it
io

n
s
/

D
e
le

ti
o

n
s

if
S

li
p

p
a
g

e
/

A
c
c
e
le

ra
te

d

S
p

e
n

d

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

a
p
it
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
G

ra
n
t

(1
,0

2
6

)

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

a
p
it
a
lis

e
d
 R

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie

s
C

a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(2

,1
7
8

)
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

IS
C

a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
1

0

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

IS
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

3
0

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 C

e
n
tr

e
C

a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

,9
0
0
)

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

C
T

V
 I
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
2
0

2

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

C
T

V
 I
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
1
7

5

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 -

 A
llo

c
a
te

d
G

ra
n
t

(4
)

A
llo

c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 u
rg

e
n
t 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 -

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 M

a
n

o
rs

id
e

 t
o

 M
o

d
e

rn
is

a
ti
o

n
 -

 M
e

a
d

w
a

y

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 -

 A
llo

c
a
te

d
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
1

)
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 u
rg

e
n
t 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 -

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 M

a
n

o
rs

id
e

 t
o

 M
o

d
e

rn
is

a
ti
o

n
 -

 M
e

a
d

w
a

y

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

u
p
il 

R
e
fe

ra
l 
U

n
it
 -

 M
e
a
d
w

a
y

G
ra

n
t

4
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 u
rg

e
n

t 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 -

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 M

a
n

o
rs

id
e

 t
o

 M
o

d
e

rn
is

a
ti
o

n
 -

 M
e

a
d

w
a

y

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

u
p
il 

R
e
fe

ra
l 
U

n
it
 -

 M
e
a
d
w

a
y

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

1
1

A
llo

c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 u
rg

e
n

t 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 -

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 M

a
n

o
rs

id
e

 t
o

 M
o

d
e

rn
is

a
ti
o

n
 -

 M
e

a
d

w
a

y

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
M

o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(7
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
E

x
te

n
d
e
d
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

G
ra

n
t

(1
9
8

)
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 E
x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 O

th
e

r 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
O

th
e
r 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s

G
ra

n
t

1
9

8
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 E
x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 O

th
e

r 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 -

 A
llo

c
a
te

d
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
9

)
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 T
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 O
th

e
r 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 -

 A
llo

c
a
te

d
G

ra
n
t

(8
)

A
llo

c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 T
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 O
th

e
r 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
O

th
e
r 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

2
9

A
llo

c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 T
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 O
th

e
r 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
O

th
e
r 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s

G
ra

n
t

8
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 T
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 E
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 O
th

e
r 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
B

ro
a
d
fi
e
ld

s
 E

x
te

n
s
io

n
C

a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(3

5
0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

S
C

IP
 -

 W
h
it
in

g
s
 H

ill
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(5
0
0

)
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 P
S

C
IP

 W
h

it
in

g
s
 H

ill
 t

o
 u

rg
e

n
t 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 M

ill
 H

ill
 E

a
s
t

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 M

ill
 H

ill
 E

a
s
t

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

5
0

0
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 P
S

C
IP

 W
h

it
in

g
s
 H

ill
 t

o
 u

rg
e

n
t 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 M

ill
 H

ill
 E

a
s
t

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 M

ill
 H

ill
 E

a
s
t

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(3
1
4
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 M

ill
 H

ill
 E

a
s
t

G
ra

n
t

(1
,1

3
4
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 O

ri
o
n
/B

le
s
s
e
d
 

D
o
m

in
ic

G
ra

n
t

(4
0
6
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 O

ri
o
n
/B

le
s
s
e
d
 

D
o
m

in
ic

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(4

5
0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 M

o
s
s
 H

a
ll

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

,7
8
2
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 B

ru
n
s
w

ic
k
 P

a
rk

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

,3
3
0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 M

a
rt

in
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
,8

6
0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

a
n
a
n
t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 U

n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
3

)
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 u
rg

e
n
t 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 -

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 u

n
a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 N
o

rt
h

w
a

y
/F

a
ir
w

a
y

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

P
S

C
IP

) 
- 

N
o
rt

h
w

a
y
/F

a
ir
w

a
y

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

2
3

A
llo

c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 u
rg

e
n

t 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 -

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
t 

e
x
p

a
n

s
io

n
s
 u

n
a

llo
c
a

te
d

 t
o

 N
o

rt
h

w
a

y
/F

a
ir
w

a
y

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
M

a
jo

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
R

e
b
u
ild

 -
 H

y
d
e

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
)

D
e
le

ti
o
n
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

S
C

IP
 -

 B
ro

a
d
fi
e
ld

s
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
1
0

)
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

S
C

IP
 -

 W
h
it
in

g
s
 H

ill
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
0
0

)
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 P
S

C
IP

 W
h

it
in

g
s
 H

ill
 t

o
 u

rg
e

n
t 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 M

ill
 H

ill
 E

a
s
t

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

h
ri
s
ts

 C
o
lle

g
e

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

2
0

0
A

llo
c
a
ti
n
g
 m

o
n
e
y
 f

ro
m

 P
S

C
IP

 W
h

it
in

g
s
 H

ill
 t

o
 u

rg
e

n
t 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 p
la

c
e

s
 M

ill
 H

ill
 E

a
s
t

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
E

a
s
t 
B

a
rn

e
t

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

)
R

e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
E

a
s
t 
B

a
rn

e
t

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
4
9
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

h
ri
s
t's

 c
o
lle

g
e

G
ra

n
t

(4
8
5
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

h
ri
s
t's

 c
o
lle

g
e

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
0
0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

o
p
th

a
ll

G
ra

n
t

(1
8
5
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 C
h
ild

s
 H

ill
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(9
6

)
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
1
4
-1

9
 S

E
N

 -
 O

a
k
le

ig
h

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

1
0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
1
4
-1

9
 S

E
N

 -
 O

a
k
le

ig
h

R
e
v
e
n
u
e

(3
6
5
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
1
4
-1

9
 S

E
N

 -
 O

a
k
le

ig
h

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(4
1
7
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
A

im
in

g
 H

ig
h
 f
o
r 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 -

 S
h
o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s

G
ra

n
t

(4
5
5
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

C
F

 -
 K

it
c
h
e
n
 &

 D
in

in
g

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(5

0
)

D
e
le

ti
o
n
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

C
F

 -
 K

it
c
h
e
n
 &

 D
in

in
g

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
4

)
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

u
p
il 

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
U

n
it

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
,0

0
0

)
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

n
o

t 
g

o
in

g
 a

h
e

a
d

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
E

a
rl
y
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

2
0

0
A

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
O

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(7

1
)

D
e
le

ti
o
n
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

C
o
lin

d
a
le

)
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
0
0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

C
F

 -
 K

it
c
h
e
n
 &

 D
in

in
g
 (

G
a
rd

e
n
 S

u
b
u
rb

)
G

ra
n
t

(3
4
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
S

u
re

s
ta

rt
G

ra
n
t

(1
5
0

)
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 -

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
O

th
e
r 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s

G
ra

n
t

1
5

0

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
M

o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n

G
ra

n
t

(1
9
9
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
M

o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(9
8
2
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s

G
ra

n
t

(1
,3

6
6
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(8

4
0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
,0

3
5
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

 (
u
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
)

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

,6
1
7
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

 (
u
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
)

R
e
v
e
n
u
e

(6
7
9
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
U

rg
e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s
 -

 P
e
rm

 (
u
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
)

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
,1

7
5
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
1
4
-1

9
 S

E
N

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
3
1
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

C
F

 -
 K

it
c
h
e
n
 &

 D
in

in
g

G
ra

n
t

(1
6
7
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
E

a
rl
y
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

(2
0
0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
e
-f

in
a
n
c
ia

ls
C

a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(3

8
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
e
-f

in
a
n
c
ia

ls
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

(1
8
0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 m

o
n
e
y
 w

it
h
in

 p
ro

je
c
t 

o
v
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 y
e

a
rs

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
M

o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n

G
ra

n
t

1
8

6
R

e
p
ro

fi
lin

g

C
h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
M

ill
 H

ill
 E

a
s
t

G
ra

n
t

(1
8
6

)
R

e
p
ro

fi
lin

g

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
IS

 R
e
fr

e
s
h

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

0
)

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
D

e
p
o
t 
R

e
lo

c
a
ti
o
n

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

1
,5

4
8
)

It
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 

a
 n

e
w

 s
it
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

d
 t

h
is

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 s

ta
rt

 p
o

s
t 

a
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

3

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 I
M

 P
la

tf
o
rm

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

,9
5
8
)

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
2
/1

3
A

rt
s
 D

e
p
o
t 
L
if
t

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

8
)

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

2
0
1
2
/1

3
E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 C

o
m

m
a
n
d
 C

e
n
tr

e
C

a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(2

9
)

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

re
q

u
e

s
t

S
e
rv

ic
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

F
u

n
d

in
g

 T
y
p

e
Y

e
a
r

31



2
0
1
2
/1

3
 C

a
p

it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 A

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 C

if
 A

d
d

it
io

n
s
/

D
e
le

ti
o

n
s

if
S

li
p

p
a
g

e
/

A
c
c
e
le

ra
te

d

S
p

e
n

d

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

E
x

p
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

re
q

u
e

s
t

S
e
rv

ic
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

F
u

n
d

in
g

 T
y
p

e
Y

e
a
r

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 A
re

a
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 I
n
fa

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
1
0

6
4
7

8
S

u
b
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 E
P

R
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 f

ro
m

 Q
2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 A
re

a
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 I
n
fa

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
G

ra
n
t

2
2

0
S

u
b
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 E
P

R
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 f

ro
m

 Q
2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 A
re

a
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 I
n
fa

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
1
0

6
(2

,6
2
3
)

R
e
-p

ro
fi
lin

g
 o

f 
b
u
d
g

e
t 

to
 f

u
rt

u
re

 y
e

a
rs

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 A
re

a
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 I
n
fa

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
G

ra
n
t

(2
,3

9
8
)

R
e
-p

ro
fi
lin

g
 o

f 
b
u
d
g

e
t 

to
 f

u
rt

u
re

 y
e

a
rs

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 A
re

a
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 I
n
fa

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

(4
,9

8
0
)

R
e
-p

ro
fi
lin

g
 o

f 
b
u
d
g

e
t 

to
 f

u
rt

u
re

 y
e

a
rs

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 A
re

a
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 I
n
fa

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
1
0

6
1
7
0

R
e
-p

ro
fi
lin

g
 o

f 
b
u
d
g

e
t 

to
 f

u
rt

u
re

 y
e

a
rs

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 A
re

a
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 I
n
fa

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
G

ra
n
t

1
4
0

R
e
-p

ro
fi
lin

g
 o

f 
b
u
d
g

e
t 

to
 f

u
rt

u
re

 y
e

a
rs

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

ra
h
a
m

e
 P

a
rk

 A
re

a
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
 W

o
rk

s
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(5
,0

0
0
)

R
e
-p

ro
fi
lin

g
 o

f 
b
u
d
g

e
t 

to
 f

u
rt

u
re

 y
e

a
rs

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

,2
0
0
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t

o
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 n
o

t 
s
ta

rt
in

g

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
2
4
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t

o
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 n
o

t 
s
ta

rt
in

g

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
M

ill
 H

ill
 E

a
s
t

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

0
0
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t

o
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
O

u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 F

u
n
d
 -

 C
ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d

s
1
0

6
(1

3
2
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t

o
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
O

u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 F

u
n
d
 -

 C
ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(9
8
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t

o
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
O

u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 F

u
n
d
 -

 C
ri
c
k
le

w
o
o
d

G
ra

n
t

(1
2
0
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t

o
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
O

u
te

r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 F

u
n
d
 -

 N
o
rt

h
 F

in
c
h
le

y
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(7
5
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t

o
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
H

e
n
d
o
n
 C

e
m

e
tr

y
 &

 C
re

m
a
to

ri
u
m

 E
n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

C
a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

5
0
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t

o
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
D

is
a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
G

ra
n
t

1
9

1
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
G

ra
n
t 

A
w

a
rd

e
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
D

is
a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

1
6

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 (

fr
o

m
 a

 r
e

fu
n

d
 o

f 
a

 c
h

e
q

u
e

)

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
D

is
a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
C

a
p

it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
(1

,0
0
0
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t

o
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

lo
w

 s
ta

rt
 a

t 
th

e
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
E

m
p
ty

 P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(4
0
0
)

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 t

o
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

lo
w

 s
ta

rt
 a

t 
th

e
 b

e
g

in
n

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 y
e

a
r

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

C
T

V
 i
n
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
C

a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
(6

2
)

S
lip

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
s
 o

w
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

C
T

V
 i
n
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
C

a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
(2

2
)

S
lip

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 r

e
te

n
ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
s
 o

w
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 f

in
a

lis
e

d
.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

C
T

V
 I
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

C
a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
(2

0
2

)
T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

th
e
 C

C
T

V
 R

e
v
ie

w
 (

S
a

fe
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 O

n
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
W

a
v
e

 2
 P

ro
je

c
t)

 t
o

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

C
T

V
 I
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

C
a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
(1

7
5

)
T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

th
e
 C

C
T

V
 R

e
v
ie

w
 (

S
a

fe
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 O

n
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 
W

a
v
e

 2
 P

ro
je

c
t)

 t
o

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

a
rk

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
0
)

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

a
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

ri
n
c
e
s
s
 &

 E
d
g
w

a
re

b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

s
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

2
4

S
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rk

s
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 p

la
y
 a

re
a

s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

a
rk

 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
4

)
S

u
b
s
ti
tu

te
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rk

s
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 p

la
y
 a

re
a

s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 Z

o
n
e
s

s
1
0

6
2
7

S
lip

 b
a
c
k
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o

d
a

te
 a

c
c
e

le
ra

te
d

 s
p

e
n

d
 o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
a

rk
in

g
 z

o
n

e
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
A

e
ro

d
ro

m
e
 R

o
a
d
 -

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
e
d
e
s
tr

ia
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(5
)

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

a
te

g
o

ry

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

y
c
lin

g
 o

n
 G

re
e
n
w

a
y
s

G
ra

n
t

(4
)

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 f
in

a
l 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
L
o
c
a
l 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 F
u
n
d
in

g
G

ra
n
t

(1
0
2

)
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
E

n
a
b
lin

g
 W

o
rk

s
G

ra
n
t

6
1

(8
)

A
d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 o

f 
re

m
a

in
d

e
r 

o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
d

 c
a

rr
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
G

ra
n
t

(9
)

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
p

e
n

d
 &

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
th

is
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 H

D
5

4
, 

n
il 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

o
rr

id
o
rs

, 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 M

e
a
s
u
re

s
G

ra
n
t

9
C

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
p

e
n

d
 &

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
th

is
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 H

D
5

4
, 

n
il 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

o
rr

id
o
rs

, 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 M

e
a
s
u
re

s
G

ra
n
t

(1
,2

8
7

)
2
0
1
1
 f

in
a
l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
ts

; 
&

 2
0
1

2
 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(6
0

)
1
) 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g

. 
N

il 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t;

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

s
1
0

6
7

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
1
0
6
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

5
1
) 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f

u
n
d

in
g

. 
N

il 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

s
1
0

6
(9

)
R

e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 s

1
0
6
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

s
1
0

6
(1

7
3
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 s

1
0
6
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

s
1
0

6
(2

1
)

s
1
0
6
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
le

ti
o
n
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

a
rr

ia
g
e
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 F

o
o
tw

a
y

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(6
2

)
C

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

a
te

g
o

ry

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
S

a
ra

c
e
n
s

s
1
0

6
(4

0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 s

1
0
6
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
S

a
ra

c
e
n
s

G
ra

n
t

(5
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
S

a
ra

c
e
n
s

s
1
0

6
(5

0
)

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

. 
N

il 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
S

a
ra

c
e
n
s

G
ra

n
t

5
0

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 s

tr
e
a
m

. 
N

il 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

s
1
0

6
(5

)
C

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

a
te

g
o

ry

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
6
)

S
lip

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 
P

la
n
 f

u
n

d
in

g

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
R

o
a
d
 T

ra
ff
ic

 A
c
t 
- 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 Z

o
n
e
s

s
1
0

6
5

C
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

a
te

g
o

ry

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
R

o
a
d
 T

ra
ff
ic

 A
c
t 
- 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 Z

o
n
e
s

s
1
0

6
(8

1
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 w

o
rk

s
, 

p
re

d
o
m

in
a

n
tl
y
 s

1
0

6
, 

a
n

d
 s

p
e

n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
R

o
a
d
 T

ra
ff
ic

 A
c
t 
- 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 Z

o
n
e
s

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(3
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 w

o
rk

s
, 

p
re

d
o
m

in
a

n
tl
y
 s

1
0

6
, 

a
n

d
 s

p
e

n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
F

o
o
tw

a
y
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
-2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

s
1
0

6
(7

1
)

R
e
m

o
v
e
 o

ld
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 l
in

e
s
. 

N
il 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
F

o
o
tw

a
y
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
-2

0
1
0
/1

1
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

s
1
0

6
7

1
R

e
m

o
v
e
 o

ld
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 l
in

e
s
. 

N
il 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
F

o
o
tw

a
y
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
-2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
7

)
R

e
m

o
v
e
 o

ld
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 l
in

e
s
. 

N
il 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
F

o
o
tw

a
y
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
-2

0
1
0
/1

1
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

2
7

R
e
m

o
v
e
 o

ld
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 l
in

e
s
. 

N
il 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

e
ff

e
c
t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
F

o
o
tw

a
y
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
-2

0
1
0
/1

1
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

s
1
0

6
(2

2
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 s

1
0
6
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
F

o
o
tw

a
y
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
-2

0
1
0
/1

1
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
3
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 s

1
0
6
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

ra
ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 s

1
0
6
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

ra
ff
ic

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

s
1
0

6
(2

)
R

e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 s

1
0
6
 w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
W

a
s
te

 e
tc

C
a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
(9

0
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 W

a
s
te

 C
o

n
ta

in
e

rs

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

le
a
n
s
in

g
R

C
C

O
(6

0
)

W
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 l
e
a

s
e
 &

 n
o
t 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

th
is

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r.

 P
o

s
it
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
-e

v
a

lu
a

te
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
3

.

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

o
rr

id
o
rs

G
ra

n
t

(1
3
8

)
F

in
a
l 
a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a

c
c
o

u
n

t

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

a
p
it
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

1
2

2
C

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

a
te

g
o

ry

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

a
p
it
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
(2

9
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
p
e
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

a
p
it
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(3
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
p
e
n
d

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
P

a
rk

in
g

C
a
p

it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
(7

4
)

R
e
p
ro

fi
lin

g
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 n
o
w

 s
c
h
e

d
u

le
d

 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 e

a
rl
y
 2

0
1

3
/1

4

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

a
ilw

a
y
 B

ri
d
g
e
s

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(2
4
)

P
a
rt

ia
l 
s
lip

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

o
u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
re

te
n

ti
o

n
 f

u
n

d
s
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 b
ri
d

g
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

w
o

rk
s

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t,
P

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
0
1
2
/1

3
D

ra
in

a
g
e

B
o
rr

o
w

in
g

(1
0
2
)

S
lip

 f
o
rw

a
rd

 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 n

o
t 

in
it
ia

te
d

 b
e

fo
re

 y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
ti
m

e
s
c
a

le
s
 

H
R

A
2
0
1
2
/1

3
C

a
s
h
 I
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e

M
R

A
(3

7
5

)
D

e
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

d
u
e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 s
to

p
p

in
g

 -
 T

h
e

re
fo

re
 n

o
 m

o
re

 s
p

e
n

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
2

-1
3

H
R

A
2
0
1
2
/1

3
H

R
A

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

M
R

A
(4

,0
0
0

)
B

u
d
g
e
t 

to
 b

e
 d

e
le

te
d
 d

u
e
 a

s
 n

o
 m

o
re

 R
e

g
e

n
 w

o
rk

 t
a

k
in

g
 p

la
c
e

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r

(9
,2

8
1

)
(5

4
,3

0
8
)

32



C
a
p

it
a
l 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 D

S
e
rv

ic
e

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 L
a

te
s

t 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t

A
d

d
it

io
n

s
/ 

(D
e

le
ti

o
n

s
) 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 F
e

b
 

C
R

C

(S
li

p
p

a
g

e
) 

/ 

A
c

c
e

le
ra

te
d

 S
p

e
n

d
 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 F
e

b
 

C
R

C

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

F
o

re
c

a
s

t 
to

 y
e

a
r-

e
n

d
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t

%
 s

li
p

p
a

g
e

 o
f 

2
0

1
2

/1
3

 

A
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 A

d
u
lt
s
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s

2
,1

4
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,0

2
6

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,1

1
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,1

1
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,0

2
6

)

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

2
,1

4
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,0

2
6

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,1

1
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,1

1
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,0

2
6

)
0

%

C
a
p
it
a
lis

e
d
 R

e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
ie

s
2

,1
7

8
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

,1
7

8
)

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

,1
7

8
)

C
e
n

tr
a
l 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

2
,1

7
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
,1

7
8

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
,1

7
8

)
0

%

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
,7

8
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
1

7
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(1
,9

0
0

)
1

,3
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

,3
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,4
8

3
)

(6
8

%
)

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

2
,7

8
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

4
1

7
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(1
,9

0
0

)
1

,3
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

,3
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,4
8

3
)

(6
8

%
)

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 M
o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n
 &

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s

5
,4

5
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
0

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(1
,1

8
8

)
4

,4
6

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

,4
6

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(9

8
7

)
(2

2
%

)

U
rg

e
n
t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 P
la

c
e
s

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 -

 A
llo

c
a
te

d
 

2
,0

2
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(5
2

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,9

7
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,9

7
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(5
2

)

O
th

e
r 

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s

3
,2

0
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
8

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(3
,2

4
1

)
3

5
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
3

5
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(2

,8
5

6
)

(1
0

1
%

)

B
ro

a
d
fi
e
ld

s
1

,4
0

8
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(3
5

0
)

1
,0

5
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,0

5
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(3
5

0
)

(2
5

%
)

M
ill

 H
ill

 E
a
s
t

2
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
1

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(1
,4

4
8

)
8

6
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
8

6
6

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(1

,1
3

4
)

(7
2

%
)

O
ri
o
n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

/ 
b
le

s
s
e
d
 D

o
m

in
ic

3
,5

9
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(8

5
6

)
2

,7
3

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

,7
3

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(8

5
6

)
(2

4
%

)

M
o
s
s
 h

a
ll 

In
fa

n
ts

 a
n
d
 J

u
n
io

rs
2

,0
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,7

8
2

)
2

1
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
2

1
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(1

,7
8

2
)

(8
9

%
)

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 P

a
rk

 
1

,5
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,3

3
0

)
1

7
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
1

7
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(1

,3
3

0
)

(8
9

%
)

M
e
n
o
ra

h
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n

1
,6

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,6

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,6

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

S
t 
M

a
ry

's
 a

n
d
 S

t 
J
o
h
n
s

3
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

O
th

e
r 

P
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
E

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
s
 -

 A
llo

c
a
te

d
2

,0
0

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,8

6
0

)
1

4
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
1

4
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(1

,8
6

0
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(9

3
%

)

U
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
4

,4
9

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

3
)

(4
,4

7
1

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(4

,4
9

4
)

(9
9

%
)

S
u
re

s
ta

rt
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
1

5
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(1

5
0

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(1
5

0
)

M
a
jo

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
R

e
b
u
ild

 T
o
ta

l
2

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(2

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
)

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
1

,4
1

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(7

8
7

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
2

3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

6
2

3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(7
8

7
)

E
a
s
t 
B

a
rn

e
t 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 R
e
b
u
ild

1
,1

7
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

5
0

)
9

2
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
9

2
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(2

5
0

)
(2

1
%

)

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

1
,8

3
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
0

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(8
7

0
)

1
,1

6
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,1

6
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(6
7

0
)

(4
7

%
)

O
th

e
r 

S
c
h
e
m

e
s

4
,6

5
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,2

3
9

)
(2

,2
9

7
)

1
,1

1
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
,1

1
8

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(3
,5

3
6

)
(4

9
%

)

C
h

il
d

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

4
1

,5
1

7
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,1

5
3

)
(1

9
,9

4
3

)
2

0
,4

2
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

0
,4

2
1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

1
,0

9
6

)
(4

8
%

)

C
a
p
it
a
l 
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

(7
9

8
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(7

9
8

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(7
9

8
)

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

C
a
p

it
a
l 
S

c
h

e
m

e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
d

 b
y
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
(7

9
8

)
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(7
9

8
)

(7
9

8
)

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
0

%

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
9

,1
3

8
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
0

)
(1

3
,5

2
4

)
5

,6
0

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

,6
0

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

3
,5

3
4

)
(7

1
%

)

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
9

,1
3

8
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
0

)
(1

3
,5

2
4

)
5

,6
0

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
5

,6
0

4
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

3
,5

3
4

)
(7

1
%

)

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 P

ro
je

c
ts

2
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

9
)

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
9

)

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

2
9

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(2

9
)

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(2
9

)
(1

0
0

%
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
e
p

u
ty

 C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

0
%

C
C

T
V

4
6

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(3
7

7
)

(8
4

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(4

6
1

)
(1

8
%

)

G
re

e
n
s
p
a
c
e
s
 &

 L
e
is

u
re

6
7

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

0
)

6
6

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

6
6

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(1
0

)
(1

%
)

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 -

 n
o
n
-T

fL
9

,1
9

6
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

9
)

(4
1

3
)

8
,7

6
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

8
,7

6
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(4
3

2
)

(4
%

)

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 -

 T
fL

6
,4

4
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(1
,4

7
0

)
(8

)
4

,9
6

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
4

,9
6

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

,4
7

8
)

(0
%

)

P
a
rk

in
g

5
2

9
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(1
5

8
)

3
7

6
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

3
7

6
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(1
5

3
)

(3
0

%
)

W
a
s
te

2
9

3
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

5
0

)
1

4
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
1

4
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(1

5
0

)
(5

1
%

)

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

1
6

,7
7

2
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

6
9

8
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(1
6

,5
3

9
)

9
3

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

9
3

1
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
   

(1
5

,8
4

1
)

(9
9

%
)

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
3

,0
2

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
2

0
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(1

,0
0

0
)

2
,2

2
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2
,2

2
7

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(7
9

3
)

(3
3

%
)

H
o
u
s
in

g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

O
th

e
r 

P
ro

je
c
ts

1
,5

1
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(5

5
0

)
9

6
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
9

6
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

   
(5

5
0

)
(3

6
%

)

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t,
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
3

8
,9

0
3

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(9

5
6

)
(1

8
,9

1
2

)
1

9
,0

3
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

9
,0

3
5

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
(1

9
,8

6
8

)
(4

9
%

)

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
0
6
,6

9
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(4
,9

0
6
)

(5
4
,3

0
8
)

4
7
,4

7
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
7
,4

7
7

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(5
9
,2

1
4
)

(5
1

%
)

H
R

A
 C

a
p
it
a
l

2
1

,4
4

0
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(4
,3

7
5

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
7

,0
6

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1
7

,0
6

5
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

(4
,3

7
5

)
0

%

T
o

ta
l 
C

a
p

it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
*

1
2
8
,1

3
1

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(9
,2

8
1
)

(5
4
,3

0
8
)

6
4
,5

4
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
4
,5

4
2

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(6
3
,5

8
9
)

(4
2
%

)

*E
x
c
lu

d
e
s
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

33



C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r 

T
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ts

 t
h

o
s
e

 r
is

k
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

t 
q

u
a

rt
e

r 
3

, 
th

e
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 r
is

k
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
e

a
c
h

 r
is

k
. 
 T

h
e

 r
is

k
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
ile

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
ri

s
k
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 a

t 
a

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
le

v
e

l 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 t
o

 M
e

m
b

e
rs

. 

IM
P

A
C

T

1
2

3
4

5
S

C
O

R
E

N
e

g
li

g
ib

le
 

M
in

o
r

M
o

d
e
ra

te
 

M
a
jo

r
C

a
ta

s
tr

o
p

h
ic

 

5
A

lm
o

s
t 

C
e
rt

a
in

 
0

0
0

0
0

4
L

ik
e
ly

 
0

0
0

4
0

3
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

0
1

6
5

0

2
U

n
li
k
e
ly

 
0

0
0

0
0

PROBABILITY

1
R

a
re

 
0

0
0

0
0

R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

P
e
o
p
le

 –
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 

th
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
, 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l 
a
n

d
 m

a
n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
 

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

C
a

u
s
e

: 
ti
m

in
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 m

a
y
 m

e
a

n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

ig
h

t 

M
a

jo
r

4
L
ik

e
ly

4
H

ig
h

1
6

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 
R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 
T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
m

o
v
in

g
 t
o

 n
e

w
 

p
ro

v
id

e
r 

a
n
d

 n
e

w
 g

ro
u
p

s
 w

it
h

in
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

 O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

T
re

a
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

P
o

s
s
ib

le
 

3
M

e
d

iu
m

-
H

ig
h

9

R
is

k
 C

o
m

m
e

n
ta

ry
 –

 S
in

c
e

 l
a
s
t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 d
a

te
 (

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

) 
th

e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

c
o
ri
n
g

 o
f 
ri
s
k
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 

a
n

d
 m

o
b

ili
s
a

ti
o

n
 –

 p
e

o
p

le
/c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 t
h

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 r

is
k
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 j
u
d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

a
v
in

g
s
, 

d
e

p
e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
. 
R

is
k
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
t 
in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 

to
 t
h

e
 E

u
ro

z
o
n

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 a
 c

a
u

ti
o
u

s
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 a
ro

u
n

d
 T

re
a
s
u

ry
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
. 
 

O
th

e
r 

ri
s
k
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 b

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 i
s
 i
n

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
W

e
lf
a

re
 

R
e
fo

rm
, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 g

iv
e
n
 t
h
a
t 
re

g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

v
e

rt
in

g
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

t 
p

a
c
e

 w
it
h

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 d

e
m

a
n
d

s
. 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
b

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

n
d

 i
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e
rn

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
. 

34



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 l
e

a
d

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 o

f 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 a

n
d

 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
. 
  

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e

n
c
e

: 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l 

m
a

y
 s

u
ff

e
r 

a
n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

e
x
p
e

ri
e

n
c
e

 o
r 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
r 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
. 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
a

re
a
s
 o

f 
c
o
n

c
e

rn
, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
‘m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 t
h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
’ 
in

d
ic

e
s
 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

S
e
n

io
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
T

e
a

m
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 f
o

r 
e

a
c
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
O

n
e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 –

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

m
o
b
ili

s
a
ti
o
n
/t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n

 t
o
 t
h
e
 B

o
a
rd

. 

W
e
lf
a
re

 a
n
d
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
R

e
fo

rm
 –

 t
h
e
re

 
is

 a
 r

is
k
 t
h
a
t 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
p
o

lic
y
 m

a
y
 

h
a
v
e
 u

n
in

te
n
d
e
d
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 s

e
t 

in
 t
h

e
 w

id
e
r 

c
o

n
te

x
t 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
h

a
n
g

e
. 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 t
h
a

t 
th

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
ir
e
c
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
s
 f
ro

m
 

im
p
le

m
e
n

ti
n
g
 a

 n
e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
, 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
c
o

s
t 
p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 f
ro

m
 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
to

 l
o
c
a
l 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r 
o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 f
ro

m
 o

n
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 

a
n

o
th

e
r.

C
a
u
s
e
: 
C

e
n
tr

a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
, 
a
im

in
g
 t
o
 s

im
p
lif

y
 

th
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
c
re

a
te

 t
h
e
 

ri
g
h
t 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 g

e
t 
m

o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 
in

to
 w

o
rk

, 
p
ro

te
c
t 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

, 
a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

fa
ir
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 

ta
x
 p

a
y
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
la

im
in

g
 

M
a

jo
r

4
L
ik

e
ly

4
H

ig
h

1
6

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 
W

e
lf
a

re
 R

e
fo

rm
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
) 

in
 

p
la

c
e
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
n
d
 t
o
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e
r 

w
e

lf
a

re
 

a
n
d
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
re

fo
rm

. 
A

 c
ri
s
is

 f
u

n
d

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
£
2
m

 
in

 D
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a
ry

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

fo
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
. 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 s

u
p

p
ly

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 d

e
m

a
n

d
, 

N
E

E
T

s
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
 t
o

 m
o

n
it
o

r 

T
re

a
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

P
o

s
s
ib

le
 

3
M

e
d
iu

m
H

ig
h

9

35



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
ly

 a
ff
e
c
t 
th

o
s
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
a
lly

 
d
is

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
. 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 –

 g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 

s
lo

w
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
 t
h
e
re

 
is

 a
 r

is
k
 o

f 
k
e
y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 o

v
e
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
fe

w
 

y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

o
v
e
r 

s
u
c
h

 u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
. 
T

h
is

 r
is

k
 m

a
y
 

b
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
o
c
a

lly
 p

e
n

d
in

g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 j
u
d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
 f
o
r 

N
S

C
S

O
 a

n
d

 D
R

S
 o

u
ts

o
u
rc

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 (
w

o
rs

t 
c
a

s
e

 s
c
e

n
a

ri
o

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
).

 

C
a
u
s
e
: 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

c
u

ts
 t
o
 l
o
c
a

l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 a

n
d
 

th
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 o

f 
a

n
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
S

p
e
n
d
in

g
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A

u
tu

m
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 
E

ro
s
io

n
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
e
rv

e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

r 
n
o
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

k
e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o

 t
h
e
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

. 

M
a

jo
r

4
P

o
s
s
ib

le
3

M
e
d
iu

m
H

ig
h

1
2

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d

 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
s
a
v
in

g
 p

la
n
s
 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
B

u
d
g
e
t 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

b
e

in
g

 a
d

h
e
re

d
 t
o

. 
  

R
e
c
o
v
e

ry
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 
o

p
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 w

it
h

 
o

v
e
rs

p
e

n
d

s
. 

V
a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 i
n
 u

s
e
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
M

e
d

iu
m

 
T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

T
o
le

ra
t

e
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
a

jo
r

4
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

3
M

e
d
iu

m
H

ig
h

1
2

36



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

T
re

a
s
u
ry

 –
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
re

a
k
 u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 E

u
ro

 a
n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 d
e

fa
u

lt
s
 c

o
u

ld
 l
e

a
v
e

 
b

a
n
k
s
 a

ro
u
n

d
 t
h

e
 w

o
rl

d
 e

x
p

o
s
e

d
 t
o

 
b

a
d

 d
e
b

t.
  
T

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 
e

n
s
u

re
 p

ru
d

e
n

t 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
th

is
 p

e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
fu

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 i
n

te
re

s
t 
b

e
in

g
 a

t 
ri
s
k
. 

C
a

u
s
e

: 
C

re
d

it
w

o
rt

h
in

e
s
s
 o

f 
b

a
n

k
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 d

u
e

 t
o

 
g

lo
b

a
l 
e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

E
u

ro
z
o

n
e

 c
ri
s
is

 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 
L
o
s
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
s
 i
f 
th

e
re

 
a

re
 n

o
t 
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 s
a

fe
g

u
a
rd

s
 i
n

 
p
la

c
e
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

. 

M
a

jo
r

4
P

o
s
s
ib

le
3

M
e
d
iu

m
/

H
ig

h
1

2

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 
A

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 T

re
a
s
u
ry

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

it
h
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 s

ig
n

 o
ff

 o
f 
d

e
p

o
s
it
s
 b

y
 

s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t.

 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 c
h
e

c
k
s
 o

n
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
c
o
n
ti
n

u
a

l 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
d

e
p

o
s
it
s
 a

n
d

 
p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
le

n
d
in

g
 l
is

ts
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 

In
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 g

a
v
e

 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 (
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
) 

T
o
le

ra
t

e
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
a

jo
r

4
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

3
M

e
d

iu
m

-
H

ig
h

1
2

F
a
ilu

re
 t
o
 p

la
n

 f
o
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 –

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 i
s
 s

e
t 
to

 
g

ro
w

 i
n

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 
ri
s
k
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 e

n
o
u
g
h
 

s
o
c
ia

l 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 (

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 h

o
m

e
s
),

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a
n

d
 g

re
e

n
 

s
p

a
c
e
s
, 
a

n
d

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 d

e
m

a
n
d
. 
 I
f 

th
e
 

g
ro

w
th

 i
s
 n

o
t 
fe

d
 i
n
to

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
tl
y
 

in
to

 p
la

n
s
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 
s
o

m
e

 
d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o

 o
ff

s
e

t 
d

e
m

a
n
d

 
p

re
s
s
u

re
s
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
. 

C
a
u
s
e
: 
P

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

n
d
 

M
a

jo
r

4
L
ik

e
ly

4
H

ig
h

1
6

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

P
u
p
il 

P
la

c
e
d

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

lin
k
e
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

R
e

g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
D

e
m

a
n

d
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n

 
a
n
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n

ti
o
n
 i
n
to

 t
ro

u
b
le

d
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 (

W
a
v
e
 2

 p
ro

je
c
ts

) 
 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

, 
R

e
g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 G
ro

u
p

, 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 
h

o
m

e
s
. 
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 
B

o
a

rd
 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
e
x
p
a

n
s
io

n
s
, 
th

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 

c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 

T
re

a
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
a

jo
r

4
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

3
M

e
d

iu
m

-
H

ig
h

1
2

37



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 l
iv

in
g

 l
o

n
g

e
r.

 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e

n
c
e

: 
M

o
re

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

v
e

r 
a

 p
e
ri
o
d

 i
n

 
d

e
c
lin

in
g

 g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

. 

m
o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
. 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
C

a
p
a

b
ili

ty
 w

it
h

in
 

R
e

g
e

n
e
ra

ti
o

n
. 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
–

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

a
 r

is
k
 o

f 
n
o
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 d

a
ta

 
p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 s

e
c
u
ri
ty

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l 
re

s
p
o

n
s
e

s
 t
o

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il.

 

C
a
u
s
e
: 
C

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

a
y
s
 i
n
 

w
h

ic
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 
m

o
re

 i
n
te

rc
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
b
o
d
ie

s
. 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
e
c
u

ri
ty

 o
r 

d
a
ta

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 b

re
a
c
h
e

s
 

if
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
s
tr

ic
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 

w
it
h
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 r

e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
 

a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fi
n
e
s
 f
ro

m
 I
C

O
. 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

P
o

s
s
ib

le
3

M
e

d
iu

m
-

H
ig

h
9

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
:
P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

a
s
 u

s
u
a
l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
; 

E
-l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

a
c
k
a
g
e
 o

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
C

h
ie

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
a
n

d
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
ro

le
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
R

o
le

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
o

n
-g

o
in

g
 o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

a
n
d
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
ill

 f
o
rm

a
lly

 
re

c
o

n
v
e

n
e

 a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 
o

v
e
rs

ig
h

t 
a

n
d
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o
n

 
IM

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 U

n
it
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 G
ro

u
p

s
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 A
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 

T
re

a
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

U
n

lik
e

ly
 

2
M

e
d

iu
m

-
L

o
w

6

38



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 

a
re

a
s
) 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
R

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h
ip

s
 –

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 

a
 r

is
k
 t
h
a
t 
c
e
n
tr

a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
o

rk
 d

is
tr

a
c
ts

 f
o

c
u
s
 

fr
o
m

 s
u
p
p
ly

 c
h
a
in

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
a

te
g
o

ry
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
k
e

y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
o
 m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

. 

C
a

u
s
e

: 
A

s
 t
h
e

 f
o

c
u
s
 o

f 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e
n

 b
a

la
n
c
e
d

 i
n
 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
c
a
te

g
o
ry

 m
a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n

g
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
ft
e
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
. 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 
F

a
ilu

re
 t
o
 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h
e

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 
fu

tu
re

 s
a
v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 b

e
tt
e
r 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
. 

M
a

jo
r

4
P

o
s
s
ib

le
3

M
e
d
iu

m
 -

H
ig

h
1

2

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 
m

e
d
iu

m
 t
e
rm

 
p

ro
c
u
re

m
e

n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
ls

 
a
n
d
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 t
o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 b
a
s
ic

 
p

ro
c
u
re

m
e

n
t 
ru

le
s
 –

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 

a
u

d
it
 i
n

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
D

a
ta

 f
o
r 

c
a

te
g
o
ry

 s
p
e
n
d
 

p
e

r 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
c
te

d
 

u
p

o
n

C
e
n
tr

a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
ts

 t
o

 a
c
t 
a

s
 k

e
y
 s

u
p

p
lie

r 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 (
S

R
M

s
) 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 
e

m
b

e
d

d
in

g
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e

 i
n

 n
e

w
 o

rg
a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f
o

r 
A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 

T
re

a
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

U
n

lik
e

ly
 

2
M

e
d

iu
m

-
lo

w 6

A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
–

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 

th
a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
ta

te
 

a
n

d
 s

iz
e

 o
f 
c
o

u
n
c
il 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

o
w

n
e
d
 a

s
s
e
ts

. 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

P
o

s
s
ib

le
3

M
e

d
iu

m
-

H
ig

h
9

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 
A

s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 l
is

t 
o
f 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 b

a
s
e

d
 

a
s
s
e

ts
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 

T
re

a
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
in

o
r

2
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

3
M

e
d

iu
m

-
L

o
w

6

39



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

C
a

u
s
e

: 
th

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
a

n
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 A
s
s
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 o
n
 

p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 h

e
ld

. 
 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 
A

s
s
e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 w

e
ll 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 
w

it
h

in
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 

le
a

d
in

g
 t
o

 p
o
o

r 
u

s
e

 o
f 
re

s
o
u

rc
e

s
. 

is
s
u
e
s
.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

s
ta

te
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

s
s
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 

W
a
s
te

 M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 –

 w
it
h
o
u
t 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

n
g

in
g

 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 a
ro

u
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 
c
o

s
ts

 w
ill

 
e
s
c
a
la

te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
q
u
a
lit

y
 w

ill
 

n
o

t 
b

e
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 l
e

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 d
e

c
lin

in
g

 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

. 

C
a

u
s
e

: 
G

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
re

g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d

 l
a
w

 
re

q
u

ir
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 w
a

s
te

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
. 
 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e

n
c
e

: 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
o
s
ts

 d
u
e

 
to

 p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
 a

tt
ra

c
te

d
 w

h
e
re

 
m

in
im

u
m

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

s
 n

o
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

n
d
 w

h
e

re
 r

u
b

b
is

h
 s

e
n

t 
to

 
la

n
d
fi
ll.

  
W

it
h
o
u
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

a
tt
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

a
s
y
 

M
a

jo
r

4
L
ik

e
ly

4
H

ig
h

1
6

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 
In

-h
o

u
s
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 

w
it
h

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 m

o
d

e
l 
b

e
in

g
 t
a

k
e
n

 
fo

rw
a

rd
N

W
L
A

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

fo
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
. 

W
a
s
te

 P
ro

je
c
t 
B

o
a

rd
 f
o

r 
o
v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
f 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
p

la
n

 
O

n
e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
u
n
ti
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 

U
s
u
a
l 
p
h
a
s
e
 

T
re

a
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
a

jo
r

4
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

3
M

e
d

iu
m

-
H

ig
h

1
2

40



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 m
e
th

o
d

s
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 

th
e
re

 m
a
y
 b

e
 a

n
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 a

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 

th
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
liv

in
g
.

H
e
a
lt
h
 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 –

 l
o
c
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 h
a

v
e

 
a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 w
o
rk

 o
n

 a
 s

in
g

le
 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

fr
o
m

 O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
W

it
h
o
u
t 
c
le

a
r 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 
d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h

e
 

m
e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 r
e
tu

rn
 o

n
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

fo
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

 f
o
r 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
re

a
lis

a
ti
o
n
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 u

n
w

ill
in

g
 t
o
 

c
o
m

m
it
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
t 
in

 
in

te
g

ra
ti
o
n

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
h
e

re
 t
h

e
y
 d

o
 

n
o

t 
s
e

e
 a

 r
a

p
id

 a
n

d
/o

r 
p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 

re
tu

rn
 o

n
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 

o
w

n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
. 

C
a
u
s
e
: 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

in
g
 c

o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 a

n
d
 

a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
lo

c
a
l 
N

H
S

 
o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 u

n
d
e

rg
o

in
g

 
m

a
jo

r 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
s
 n

o
w

 a
n

d
 d

u
ri
n
g

 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
. 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e

n
c
e

: 
W

it
h

o
u

t 
a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
th

e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
ro

m
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

P
o

s
s
ib

le
3

M
e

d
iu

m
-

H
ig

h
9

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 O
u
tl
in

e
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

u
tl
in

in
g
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
N

H
S

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n
d
 B

a
rn

e
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f

s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

te
g

ra
ti
o

n
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 2

5
6

 m
o

n
ie

s
. 

N
H

S
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

s
u
m

m
it
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 
a
 

s
in

g
le

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

 t
o

 
in

te
g

ra
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
, 
J
u

ly
 

2
0
1
2
. 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
o
n
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
ll-

B
e
in

g
 

B
o

a
rd

 o
v
e
rs

ig
h

t 
B

u
ild

in
g

 l
o
c
a

l 
in

s
ig

h
t 
th

ro
u
g

h
 t
h

e
 

p
ilo

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 a

 
la

rg
e

 s
c
a

le
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
lo

n
g

-
te

rm
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

. 
A

ls
o

 
d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 m
e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

n
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 
o
f 

T
re

a
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

U
n

lik
e

ly
 

2
M

e
d

iu
m

-
L

o
w

6

41



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

re
a
lis

e
d
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 t
o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
; 
a
n
d
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 c

a
re

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
o

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 g
o
o
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
; 
&

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 
d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h

ic
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 
C

re
a

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
o
rd

a
t 

d
e
ta

ili
n
g
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 r
e
a

lis
a

ti
o
n

 
to

 b
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
 a

ll 
N

H
S

 a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 O

n
e
 B

a
rn

e
t 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 m

ix
 o

f 
b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

o
rt

fo
lio

 o
f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 
fa

ir
ly

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 a

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

le
v
e

l.
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

w
o

rk
s
tr

e
a

m
 

H
R

 e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

N
e
w

 P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 -

 L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

w
ill

 h
a
v
e
 a

 n
e
w

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f
o

r 
h

e
a

lt
h

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
d

v
ic

e
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
N

H
S

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

3
 a

s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 e

n
a

c
te

d
 i
n

 
th

e
 n

e
w

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
A

c
t.
 T

h
e
 n

e
w

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

 r
in

g
-f

e
n
c
e
d

 g
ra

n
t 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
l 
a
c
tu

a
l 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 s

p
e

n
d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b
e

 
c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

M
a

jo
r

4
P

o
s
s
ib

le
3

M
e
d
iu

m
 -

H
ig

h
1

2

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
 –

 I
n
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
b
e

in
g

 a
g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o
u
n
c
il.

  
B

a
rn

e
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o
n
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 f
o

ru
m

 a
n

d
 

is
 l
o

b
b
y
in

g
 f
o

r 
a

 f
a

ir
 f
u

n
d

in
g

 
s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
fo

rm
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 
c
h

a
n

n
e
ls

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 D

e
p
a

rt
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
, 

N
C

L
 C

lu
s
te

r,
 N

H
S

 L
o
n

d
o
n

 P
u

b
lic

 
H

e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n

. 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

 –
 J

o
in

t 
N

C
L
 a

n
d
 B

a
rn

e
t 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h

 T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

T
re

a
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

L
ik

e
ly

4
M

e
d

iu
m

-
H

ig
h

1
2

42



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

H
e
a
lt
h
 u

n
ti
l 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
. 
A

 
p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 b
e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 j
o
in

tl
y
 

w
it
h
 N

H
S

 N
C

L
 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 p
u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
, 
c
o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

C
a

u
s
e

 -
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 o

f 
in

s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 s
ta

ff
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 i
ts

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

n
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 £

1
.4

m
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

b
e

tw
e
e
n
 

th
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 r

in
g
-

fe
n
c
e
d

 g
ra

n
t 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
tt
le

m
e
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n

 B
a
rn

e
t 
is

 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 l
o

w
e
r 

th
a

n
 o

th
e

r 
p

a
rt

s
 

o
f 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 a
n
d

 i
s
 w

e
ll 

b
e

lo
w

 t
h

e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e

 –
T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
w

ill
 b

e
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 i
ts

 n
e
w

 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 

a
n

d
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

to
 f
u
lf
il 

it
s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 l
o
c
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 
p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
. 

fr
o
m

 N
C

L
 F

in
a
n
c
e
, 
P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
, 

B
a

rn
e

t 
C

C
G

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 U

n
it
. 
T

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

B
o

a
rd

 m
e

e
ts

 m
o

n
th

ly
. 
D

ir
e
c
t 
in

p
u

t 
in

to
 t
h

e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 v
a

lid
a

ti
o

n
 

o
f 
N

C
L
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
. 
R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
m

o
n

th
ly

 
N

C
L
 p

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 y

e
a

r 
(2

0
1
2

/1
3
).

M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 o
f 

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 w
it
h

 N
C

L
 C

lu
s
te

r 
to

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 
p
u
b
lic

 
h
e
a
lt
h
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

.

43



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

F
ra

u
d

 –
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 
m

o
n

ie
s
 

o
r 

a
s
s
e
ts

 m
a
y
 b

e
 f
ra

u
d
u
le

n
tl
y
 

g
a

in
e
d

 b
y
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
o

r 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 

p
e

ri
o
d

 o
f 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
r 

a
u

s
te

ri
ty

. 

C
a
u
s
e
: 
In

 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o

f 
a
u
s
te

ri
ty

 i
t 
is

 
in

h
e
re

n
t 
in

 a
n
y
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 w

it
h
in

 g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
, 
th

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 b

y
 

fr
a
u
d
s
te

rs
 e

it
h
e
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
o
r 

in
te

rn
a
l.

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
: 
fu

n
d
s
 m

a
y
 

fr
a

u
d

u
le

n
tl
y
 l
e

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 i
n

 
th

e
 e

v
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 f
ra

u
d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

d
e
te

c
te

d
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
re

d
. 

M
in

o
r

2
P

o
s
s
ib

le
3

M
e

d
iu

m
-

L
o

w
6

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

: 
fr

a
u
d
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 e
-l
e

a
rn

in
g

, 
a

p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
 

d
e

s
ig

n
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
b

y
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
fr

a
u
d
. 

D
e
te

rr
e
n

t:
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
y
 

fr
a

u
d
s
te

rs
 c

o
n

v
ic

te
d

 a
n
d

 
p

ro
s
e
c
u

te
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
P

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 f
ra

u
d
 p

la
n
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
2

-1
3

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
w

e
a
k
n
e

s
s
e
s
 i
n

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 
to

 m
it
ig

a
te

 
th

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
; 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
 

b
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 d
e
te

c
t 
fr

a
u
d
 o

r 
e

rr
o

r 
w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
ir

 k
e
y
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

o
ls

.

T
o
le

ra
t

e
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
in

o
r

2
P

o
s
s
ib

le
 

3
M

e
d

iu
m

-
L

o
w

6

F
a
ilu

re
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 w

it
h
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ts
. 
 

C
a
u
s
e
: 
A

 f
u
ll 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

t’
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
in

 
th

e
ir
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 

re
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n

in
g

; 
o

r 
o

n
 b

u
ild

in
g

 
h

o
w

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t
o

 b
e

 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
. 
 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

P
o

s
s
ib

le
3

M
e

d
iu

m
-

H
ig

h
9

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 

F
in

a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 –

 f
e

e
d

in
g

 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
to

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

E
n

s
u
ri

n
g

 e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 i
s
 e

m
b
e

d
d

e
d

 
w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p

.

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

: 
C

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
a

l 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

w
ill

 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
P

u
b
lic

 P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

S
o

c
ia

l 
m

e
d

ia
 –

 a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 m
e

th
o

d
s
 T

re
a

t
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

U
n

lik
e

ly
 

2
M

e
d

iu
m

-
L

o
w

6

44



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e

n
c
e

s
: 
re

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
a

l 
d

a
m

a
g
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 m
a

k
e

 
p
o
lic

y
 t
h
a
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
re

fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 

n
e

e
d
s
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 

o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 

e
x
p

lo
re

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 f
u

tu
re

 u
p
d

a
te

s
 t
o

 
th

e
 w

e
b
s
it
e

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 p
h
a
s
e

 2
. 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
C

o
m

m
o
n
 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
iz

e
n

 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

th
ro

u
g
h

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 d

a
ta

 
a

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n
d

 p
ri

o
r 

c
o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
o
r 

c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
c
a
re

. 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 –

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t
h

a
t 

o
u

r 
re

la
ti
o

n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 
w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

, 
N

H
S

, 
p
o
lic

e
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

w
o
rk

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 j
o
in

t 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
. 
  

C
a
u
s
e
: 
Im

m
a
tu

re
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
is

 y
e
t 
to

 e
n
d
u
re

 a
 

te
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
th

e
 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
. 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e

n
c
e

: 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
c
le

a
r 

fo
c
u
s
 

o
n

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 w

a
n

t 
to

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
v
e
ly

 w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 r

e
a
lis

e
d
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e

 d
u

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

ff
o

rt
s
 o

r 
g
a

p
s
 i
n

 d
is

c
h
a

rg
in

g
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

P
o

s
s
ib

le
3

M
e

d
iu

m
-

H
ig

h
9

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 

O
v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
. 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 F
ra

m
e

w
o
rk

 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 D
e
liv

e
ry

B
o
a
rd

s
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
.

T
re

a
t

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

U
n

lik
e

ly
 

2
M

e
d

iu
m

-
lo

w 6

45



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

A
s
 D

R
S

 m
o
v
e
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 f
in

a
l 

e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 N
S

C
S

O
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d

 
b

id
d

e
r 

m
o

b
ili

s
a

ti
o

n
 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 r
is

k
s
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
b
ili

s
a
ti
o
n
 p

e
ri
o
d
 w

it
h
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
d
e

la
y
 a

n
d

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 o

v
e
r 

th
a
t 
ti
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

a
ls

o
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e
n

t 
ju

d
ic

ia
l 

re
v
ie

w
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

C
a
u
s
e
: 
 T

h
e
 s

ta
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

s
m

o
o
th

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
. 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e

n
c
e

: 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l 

m
a

y
 s

u
ff

e
r 

o
r 

d
e

la
y
s
 o

c
c
u

r 
if
 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 n

o
t 
c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 w

e
ll 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 s

e
le

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
o

b
ili

s
a

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

M
a

jo
r

4
P

o
s
s
ib

le
3

M
e

d
iu

m
-

H
ig

h
1

2

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 p

a
n

e
ls

 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
fi
n

a
l 

b
id

s
 f
o

r 
D

R
S

 a
n

d
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 
m

a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 &

 M
o
b
ili

s
a
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 t
o
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

fo
r 

N
S

C
S

O
 a

n
d

 m
o

v
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 n
e

w
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 &

 
M

o
b
ili

s
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
  
in

 p
la

c
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
p
la

n
s
, 

e
s
c
a
la

ti
n
g

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
 

T
re

a
t

W
e

e
k
ly

 
M

o
d

e
ra

t
e 3

P
o

s
s
ib

le
 

3
M

e
d

iu
m

-
H

ig
h

9

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 
o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n

c
il 

m
a
y
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 

to
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

C
a
u
s
e
: 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
d
e

l 
fo

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 p
o
s
t 

fi
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

a
jo

r 
o
u

ts
o
u

rc
in

g
 o

f 
D

R
S

 a
n
d

 N
S

C
S

O
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 

s
c
o
p
e
.

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e

n
c
e

: 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 

m
a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

it
h

 

M
o

d
e
ra

t
e 3

P
o

s
s
ib

le
3

M
e
d
iu

m
H

ig
h

9

P
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e
: 

A
p
p
o
in

tm
e

n
t 
o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
E

m
b

e
d

d
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
a

l/
d

e
v
o

lv
e

d
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
S

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
le

a
d

 i
n
 p

e
ri
o
d
 u

n
ti
l 
g
o
-

liv
e
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 
1
3
. 

D
e

te
c
ti

v
e

: 
T

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 &

 
M

o
b
ili

s
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

 n
 p

la
c
e
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 

T
re

a
t

M
o
n
th

ly
M

in
o

r
2

P
o

s
s
ib

le
 

3
M

e
d
iu

m
L

o
w

6

46



R
is

k
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

Im
p

a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 

R
is

k
S

ta
tu

s
B

o
a

rd
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 
(t

im
in

g
) 

T
a

rg
e
t 

A
s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
Im

p
a
c
t 

P
ro

b
a
b

il
it

y
 R

a
ti

n
g

 

s
u

ff
ic

ie
n
t 
k
n

o
w

le
d
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
K

e
y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
o
n
w

a
rd

s
. 

N
e
w

 H
e
a

d
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
in

 p
la

c
e

.

47



O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 F

T
a
b

le
 1

W
a
v
e
 1

 P
ro

je
c
ts

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
3
/1

4
2
0
1
4
/1

5

C
lo

s
e
d

 P
ro

je
c
ts

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

o
a
c
h
e
s

7
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
2
,1

8
6

  
  
  
  

 
2
2
,2

0
5

  
  
  
  

 
2
2
,2

0
5

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
4
,3

9
1

  
  
  
  

 
(5

,6
0
9
)

e
-R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t

4
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
4
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t

8
7
,9

6
6

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
2
3
,7

5
0

  
  
  
  

 
2
4
,9

2
6

  
  
  
  

 
2
4
,9

2
6

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

4
8
,6

7
6

  
  
  
  

 
(3

9
,2

9
0
)

P
a
rk

in
g
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t

1
7
0
,5

3
7

  
  
  

 
2
9
,1

5
9

  
  
  
  

 
1
1
3
,0

8
5

  
  
  

 
2
2
,4

2
3

  
  
  
  

 
2
2
,4

2
3

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
6
4
,6

6
7

  
  
  

 
(5

,8
7
0
)

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

7
0
,0

5
8

  
  
  
  

 
7
0
,0

5
8

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
0
,0

5
8

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

P
ro

to
ty

p
in

g
 P

ro
je

c
t

7
7
,1

2
9

  
  
  
  

 
7
7
,1

2
9

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

7
7
,1

2
9

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

R
a
p
id

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t

2
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
1
8
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
3
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 &

 I
n
c
o
m

e
 O

p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n

1
9
7
,6

6
2

  
  
  

 
1
9
7
,6

6
2

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
9
7
,6

6
2

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

S
A

P
 O

p
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n

3
7
5
,5

3
3

  
  
  

 
1
7
4
,3

7
5

  
  
  

 
1
2
7
,1

4
7

  
  
  

 
6
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
8
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
8
1
,5

2
2

  
  
  

 
5
,9

8
9

Y
o
u
r 

C
h
o
ic

e
 B

a
rn

e
t

5
5
3
,1

5
6

  
  
  

 
1
6
3
,2

7
9

  
  
  

 
3
1
3
,8

9
5

  
  
  

 
8
1
,6

1
6

  
  
  
  

 
8
1
,6

1
6

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
5
8
,7

9
0

  
  
  

 
5
,6

3
4

O
p

e
n

 P
ro

je
c
ts

!
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""
""

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

u
d

g
e
ts

, 
C

h
ild

re
n
s
 P

ro
je

c
ts

2
4
7
,4

9
3

  
  
 

3
9
,3

8
6

  
  
  
 

2
9
,7

4
9

  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

6
9
,1

3
5

(1
7
8
,3

5
8

)

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

5
4
3
,1

1
3

  
  
  

 
2
3
6
,3

7
9

  
  
  

 
3
0
9
,3

5
1

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
4
5
,7

3
0

  
  
  

 
2
,6

1
7

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
g
u
la

to
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,7

4
4
,0

1
9

  
  

3
1
9
,4

9
3

  
  
  

 
7
0
1
,6

1
7

  
  
  

 
9
0
4
,3

0
7

  
  
  

 
1
,2

9
2
,9

1
0

  
  

1
6
3
,3

9
2

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,4

7
7
,4

1
2

  
  

7
3
3
,3

9
3

L
e
g
a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
4
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
4
,6

3
9

  
  
  
  

 
1
0
6
,4

7
9

  
  
  

 
1
1
0
,7

7
1

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
6
5
,4

1
0

  
  
  

 
2
5
,4

1
0

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

1
4
8
,1

8
1

  
  
  

 
6
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
5
4
,0

0
3

  
  
  
  

 
3
4
,1

7
8

  
  
  
  

 
3
4
,1

7
8

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
4
8
,1

8
1

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
N

e
w

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

 &
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

r g
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

1
,6

5
4
,4

3
8

  
3
0
7
,4

4
6

  
  
 

6
4
1
,7

3
3

  
  
 

9
1
4
,9

1
3

  
  
  

1
,1

0
7
,9

2
0

  
4
7
,4

4
6

  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,1

0
4
,5

4
5

  
4
5
0
,1

0
7

P
a
s
s
e
n
g
e
r 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

2
7
2
,1

0
6

  
  
  

 
5
7
,9

6
6

  
  
  
  

 
1
1
1
,6

0
2

  
  
  

 
2
8
,0

9
5

  
  
  
  

 
1
0
5
,0

2
5

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
7
4
,5

9
3

  
  
  

 
2
,4

8
7

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

2
,4

1
1
,4

3
3

  
  

4
5
0
,9

1
9

  
  
  

 
1
,5

9
3
,2

5
8

  
  

3
6
7
,2

5
6

  
  
  

 
3
6
7
,2

5
6

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
,4

1
1
,4

3
3

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

R
ig

h
t 
to

 C
o
n
tr

o
l

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
C

o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 -

 W
a
v
e
 1

1
,0

2
2
,5

9
2

  
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
(1

,0
2
2
,5

9
2
)

T
o

ta
l

9
,8

4
7
,4

1
6

  
2
,2

4
1
,7

5
1

  
4
,1

1
9
,5

1
5

  
2
,5

6
6
,3

9
8

  
3
,2

4
9
,2

3
0

  
2
1
0
,8

3
8

  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
,8

2
1
,3

3
4

(2
6
,0

8
2
)

T
a
b

le
 2

W
a
v
e
 2

 P
ro

je
c
ts

2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
3
/1

4
2
0
1
4
/1

5

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

1
,4

2
2
,0

0
0

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
,0

1
8
,3

6
0

  
  

1
,4

2
2
,0

0
0

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
,4

2
2
,0

0
0

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

E
a
rl
y
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n

2
2
7
,0

0
0

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
7
7
,8

2
5

  
  
  
  

 
1
1
7
,3

4
9

  
  
  

 
1
4
9
,1

9
4

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
2
7
,0

1
9

  
  
  

 
1
9

H
e
a
lt
h
 &

 S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
8
,8

8
1

  
  
  
  

 
6
3
,0

1
6

  
  
  
  

 
6
3
,0

1
6

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
0
1
,8

9
7

  
  
  

 
1
,8

9
7

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

y
s
te

m
5
6
5
,1

9
0

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
4
8
,7

2
9

  
  
  

 
3
6
3
,1

8
1

  
  
  

 
4
1
6
,7

6
7

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

5
6
5
,4

9
6

  
  
  

 
3
0
6

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
,8

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
5
9
2
,8

7
4

  
  
  

 
1
,0

3
0
,9

7
5

  
  

5
7
5
,4

5
2

  
  
  

 
1
9
3
,5

7
3

  
  
  

 
1
,8

0
0
,0

0
0

  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
R

e
-o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

e
n
io

r 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
s

9
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
2
7
,1

3
8

  
  
 

8
0
7
,5

0
6

  
  
  

8
0
7
,5

0
6

  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

9
3
4
,6

4
4

  
  
 

3
4
,6

4
4

R
e
g
is

tr
a
rs

2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
3
,4

6
5

  
  
  
  

 
2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

S
a
fe

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
1
4
9
,0

0
0

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
3
9
,7

6
5

  
  
  
  

 
9
9
,0

1
4

  
  
  
  

 
1
2
9
,1

5
9

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
6
8
,9

2
4

  
  
  

 
1
9
,9

2
4

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
S

p
o
rt

s
 &

 L
e
is

u
re

 A
c
ti
v
it
y

1
9
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
4
8
,4

4
5

  
  
  
  

 
8
2
,5

9
8

  
  
  
  

 
1
4
7
,5

9
6

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

1
9
6
,0

4
1

  
  
  

 
(1

,9
5
9
)

W
a
s
te

 &
 S

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e

3
9
1
,0

0
0

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
1
1
0
,6

1
2

  
  
  

 
1
3
1
,8

2
6

  
  
  

 
1
5
9
,1

4
5

  
  
  

 
1
2
1
,2

5
0

  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

3
9
1
,0

0
7

  
  
  

 
7

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 -

 W
a
v
e
 2

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

T
o

ta
l

5
,7

7
7
,1

9
0

-
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

5
9
1
,3

9
5

3
,2

8
9
,1

8
9

4
,3

5
0
,3

5
8

6
9
6
,7

0
2

1
9
3
,5

7
3

5
,8

3
2
,0

2
8

5
4
,8

3
8

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

o
ta

l

P
ro

je
c
te

d

S
p
e
n
d

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

T
o
ta

l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

O
u
tt
u
rn

O
u
tt
u
rn

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

P
ro

je
c
te

d

o
u
tt
u
rn

P
ro

je
c
te

d

o
u
tt
u
rn

P
ro

je
c
te

d

o
u
tt
u
rn

2
0
1
2
/1

3
T

o
ta

l

P
ro

je
c
te

d

S
p
e
n
d

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

O
u
tt
u
rn

O
u
tt
u
rn

A
c
tu

a
l 
to

 

D
a
te

P
ro

je
c
te

d

o
u
tt
u
rn

P
ro

je
c
te

d

o
u
tt
u
rn

P
ro

je
c
te

d

o
u
tt
u
rn

48



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 F
T

a
b

le
 3

W
a
v
e
!1
!C
o
st
s!
a
n
d
!S
a
v
in
g
s

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
!

b
u
d
g
e
t!
(c
o
st
s)

B
a
se
!b
u
d
g
e
t!

sa
v
in
g
s!
to
!

2
0
1
1
/1
2
!*

P
ro
je
ct
e
d
!b
a
se
!

b
u
d
g
e
t!
sa
v
in
g
s!

to
!2
0
1
2
/1
3
*
*

P
ro
je
ct
e
d
!b
a
se
!

b
u
d
g
e
t!
sa
v
in
g
s

to
ta
l!
*
*
*

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
!

sa
v
in
g
!t
o
!

2
0
1
1
/1
2
!*

P
ro
je
ct
e
d
!

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
!

sa
v
in
g
!t
o
!

2
0
1
2
/1
3
!*
*

P
ro
je
ct
e
d
!

C
u
m
u
la
ti
v
e
!

sa
v
in
g

2
0
1
0
"1
9

C
o
m
m
e
n
t

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

£
m

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
!C
o
a
ch
e
s

0
.0
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t!
o
f!
a
!v
o
lu
n
te
e
r!
li
fe
!c
o
a
ch
in
g
!s
ch
e
m
e
.!
!S
u
cc
e
ss
fu
ll
y
!p
il
o
te
d
!i
n
!p
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
!w
it
h
!l
o
ca
l!
a
n
d
!n
a
ti
o
n
a
l!
ch
a
ri
ti
e
s!

a
n
d
!c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
!g
ro
u
p
s.
!!
C
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
!b
e
in
g
!d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
!i
n
to
!a
n
!o
n
g
o
in
g
!s
e
rv
ic
e
!f
o
r!
th
e
!c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
.

e
"R
e
cr
u
it
m
e
n
t

0
.0
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.2
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.3
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.3
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.4
5

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.7
8

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

2
.8
1

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

T
h
e
!e
"R
e
cr
u
it
m
e
n
t!
p
ro
je
ct
!h
a
s!
p
ro
v
id
e
d
!t
h
e
!o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
!w
it
h
!a
n
!o
n
li
n
e
!s
y
st
e
m
!w
h
ic
h
!i
s!
d
e
li
v
e
ri
n
g
!p
ro
ce
ss
!

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
!f
o
r!
H
R
!a
n
d
!a
!r
e
d
u
ct
io
n
!i
n
!a
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
!c
o
st
s!
fo
r!
d
ir
e
ct
o
ra
te
s.
!!

H
o
u
si
n
g
!P
ro
je
ct

0
.0
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.4
0

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.6
1

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.4
0

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

3
.7
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

T
h
e
!h
o
u
si
n
g
!n
e
e
d
s!
a
n
d
!r
e
so
u
rc
e
s!
(H
N
R
)!
se
rv
ic
e
!w
a
s!
tr
a
n
sf
e
rr
e
d
!f
ro
m
!t
h
e
!C
o
u
n
ci
l!
to
!B
a
rn
e
t!
H
o
m
e
s!
in
!A
p
ri
l!
2
0
1
2
!

e
n
a
b
li
n
g
!r
e
d
u
ce
d
!m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t!
co
st
s!
a
n
d
!g
re
a
te
r!
sy
n
e
rg
ie
s!
b
e
tw

e
e
n
!B
a
rn
e
t!
H
o
m
e
s!
a
n
d
!t
h
e
!H
N
R
!s
e
rv
ic
e
.!

Le
g
a
l!
S
e
rv
ic
e
s

0
.1
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.0
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.1
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.0
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

1
.1
8

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

S
a
v
in
g
s!
to
!b
e
!a
ch
ie
v
e
d
!t
h
ro
u
g
h
!a
!s
h
a
re
d
!l
e
g
a
l!
se
rv
ic
e
!w
it
h
!L
o
n
d
o
n
!B
o
ro
u
g
h
!o
f!
H
a
rr
o
w
!w
h
ic
h
!!
w
e
n
t!
li
v
e
!S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r!

2
0
1
2
.

P
a
rk
in
g

0
.1
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.3
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.8
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.3
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

5
.3
8

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

A
s!
o
f!
M
a
y
!2
0
1
2
!t
h
e
!p
a
rk
in
g
!s
e
rv
ic
e
!i
s!
b
e
in
g
!p
ro
v
id
e
d
!b
y
!a
n
!e
xt
e
rn
a
l!
co
n
tr
a
ct
o
r!
(N
S
L)
!w
it
h
!c
o
n
se
q
u
e
n
ti
a
l!
sa
v
in
g
s!
b
e
in
g
!

re
a
li
se
d
.!

P
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t!
P
ro
je
ct

0
.0
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.9
2

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.9
2

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.9
2

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

1
.7
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

2
.7
1

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

8
.2
6

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

P
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t!
sa
v
in
g
s!
d
e
li
v
e
re
d
!t
h
ro
u
g
h
!r
e
v
ie
w
!a
n
d
!r
e
d
u
ct
io
n
!i
n
!n
u
m
b
e
r!
o
f!
v
e
n
d
o
rs
,!
a
n
d
!c
o
n
tr
a
ct
!r
e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
.!
A
!

sm
a
ll
!e
le
m
e
n
t!
o
f!
th
e
!p
la
n
n
e
d
!s
a
v
in
g
s!
w
e
re
!s
u
b
st
it
u
te
d
!w
it
h
!s
ta
ff
!s
a
v
in
g
s!
in
!t
h
e
!p
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t!
se
rv
ic
e
.!

P
ro
to
ty
p
in
g
!P
ro
je
ct

0
.0
8

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

S
u
cc
e
ss
fu
l!
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t!
o
f!
a
!m

e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
y
!t
o
!q
u
ic
k
ly
!d
e
v
e
lo
p
!n
e
w
!s
e
rv
ic
e
s!
a
t!
lo
w
!c
o
st
.!
!U
se
d
!t
o
!d
e
v
e
lo
p
!t
h
e
!

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
!C
o
a
ch
in
g
!s
e
rv
ic
e
.

R
a
p
id
!I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t!
P
ro
je
ct

0
.0
2

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

N
o
!d
ir
e
ct
!s
a
v
in
g
s!
b
u
t!
th
is
!p
ro
je
ct
!h
a
s!
e
n
a
b
le
d
!s
e
rv
ic
e
"b
a
se
d
!s
a
v
in
g
s

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
!I
n
co
m
e
!O
p
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n

0
.2
0

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

1
.8
3

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

2
.0
8

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

2
.1
5

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

2
.1
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

4
.2
5

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

1
7
.1
3

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

A
ll
!o
f!
th
e
!p
la
n
n
e
d
!c
h
a
n
g
e
s!
h
a
v
e
!t
a
k
e
n
!p
la
ce
!a
n
d
!a
ll
!r
e
le
v
a
n
t!
in
co
m
e
!b
u
d
g
e
ts
!h
a
v
e
!b
e
e
n
!a
d
ju
st
e
d
!a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
ly
!

(e
xc
e
p
t!
fo
r!
th
e
!c
h
a
rg
in
g
!f
o
r!
p
a
rk
in
g
!i
n
!t
h
e
!b
o
ro
u
g
h
s!
7
!f
re
e
!c
a
r!
p
a
rk
s!
a
s!
p
e
r!
C
ll
r!
d
e
ci
si
o
n
).

R
ig
h
t!
to
!C
o
n
tr
o
l

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

C
o
o
rd
in
a
te
d
!s
u
p
p
o
rt
!f
o
r!
d
is
a
b
le
d
!c
it
iz
e
n
s,
!i
n
cl
u
d
in
g
!s
o
ci
a
l!
ca
re
,!
h
o
u
si
n
g
!a
n
d
!e
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t!
su
p
p
o
rt
.

S
A
P
!O
p
ti
m
is
a
ti
o
n

0
.3
8

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

N
o
!d
ir
e
ct
!s
a
v
in
g
s!
b
u
t!
th
is
!p
ro
je
ct
!h
a
s!
e
n
a
b
le
d
!s
e
rv
ic
e
"b
a
se
d
!s
a
v
in
g
s!
th
ro
u
g
h
!i
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
!t
o
!t
h
e
!C
o
u
n
ci
l'
s!
S
A
P
!

fi
n
a
n
ce
/p
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t/
H
R
!s
y
st
e
m

Y
o
u
r!
C
h
o
ic
e
!B
a
rn
e
t

0
.5
5

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.4
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

2
.2
5

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

A
!s
u
b
si
d
ia
ry
!c
o
m
p
a
n
y
!t
o
!t
h
e
!C
o
u
n
ci
l!
w
a
s!
se
t!
u
p
!t
o
!d
e
li
v
e
r!
A
d
u
lt
!s
o
ci
a
l!
ca
re
!s
e
rv
ic
e
s!
p
re
v
io
u
sl
y
!r
u
n
!d
ir
e
ct
ly
!b
y
!t
h
e
!

C
o
u
n
ci
l.
!T
h
is
!w
e
n
t!
li
v
e
!i
n
!J
a
n
u
a
ry
!2
0
1
2
.!
A
!s
u
rp
lu
s!
is
!d
u
e
!t
o
!b
e
!g
e
n
e
ra
te
d
!a
cr
o
ss
!2
0
1
3
"1
6
.

S
ch
o
o
l!
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t!
a
n
d
!y
o
u
th
!s
e
rv
ic
e
s

0
.2
5

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

2
.0
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

2
.0
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

2
.0
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

2
.0
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

4
.0
8

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

1
6
.3
2

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

S
a
v
in
g
s!
a
ch
ie
v
e
d
!i
n
!2
0
1
1
/1
2
!t
h
ro
u
g
h
!(
i)
!t
h
e
!r
e
d
u
ct
io
n
!o
f!
sc
h
o
o
l!
im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t!
su
p
p
o
rt
!s
e
rv
ic
e
!f
o
r!
p
ri
m
a
ry
!a
n
d
!

se
co
n
d
a
ry
!s
ch
o
o
ls
!a
n
d
!(
ii
)!
th
e
!r
e
sh
a
p
in
g
!a
n
d
!r
e
d
u
ci
n
g
!o
f!
y
o
u
th
!s
u
p
p
o
rt
!s
e
rv
ic
e
s!
th
ro
u
g
h
!i
n
cr
e
a
se
d
!c
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
in
g
!o
f!

d
e
li
v
e
ry
,!
se
e
k
in
g
!e
ff
ic
ie
n
ci
e
s!
th
ro
u
g
h
!i
n
te
g
ra
ti
n
g
!s
e
rv
ic
e
s!
a
n
d
!i
n
co
m
e
!g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
,!
re
d
u
ci
n
g
!l
o
ca
l!
a
u
th
o
ri
ty
!d
ir
e
ct
ly
!

p
ro
v
id
e
d
!a
ct
iv
it
ie
s!
a
n
d
!r
e
d
u
ci
n
g
!u
n
iv
e
rs
a
l!
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
!a
d
v
ic
e
.

C
u
st
o
m
e
r!
S
e
rv
ic
e
!T
ra
n
sf
o
rm

a
ti
o
n

0
.5
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.0
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.6
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.6
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.0
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.7
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

4
.8
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

S
a
v
in
g
s!
a
ch
ie
v
e
d
!i
n
!2
0
1
2
/1
3
!t
h
ro
u
g
h
!t
h
e
!c
o
n
so
li
d
a
ti
o
n
!o
f!
te
le
p
h
o
n
e
!c
o
n
ta
ct
!s
ta
ff
!a
n
d
!t
e
ch
n
o
lo
g
y
!i
n
to
!a
!s
in
g
le
!s
e
rv
ic
e
!

a
n
d
!e
n
co
u
ra
g
in
g
!s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t!
in
cr
e
a
se
!i
n
!u
se
!o
f!
th
e
!w
e
b
!f
o
r!
cu
st
o
m
e
r!
co
n
ta
ct
!a
n
d
!t
h
e
!r
e
d
u
ct
io
n
!i
n
!t
e
a
m
!m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t!

ro
le
s!
a
s!
a
!r
e
su
lt
!o
f!
th
is
!c
o
n
so
li
d
a
ti
o
n
.

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t!
&
!R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
!S
e
rv
ic
e
s

1
.7
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

3
.1
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

1
7
.1
6

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

T
h
e
se
!s
a
v
in
g
s!
w
il
l!
b
e
!a
ch
ie
v
e
d
!i
n
!2
0
1
3
/1
4
!a
n
d
!2
0
1
4
/1
5
.!
!T
h
e
!o
u
tl
in
e
!s
o
lu
ti
o
n
!s
u
b
m
is
si
o
n
s!
o
f!
b
o
th
!t
h
e
!b
id
d
e
rs
!w
h
o
!

w
e
re
!t
a
k
e
n
!f
o
rw

a
rd
!i
n
to
!t
h
e
!s
e
co
n
d
!s
ta
g
e
!o
f!
d
ia
lo
g
u
e
!m

e
t!
o
r!
e
xc
e
d
e
d
!t
h
e
!c
o
u
n
ci
l'
s!
re
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
t!
to
!a
ch
ie
v
e
!t
h
e
se
!

sa
v
in
g
s.
!F
in
a
l!
te
n
d
e
rs
!h
a
v
e
!n
o
w
!b
e
e
n
!r
e
ce
iv
e
d
!w
it
h
!t
h
e
!c
o
n
tr
a
ct
!d
u
e
!t
o
!g
o
!l
iv
e
!i
n
!e
a
rl
y
!2
0
1
3
/1
4
.!

Li
b
ra
ri
e
s!
S
tr
a
te
g
y

0
.1
5

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.1
2

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.2
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

1
.2
1

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.1
2

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.3
8

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

7
.2
3

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

S
a
v
in
g
s!
w
il
l!
b
e
!a
ch
ie
v
e
d
!p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
!i
n
!!
2
0
1
3
/1
4
!t
h
ro
u
g
h
!a
!r
e
st
ru
ct
u
re
!o
f!
se
rv
ic
e
!d
e
si
g
n
e
d
!t
o
!a
ch
ie
v
e
!e
ff
ic
ie
n
ci
e
s!

w
it
h
o
u
t!
a
ff
e
ct
in
g
!t
h
e
!a
b
il
it
y
!o
f!
th
e
!s
e
rv
ic
e
!t
o
!d
e
li
v
e
r!
th
e
!L
ib
ra
ry
!S
tr
a
te
g
y
.!
!F
u
rt
h
e
r!
sa
v
in
g
s!
w
il
l!
b
e
!a
ch
ie
v
e
d
!t
h
ro
u
g
h
!

th
e
!I
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
!o
f!
R
F
ID
!s
e
lf
"s
e
rv
ic
e
!i
n
!a
ll
!s
it
e
s!
(t
h
is
!h
a
s!
a
lr
e
a
d
y
!b
e
e
n
!p
a
rt
ly
!i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
!i
n
!2
0
1
2
/1
3
),
!t
h
e
!r
u
n
n
in
g
!

o
f!
H
a
m
p
st
e
a
d
!G
a
rd
e
n
!S
u
b
u
rb
!L
ib
ra
ry
!b
y
!m

e
m
b
e
rs
!o
f!
th
e
!c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
!a
n
d
!t
h
e
!c
re
a
ti
o
n
!o
f!
a
!n
e
w
!l
a
n
d
m
a
rk
!l
ib
ra
ry
!i
n
!

th
e
!a
rt
s!
d
e
p
o
t!
(a
n
d
!t
h
e
!s
u
b
se
q
u
e
n
t!
cl
o
su
re
!o
f!
F
ri
e
rn
!B
a
rn
e
t!
li
b
ra
ry
).

N
e
w
!S
u
p
p
o
rt
!&
!C
u
st
o
m
e
r!
S
e
rv
ic
e
s!
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n

1
.6
5

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

6
.3
0

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

3
1
.4
1

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

U
p
d
a
te
d
!s
a
v
in
g
s!
e
xp
e
ct
e
d
!f
ro
m
!N
S
C
S
O
!c
o
n
tr
a
ct
!a
s!
d
e
ta
il
e
d
!i
n
!t
h
e
!M

T
F
S
!r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
!t
o
!C
a
b
in
e
t!
in
!N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r.

P
a
ss
e
n
g
e
r!
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt

0
.2
7

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.4
2

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.5
0

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.5
0

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.4
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

0
.9
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

3
.9
8

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

S
a
v
in
g
s!
h
a
v
e
!b
e
e
n
!a
ch
ie
v
e
d
!i
n
!2
0
1
1
/1
2
!a
n
d
!2
0
1
2
/1
3
!t
h
ro
u
g
h
!r
a
ti
o
n
a
li
si
n
g
!t
h
e
!t
ra
n
sp
o
rt
!c
o
st
s!
a
cr
o
ss
!a
d
u
lt
s!
d
a
y
!c
a
re
!

tr
a
n
sp
o
rt
!w
it
h
!C
h
il
d
re
n
's
!S
p
e
ci
a
l!
N
e
e
d
s!
T
ra
n
sp
o
rt
!b
y
!m

e
rg
in
g
/r
e
m
o
d
e
ll
in
g
!r
o
u
te
s,
!a
n
d
/o
r!
re
co
n
fi
g
u
ri
n
g
!o
p
e
n
in
g
!

ti
m
e
s!
o
f!
D
a
y
!C
e
n
tr
e
s.
!!
S
a
v
in
g
s!
a
ls
o
!d
e
ri
v
e
d
!!
fr
o
m
!a
!c
o
m
b
in
a
ti
o
n
!o
f!
m
e
rg
e
d
!S
E
N
!a
n
d
!A
d
S
S
!t
ra
n
sp
o
rt
!t
h
ro
u
g
h
!t
h
e
!

a
v
a
il
a
b
il
it
y
!o
f!
a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l!
v
e
h
ic
le
!a
n
d
!d
ri
v
e
r!
re
so
u
rc
e
s!
to
!b
e
!u
ti
li
se
d
!a
t!
sh
o
rt
!n
o
ti
ce
!a
n
d
!u
si
n
g
!i
m
p
ro
v
e
d
!p
ro
cu
re
m
e
n
t!

m
e
th
o
d
s.
!!

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
cy

1
.0
2

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
!M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

2
.4
1

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

"
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

T
o
ta
l

9
.8
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

5
.7
0

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!

7
.6
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

1
9
.4
9

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

7
.1
4

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

1
4
.8
3

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

1
2
1
.7
2

!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!!
!

*
!"
!s
a
v
in
g
s!
to
!e
n
d
!o
f!
2
0
1
1
/1
2

*
*
!"
!p
ro
je
ct
e
d
!s
a
v
in
g
s!
to
!e
n
d
!o
f!
2
0
1
2
/1
3

*
*
*
!"
!p
ro
je
ct
e
d
!s
a
v
in
g
s!
to
!e
n
d
!o
f!
2
0
1
8
/1
9

49



Virements requiring member approval.

Directorate Profit Centre Profit Centre Name Amount

£

Adults Social Care 10425 Perf&Tran Mgmt Team 320

10426 Business Systems (230)

10427 Performance Support (450)

10428 Assessments&Income (610)

10429 Dir Adult Soc Serv (90)

10439 CSD Management (500)

10441 CSD-Business Support (230)

10442 Social Work (10,640)

10443 Barnet Hosp Team 620

10444 Social Care Direct 790

10445 Access - Royal Free 130

10446 Invoicing Team 180

10448 Occupational Therapy (830)

10449 Telecare (250)

10468 LD Assess & Care Mgt 0

10469 Harwood 2,100

10472 Supprtd Living SrvLD 3,510

10473 Valley Way 1,390

10478 Ext Homecare LD >65 20

10482 Ext Supp&Oth Accomm (5,300)

10484 External Homecare LD (580)

10486 Resp Care Rsdntl LD (1,060)

10488 Ext Day Care LD (9,880)

10490 LDDF 100

10491 Rosa Morison 2,220

10492 Flower Lane 3,250

10493 The Space 520

10497 Community MH Teams (570)

10498 Home Treatment Team 200

10499 Primary Care Mental 70

10500 MH Divisional Mngmnt 740

10501 MH OA (Silkstream) (350)

10502 MH Crisis Resolution (40)

10521 Other Services MH (60)

10523 Community Network 1,000

10524 Enable't & Planning (930)

10525 BILS 890

10536 Ext Day Care PD (880)

10539 ASG GRANT - ADULTS (70)

10794 Training-Adult SS (490)

10802 Community Space 1,820

10886 Direct Payment Admin (1,190)

10974 Prtshp&Plg Mngt Team (180)

10975 Strategic Comng 400

11067 M H ASW Service (8,650)

11106 Complaints (10)

11107 Choice&Indpendence (250)

11108 Supply Mngt Team (190)

11158 Business Support 240

11159 Transistions Team 90

11161 Special Projects (110)

11225 Cmnty Supp Team 460

11252 Right to Control 240

11261 Safeguarding 330

11269 Customer Care 410

Adults Social Care Total (22,580)

Central Expenses 11121 Misc Finance (1,303,180)

Central Expenses Total (1,303,180)

Chief Executives 10022 Hsg Bens Admin (800)

10338 Libraries Mgt Team (170)

10339 Libraries Support (40)

10345 Burnt Oak Library 1,570

10346 Childs Hill Library 360

10347 Chipping Barnet Lib 2,930

10348 Church End Library 1,440

10349 East Barnet Library 820

A one off virement of £1.303m from central expenses to realign the Insurance budgets

in services.

50



Directorate Profit Centre Profit Centre Name Amount

£

10350 East Finchley Lib 960

10351 Edgware Library 1,420

10352 Friern Barnet Lib 2,330

10353 Golders Green Lib 1,090

10354 Grahame Park Lib 900

10355 Hampstead Library 410

10356 Hendon Library 4,010

10357 Mill Hill Library 130

10358 North Finchley Lib 1,820

10359 Osidge Library 150

10360 South Friern Lib (200)

10361 Bibliographical Srv (170)

10362 Mobile & Home Libry (250)

10363 School Library Srv 10

10366 Church Farm House Mu 2,860

10367 Barnet Museum 2,160

10368 Local Studies/Archvs 60

10377 Web (240)

10384 B D & M (140)

10392 Mayoral Support (50)

10398 Civic Events (90)

10528 Transport Services (170)

10682 Executive Directors (1,130)

10683 Policy (470)

10689 Communications (1,340)

10998 Management Team 60

11014 Local Taxation (570)

11017 Grants Unit 60

11051 Insight (390)

11052 Customer Services 120

11056 Performance 130

11079 Revenue Control (920)

11149 Burnt Oak Centre 240

11170 Sunday Lib Serv 100

11175 Children Lib Serv (40)

11176 Adult Lib Serv 100

11231 Pericles System 130

11247 ACE Management Team (1,420)

11248 Design 190

11249 Media Team 400

11300 Executive Support 610

Chief Executives Total 18,970

Childrens' Services 10179 SEN Placements Team (80)

10183 Specialist Team Mgmt (210)

10184 SENCO 20

10185 The Northgate School 800

10186 Home Hosp&add Tch Tm (310)

10187 Children in Care 50

10188 Sec Pupil Refer Unit 1,050

10189 Sen Performance Team (130)

10190 Advisory Team (210)

10212 SEN Transport IB (1,110)

10216 Barnet Parent Pshp 10

10217 Education Welfare (1,690)

10218 Children's Serv SLT (3,640)

10219 CS Finance Team (1,240)

10220 RMIT (290)

10222 Comm & Comp (470)

10230 Foreign Lang Asst 10

10232 Goven Clerking & Sup 10

10233 S&L Business Support (4,590)

10234 Lrng Netwk Insp NDSG (300)

10235 Schs&Llrn Supp & Dev 90

10237 VoiceOfChild & BYthB (30)

10238 Early Yrs Standards (640)

10239 14-19 250

10241 Excellence in Clust (200)

10243 Primary EducStrategy 390

10250 BPSI 620

10251 Educ Bus Pship 210

10253 Barnet Healthy Schls 30

10256 Admissions to School 90

51



Directorate Profit Centre Profit Centre Name Amount

£

10259 A Lvl Music Srv-TS (150)

10260 Music Srv - TS (1,160)

10262 Brnt Schools ICT Sup (160)

10263 Early Yrs Central Tm (920)

10264 FYI Team 230

10265 EY & CM Panel 0

10273 Childminding Team (160)

10274 Comm Svs Child Ctrs 130

10286 Nursery School Budg 70,920

10287 Primary School Budg 3,290

10288 Secondary Schls Budg (48,530)

10289 Special Schools Budg 1,140

10301 Yth Support Serv Mgt (1,260)

10302 Rithmik 60

10304 Canada Villa (1,710)

10305 Finchley Yth Theatre (1,930)

10306 Grahame Park (1,210)

10309 Campsite-Moat Mount (1,560)

10310 Targeted Youth Suppo 950

10313 Moat Mount Outdoor C 120

10317 Trident (380)

10324 NLSIN (10)

10328 Play Ser & Greentops (1,340)

10331 Newstead (5,510)

10332 Lakeview (4,130)

10333 Wingfield (570)

10335 Meadway 1,320

10364 Arts&Publicising Act 5,740

10541 New Park House 480

10542 68a Meadow Close (1,870)

10543 Placed for Adoption 20

10544 FOSTERING SUPPORT (250)

10545 KINSHIP & PERMANENCE 180

10546 Fostering - R & T 100

10548 Contact of Children (50)

10550 Indp Fostrng Agenc's (10)

10555 Social Care Mgt Team (4,240)

10557 Adoption Team Staff (10)

10558 Placements Tm Staff 140

10559 Leaving CareTm(Staff (2,240)

10562 Asylum Skrs 16&17CIC (110)

10565 SCD ICT Support 450

10567 Hosp Social Wrk Team (100)

10568 CAMHS Social Wrk Tm 180

10569 Disab Childrn's Team (2,040)

10570 Chldrn In Need 5 750

10571 Paed Occ Therapists (380)

10572 Family Ass & Supp Tm 40

10579 ARRT 1,220

10580 Family Resource Ctr 10

10582 Substance Mis-Use (1,670)

10584 eCAF 130

10585 Youth Offending Serv (900)

10588 Section 17 20

10601 Organisation&Develop 190

10603 Confrnce & review Tm 150

10604 Corporate Parenting 60

10605 Safeguardg Chldn Brd (160)

10606 Safeguardg Mgt Team (160)

10611 Children's Fund YISP 30

10616 Cent. Resources Team (370)

10675 Catering - Other 30

10676 Catering - Schools (620)

10680 Catering-Staff & Civ (50)

10706 Yth Supp(East/South) 230

10782 EDUC Psychologist (810)

10793 Training-Chld Serv (100)

10797 CAMHS Grant 40

10836 Think Family 100

10936 Suppt For Child S 390

10954 D of E & Accred 200

10962 Bookstart 70

10977 BEAM 0

52



Directorate Profit Centre Profit Centre Name Amount

£

10978 Small Circles 0

10980 Archiving Service (540)

10981 Sports Development (2,420)

11035 Grahame Pk All Wthr 590

11061 SEN Early Supp Prog (10)

11068 Trainee Social Wrkrs (110)

11092 Extd Shcls-Sustbtly 230

11110 Commisioned Services (2,680)

11122 CIF 40

11125 CIC SW Team 1 220

11126 CIC SW Team 2 300

11127 CIC SW Team 3 (10)

11128 CIC SW Team 4 (80)

11129 Ref & Assmt Team 1 190

11130 Ref & Assmt Team 2 70

11131 Ref & Assmt Team 3 60

11132 Chldrn in Need Tm 1 110

11133 Chldrn in Need Tm 2 160

11134 Chldrn in Need Tm 3 70

11135 Chldrn in Need Tm 4 (160)

11141 Sports Competition 20

11169 SSP (20)

11255 Child Cent in Lib 20

11296 Extended Schools DSG 860

11301 Parenting Supp NDSG (150)

11302 Multi AgySupTm NDSG 2,230

11305 Business Support 450

11312 Narrowing the Gap 420

11323 FIP 190

Childrens' Services Total (9,180)

Commercial Services 10255 Capital 350

10342 Electronic Inform Sv (190)

10413 Recoverable Costs 20

10639 Building Services 140

10640 Bldg Srv -Management (1,190)

11001 IT Strategy 540

11002 Valuation Services 300

11003 GF Properties 17,080

11004 Non GF Properties (780)

11005 GFProperty Pend Sale 3,980

11020 System Support (440)

11021 Infrastructure (240)

11022 Business Syst&Partnr (1,260)

11027 Procurement (520)

11037 Document Production (70)

11038 Document Management 80

11039 Facilities Mngmnt (540)

11040 NLBP Building 4 (31,290)

11044 Barnet House (13,580)

11045 Hendon Town Hall (32,460)

11049 Colinhurst 340

11050 Mill Hill Depot 5,350

11062 NLBP Building 2 14,770

11078 Corporate Programmes 510

11199 Service Desk 450

11230 Commercial Mgmt Team 500

11232 One Barnet 60

11279 Strategy & Supp Team 210

11293 Friary House (830)

Commercial Services Total (38,710)

Corporate Governance 10002 CAFT 750

10379 Legal Services Gen 280

10380 Legal Advocacy Team 680

10381 Legal Commercial Tm 530

10382 Legal Community 810

10383 Registratn-Electors 110

10387 European Elections (720)

10389 Refererndums 3,070

10391 Governance (600)

10393 Members Development (1,900)

10394 Cabinet Support 0

10395 Political Assistants (60)

53



Directorate Profit Centre Profit Centre Name Amount

£

10396 Members Allowances (120)

10400 Civil Protection (60)

10869 BS-Barnet Homes Disb 100

11000 Insurance 89,320

11095 SIRT (170)

11096 Corp Gov Directors (450)

11163 Elections Project Tm (2,280)

Corporate Governance Total 89,290

Deputy Chief Executive 10001 Internal Audit (460)

10014 Unison (17,880)

11012 Accounts Payable (470)

11013 Accounts Receivable (810)

11023 Health and Safety 0

11024 Pensions (160)

11054 Schools Finance Supp (1,930)

11080 Cashiers (330)

11081 Cash Collection (940)

11210 Pay and Data 550

11211 HR Customer Services (1,570)

11212 HR Employee Relation 770

11213 HR Resourcing 110

11215 HR Business Partner (1,400)

11219 Finance Management (1,010)

11257 HR Management Team 14,880

11263 Strategic&Technical 10,980

11264 E&O, PHR & Corporate (1,380)

11265 SAP,CLOSING,COMP (1,540)

11266 TreasuryPensionsTax (570)

11267 Children & Adults (2,220)

11271 Rotational Support (420)

Deputy Chief Executive Total (5,800)

Environment, Planning & 

Regeneration 10583 Drug & Alcohol Team 1,690

10617 HD-Mngmnt & Perform 24,820

10619 Drainage(GullyClnsng 740

10631 N.R.S.W.A. 6,220

10632 PrivWrks Reinstatmnt 6,350

10635 Road Structl Planned 2,860

10648 Parking Design 13,510

10651 CCTV 7,760

10652 Street Cleansing 27,200

10653 PIT 5,630

10655 Domestic Refuse 38,230

10656 Recycling 2,480

10660 Allotments (360)

10664 HM-Responsive 6,360

10674 Trading Stds & Licng 3,390

10764 Parks & Open Spaces 82,230

10765 Sports Grounds 2,700

10766 Green Belt Lands 1,430

10771 ES-Transport Oheads 2,510

10774 ES-Leases & SC Rech 17,720

10775 ES-SEN Transp 1,370

10776 ES-Comctran 6,870

10890 Road Structl Respons 4,370

10938 HM-Winter Maint 1,250

10939 HM-Stand-by 640

10941 HM-Sign Erection 1,960

10952 G/S Trees Management 142,010

10996 SSCF (1,990)

11032 Fitness For Life 200

11036 GLL Contract 20,100

11200 E & T Directors 21,950

11208 Street Lighting Othr 1,930

11324 Asset Management 2,610

11352 SPA Mgt (2,200)

10020 Housing Mgmt (80)

10025 Hsg Initiatives (40)

10026 Hsg Pol&Perf (70)

10036 Housing Regeneration 640

10038 Planning (800)

10390 Land Charges 20

54



Directorate Profit Centre Profit Centre Name Amount

£

10641 Building  Inspection (190)

10642 Structures (80)

10643 Building Control (760)

10661 Hendon Cemetery 1,380

10666 Pvt Sector Hsg 150

10667 Care & Repair (50)

10671 Mortuary 340

10756 Strategic Dev Unit (250)

10763 ES Mgt (170)

10818 Hendon Crematorium (1,500)

10819 Cem&Crem Management 10

10821 Food Safety (30)

10860 Dollis Valley Regen 80

10861 Grahame Park Regen 190

10862 Stonegrove Regen 260

10863 West Hendon Regen 140

10903 Non-Dwellings Rents (210)

10921 Supervision & Mgmt 816,910

10958 Pest Control 0

10987 N London sub reg coo (10)

10994 HMO Licensing (20)

11074 Planning Strat Serv (160)

11102 Pub Health Nuisance (140)

11179 Scientific Services 70

11180 Empt Prop Enforcemnt 70

11222 Decent Homes 80

11245 Street Naming/Number 80

11326 Granville Road 70

11355  Outer London Fund - Circklewood 720

Environment, Planning & Regeneration Total 1,271,190

55



56

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Meeting Budget and Performance Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

 

Date 7 March 2013   

Subject Barnet’s Adoption Service 
Performance in Light of the 
Government Report: Further Action 
on Adoption – Finding More Loving 
Homes 

 

Report of Assistant Director for Children’s Social 
Care 

 

Summary The Department for Education has published ‘Further 
Action on Adoption: finding more loving homes’, 
which sets out proposals for the next steps in tackling 
delay in the adoption system through increasing the 
number of prospective adopters, in order to address 
the national shortage – which is currently growing. 
The proposals include legislation to give the 
Secretary of State the power to require local 
authorities to outsource the recruitment and approval 
of adopters – which would not be used if local 
government is able to bring forward alternative 
proposals that would deliver a similarly radical shift in 
the system’s capacity. This paper provides an update 
on the performance of Barnet’s adoption service in 
the context of national developments. 

 

 

 
Officer Contributors Heather Storey, Strategy and Planning Team  

Debbie Gabriel, Service Manager, Children’s Service 

Ann Graham, Assistant Director for Children’s Social 
Care 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected All  

Key Decision N/A 

AGENDA ITEM 7

57



 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

N/A 

Function of Committee 

Enclosures None 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Heather Storey, Strategy and Planning Team – 020 
8359 3057 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

58



 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That the Committee notes the changes coming into force in relation to 

adoption and the Council’s proposed response and make appropriate 
comments and recommendations 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 24 January 

2013, Agenda Item 8, Forward Work Programme – the Committee resolved 
that with regard to the Adoption Service, the Corporate Performance team in 
conjunction with the Children’s Service present a report to the Committee on 
the services performance in meeting timelines for placements. 

 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Implementing the ‘Further Action on Adoption: Finding More Loving Homes’ 

supports the delivery of the following corporate priorities and policies: 
 
3.2 Corporate Plan - 2011/13 - especially the priority of ‘Safeguarding vulnerable 

children and adults’ and the performance target to ‘increase timeliness of 
placements for children in care who were placed for adoption within 12 months 
of the decision to be placed for adoption to 75%’. 

 

3.3 Sustainable Community Strategy 2010 /20 - in particular the priority ‘investing 
in children, young people and their families’ which includes the priority 
objective to promote the safety of children and young people and to narrow 

the gap through targeting support at young people at risk of not fulfilling their 
potential.  By improving the timeliness of adoption placements we will improve 
the life chances of looked after children in Barnet. 

  
3.4 Barnet Children and Young People Plan 2011/13 contains the priority ‘support 

children in care to have a happy childhood and successful transition into 
adulthood’ including the target to ‘reduce the time for adoption orders, and 
reduce the time spent in court proceedings’.  

 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 If timeliness is not improved children will remain in local authority care for 

longer, increasing the likelihood of reduced outcomes for the children, 
increased expense for the local authority and growing difficulty in finding an 
appropriate adoptive family for the child. 

 
4.2 There is a risk that if adoption recruitment is outsourced, insufficient adopters 

would be recruited, costs increased and the quality of those adopters may not 
be assured. 

 
4.3 There is a risk that insufficient external providers would be found, if the 

recruitment service were to be outsourced. 
 
4.4 We know that the population of children and young people in Barnet is 

59



 

growing rapidly and it is expected that the population of children requiring 
adoption may also grow. There is a risk that we will not be able to meet this 
demand internally or externally. 

 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Equality and diversity issues are a mandatory consideration in decision-

making in the Council pursuant to the Equality Act 2010. This means the 
Council and all other organisations acting on its behalf must have due regard 
to the equality duties when exercising a public function. The broad purpose of 
this duty is to integrate considerations of equality and good relations into day 
to day business requiring equality considerations to be reflected into the 
design of policies and the delivery of services and for these to be kept under 
review. 

 
5.2 As at 31 March 2012, males were over-represented in the children in care 

population; 59.7% of children in care were male, compared with 51.1% of 
males in Barnet’s 0-19 population. 18.3% of the children in care population 
were Black/Black British children compared to 14.3% of the 0-19 population. In 
contrast, children with ethnicities of White British/White Irish/White Other make 
up only 46.4% of the children in care population, but make up 56.9% of the 0-
19 population. Children aged 0-4 years and 5-9 years are underrepresented in 
the children in care population, and children and young people aged 10-14 
years and 15-19 years are overrepresented in the children in care population. 
Barnet will continue to monitor the demographic profile of children at risk and 
children in care and will seek to ensure that service provision meets their 
needs. 

 
5.3 It is important to remember, when analysing the equalities data for adopted 

children that the cohorts are very small and therefore small differences can 
appear to be overrepresented. Never-the-less, it is essential that the council is 
aware if any particular groups are being disproportionately impacted. Unlike 
the cohort of children in care, males are evenly represented amongst adopted 
children, making up half of the cohort, roughly in line with that of Barnet’s 0-19 
population. 47% of children who are adopted are White British, which is 
roughly in line with that of the children in care population, and 32% of children 
who are adopted are Black or Black British compared with just 18.3% of the 
children in care population.   

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 The government is providing financial support for greater investment in 

adoption in the form of a one-off Adoption Reform Grant of £150 million to 
assist Local Authorities with short-term action to address the immediate 
situation of a deficit in adopters (this is a restoration, in another form, of the 
£150 million reduction in Early Intervention Grant). The individual allocations 
are not yet known.  

 
6.2 The ‘headline’ proposal in the government paper, to give the Secretary of 

State the   power to require local authorities to outsource their  recruitment 
and approval of adopters  (whilst retaining responsibility for the outcome) 

60



 

would mean that the local authority would be dependent on external agencies 
to recruit sufficient adoptive parents to serve the local need. This would 
necessitate a change in the current structure of the adoption service and 
changes to existing consortium working.  

 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 The local authority has a statutory duty pursuant to the Adoption and Children 

Act 2002 to establish and maintain within its area a service designed to meet 
the needs, in relation to adoption, of children who may be or who have been 
adopted, adults who were adopted, their parents or guardians, including 
natural parents and former guardians, and prospective or actual adopters. The 
facilities must include making and participating in arrangements for the 
adoption of children and for the provision of adoption support services to meet 
the needs of persons in the above categories as well as persons further 
prescribed by regulations.  The services may be collectively known as the 
“Adoption Service” and must be provided in conjunction with the local 
authority’s social services, so that help may be given in a co-ordinated manner 
thereby reducing duplication, omission and avoidable delay.   

 
7.2 This Adoption Service must operate within the parameters of detailed statutory 

regulations and guidance.  The guidance is issued under the Local Authority 
Social Services Act 1970 and therefore must be adhered to.    
 

7.3 The Adoption Service or “adoption agency” is regulated by the Adoption 
Agencies Regulations 2005.  The service or agency currently plays a key role 
with regard to inter alia assessing the suitability of children to be adopted and 
assessing the suitability of prospective adopters.   Government guidance sets 
out clear timetables for the process of matching a child with prospective 
adopters. This guidance must be adhered to unless to do so is contrary to the 
best interests of the child.  

 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees are contained within Part 

2, Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The terms of reference of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees are included 

in the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules within Part 4 of the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 
8.3 The Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee has within its 

terms of reference responsibility for scrutinising “the overall performance, 
effectiveness and value for money of Council services.” 

 
8.4 The Local Government Act 2000 determined that along with other 

responsibilities the remit of Overview and Scrutiny would include the 
responsibility to make recommendations to the executive on matters which 
affect the authority’s area or inhabitants. 

 
 

61



 

9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 At the last meeting of the Budget & Performance Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee the committee requested that; in light of the recent Government 
statement that councils in England could lose their powers over adoption 
services, if they take too long to find adoptive parents; that a report on 
Barnet’s adoption services’ performance be presented to the Committee as 
soon as possible. 

 
9.2 National Adoption Context 
 
 Action on Adoption and Further Action on Adoption 
 
9.2.1 The Department for Education has published ‘Further Action on Adoption: 

finding more loving homes’, which sets out proposals for the next steps in 
tackling delay in the adoption system by increasing the number of prospective 
adopters, in order to address the national shortage – which is currently 
growing. The proposals include legislation to give the Secretary of State the 
power to require local authorities to outsource the recruitment and approval of 
adopters – which would only be used if local government is unable to bring 
forward alternative proposals that would deliver a similarly radical shift in the 
system’s capacity. 

 
9.2.2 The paper follows the publication last March of the Action Plan for Adoption, 

on which significant progress has been made; but the Government has 
reviewed the present system and found that the recruitment of adopters is not 
working as it should. It believes ‘that the role of local authorities in both the 
supply of, and demand for, adopters is at the root of the problems in the 
adopter recruitment system’. The paper describes those problems, and puts 
forward a number of proposals, including legislation to give the Secretary of 
State the power to require local authorities to outsource the recruitment and 
approval of adopters. These powers would not be used if local government is 
able to bring forward alternative proposals that would deliver a similarly radical 
shift in the system’s capacity. It also includes a one-off Adoption Reform Grant 
of £150 million to assist LAs with short-term action to address the immediate 
situation.  

 
9.2.3 The paper covers: recruiting adopters; finding more adopters quickly; and, 

promoting and supporting best practice in adopter recruitment and support. 
 
 Requirements Placed on Local Authorities 
 
9.2.4 The paper describes the progress made on implementation of the Action Plan, 

including: 
 
� publication of two sets of local adoption timeliness scorecards (see 9.3.1 

for Barnet’s performance) 
� consultation on proposals for a streamlined adopter assessment process 
� publication of draft legislation covering ethnic matching and ‘Fostering for 

Adoption’ 
� selection of First4Adoption (a partnership between Coram Children’s Legal 

Centre and Adoption UK) to operate the new National Gateway for 
Adoption.  

 

62



 

9.2.5 It also reports an increase in the number of children, including young children, 
starting to be looked after; more young children being authorised by the courts 
to be placed for adoption; and progress on reforms to the Family Justice 
system, resulting in the average duration of care cases falling from 56 to under 
48 weeks nationally. 

 
9.2.6 The challenge still ahead: 

Between 2009-10 and 2011-12 the number of children being approved by the 
courts for adoption each year increased from just over 3,000 to over 4,200; in 
the same period, the number of children moving in with adoptive families each 
year rose from 3,100 to 3,500 – so by March 2012 the number of children with 
a placement order awaiting a family had increased to 4,600, nationally. The 
number of children with an adoption decision waiting to be placed has 
increased by 33% from March 2010 to March 2012, with the proportion waiting 
21 months or longer increasing by 7 percentage points. 

 
9.2.7 National Ofsted data shows that just over 3,000 adopters were newly 

approved in 2011-12, but the need is for more than 600 additional adopters 
each year to keep up with the growing number of children waiting to be 
adopted, and another 2,000-3,000 to reduce the backlog. Action on Adoption 
stressed the shortage of adopters willing and able to adopt older children, 
sibling groups and those with disabilities and other particular needs; there is a 
particular need to encourage and support adopters for children with more 
complex needs. 

 
 Responses 
 
9.2.8 The ‘headline’ proposal in this paper – to give the Secretary of State  the 

power to require local authorities to outsource their  recruitment and approval 
of adopters (whilst retaining responsibility for the outcome) – has been 
questioned by some groups. The Association of Directors of Children’s 
Services (ADCS) and the Local Government Association (LGA) question the 
necessity of the reform, whilst welcoming the challenge to deliver a radical 
shift in the capacity of the system to recruit more adopters; they recognise the 
value in several of the paper’s proposals, but warn against de-stabilising local 
authority provision. The paper itself does, however, acknowledge that ‘the 
prospect of such change might reduce the incentives on local authorities to 
invest in adopter recruitment and so act as a temporary brake on efforts to 
increase adopter numbers’, and admits that ‘the issues we face are not about 
local authority performance. They are about system-wide failure’. 

 
9.3 Barnet’s Adoption Service 
 
9.3.1 Barnet Council is committed to ensuring that all children can grow up in a 

secure and safe setting so that they can become successful adults. Our strong 
focus on high quality education, effective safeguarding and working in 
partnership to improve outcomes has been recognised not only by Ofsted but 
also through our commitment to challenge and improve practice by being a 
Munro Development Demonstrator site1 and a fast tracked Troubled Families 
authority.  

                                            
1
 Barnet has been a Munro Development Demonstrator site during the financial year 2012/13, 
demonstrating our work on the implementation of the Munro Review and seeking peer challenge from 
other Local Authorities. 

63



 

 
9.3.2 This year, in recognition of the strong emphasis that the government is placing 

on adoption, a target focused on adoption timescales is a key priority outcome 
in the Council’s Corporate Plan. It’s inclusion as one of a small number of 
indicators reflects the Council’s determination to improve the life chances for 
the good of our looked after children and means that progress is regularly 
reported to and scrutinised by elected members, senior officers and our 
partners. We believe that the trajectory of our performance is in line with the 
plans and that the outcomes for the young people who have fallen outside of 
our timescales are in line with our commitment to ensuring that children can 
grow up in a secure and safe setting.  

 
9.3.3 We are keen to improve and to be a leading authority in this area of work 

ensuring that adoption is a realistic option for a wide range of young people 
who are in the care system.  

 
9.3.4 In light of Barnet’s Adoption Scorecard performance, the service accepted the 

offered Adoption Diagnostic Assessment from the DfE. This was completed in 
January 2013 and positively supported the evaluative work that had already 
been undertaken by the service itself. It highlighted the following key findings, 
which are explained in greater detail below: 

 

Strengths Areas for action 

A stable, skilled workforce Sequential family assessments & expert 
assessments 

A child-focussed service Use of Special Guardianship Orders 
(SGOs) 

Good partnership working Permanence planning and assessment 
delay 

Attention to evidence-based practice and 
practice improvement 

 

Engaged and supportive Legal Services  

Learning from the Scorecard data  

Adoption team development  

Adopter support practice  

 
 DfE Scorecard 
 
9.3.4 Barnet’s performance, against each of the scorecard measures is as follows: 
 

1) Average time between a child entering care and moving in with their 
adoptive family (days) 

• Barnet average was 718 days on 2008-2011 scorecard (79 days over 
performance threshold) 

• Barnet average increased to 809 days on 2009-2012 scorecard (170 
days over performance threshold) 

This represents an increase of 91 days since the previous score card. 
 

2)  Average time between a local authority receiving court authority to place a 
child and the local authority deciding on a match to an adoptive family 
(days), performance threshold 7 months 

• Barnet average was 97 days on 2008-2011 scorecard, performance 
threshold met  

64



 

• Barnet average increased to 145 days on 2009-2012 scorecard, though 
this is an increase, performance threshold was met 

This represents an increase of 48 days since the previous score card. 
 

3)  Children who wait less than 21 months between entering care and moving 
in with their adoptive family (number and %) 

• Barnet performance of 30 (51%) on 2008-2011 scorecard 

• Barnet performance of 35 (51%) on 2009-2012 scorecard 
Against this indicator performance has remained steady. 
 

9.3.5 In 09/10, 10/11 and 11/12 the cohorts were 14, 9 and 16 children respectively. 
These cohorts are small which means that contextual analysis is key. Our 
analysis shows that there are four cases in the scorecard’s current cohort of 
39 that are outliers as a consequence of complexities in these cases. When 
one or all four of these cases are removed from the cohort, Barnet’s 
performance falls within the set target, however our aspiration is that every 
case should fall within thresholds.  

 
 Reasons for Delays in Barnet 
 
9.3.6 We have reviewed each case in the three year cohort particularly focussing on 

those outside of timeframes, and setting out the reasons for performance in all 
cases. The four outliers show that the summary reasons for delay in these 
cases are: 

• Child’s emotional state requiring extended preparation time for adoption. 

• Sibling group, removed from a foster placement, difficulty recruiting 
alternative adopters.  

• Kinship placement being moved to an adoption order as the adopters 
(grandparents) decided to move abroad.  

 
9.3.7 We then went on to analyse those cases below the four outliers, which would 

fall below the reduced threshold in both measures planned for 2013/16. 
Understanding the reasons for delay in this group as well as in the four outliers 
has been the focus of our analysis and informed our Action plan. The themes 
identified in this group are: 

• Delays in court proceedings caused by a number of factors, including 
assessments taking longer due to parental learning difficulties and 
protracted appeals from family members who had been assessed and 
considered unsuitable and by appeals from parents. 

• Prospective carers coming forward very late in the process to be 
assessed. 

• Children’s complex needs including sibling groups, disability issues and 
complex cultural and racial backgrounds. 

• Cases spending too long in the pre-proceedings stage. 

• Adoptive placements irrevocably breaking down in the early stages of a 
placement prior to an adoption order being made. 

• Family member opting to adopt having originally been an approved 
kinship carer. 

• Child’s emotional state requiring extended preparation time for adoption. 
 
9.3.8 We are actively challenging ourselves to recognise those factors which are 

controllable and which, by acting upon, we can reduce our average timescales 
to fall within the thresholds. We recognise that there are likely to be some 

65



 

factors going forward that will push individual cases outside of the thresholds 
including decisions made in the best interests of individual children to ensure 
the timescale to adoption meets their needs and provides the best possible 
outcome. Because of this, it is likely that a very small number of outliers may 
impact on the scorecard in the next scorecard. Therefore, permanency 
planning for the best interests of individual children remains our priority and 
we are working towards ensuring that this is undertaken in the most timely 
manner. Our action plan addresses issues of timeliness without compromising 
safety or outcomes, and is likely to result in an improved score card. 

 
 Recruitment of Adopters 
 
9.3.9 Barnet generally does not have a problem recruiting adopters and most 

children are placed with Barnet adopters, with consortia or agency placement 
being sought where needed. We anticipate having approved 17 adopters by 
March 2013, an increase of 7 on 2011/12.  As at December 2012 there were 7 
approved adopters who are not matched, 4 of whom matches are being 
considered for.  
 

9.3.10 The Adoption Diagnostic Assessment from the DfE identified that membership 
of the North London Consortium has provided opportunities for innovative and 
creative initiatives in adopter recruitment and training, building new links with 
British and Minority Ethnic (BME) communities. 
 

9.3.11 There are currently plans to join together further, within the consortium, re-
focusing to support the recruitment of adopters; we are jointly commissioning 
a project manager to do a scoping piece of work, which all 5 boroughs are 
committed to and are jointly funding. There has also been some preliminary 
work done already to refocus work on shared preparation groups and 
information packs. Discussions are taking place to analyse the baseline of 
adopter recruitment across the five local authorities in the consortium, in order 
to determine how to improve recruitment of adopters in the future. 
 

9.3.12 Encouraging prospective adopters to telephone the service for a conversation 
about their interest has proved the most effective way of engaging them with 
the service. An in depth telephone discussion takes place at that very early 
stage, followed by an initial visit to suit the adopters within 10 days. 
Information sessions are held 4 times a year with advertising taking place 
shortly before each session. Attending an information session is not a 
mandatory part of the process. Preparation Groups are offered within the 
consortium 10 months of the year. Potential applicants can choose to wait and 
attend the next group to be run in Barnet or attend the next available group 
within the consortium. 
 

9.3.13 Completion of assessments for prospective adopters need to be completed 
more quickly. A restructure of the team and processes are underway in order 
to meet this requirement.  
 

9.3.14 Children are referred to the Adoption Team as soon as adoption is identified 
as a potential outcome and further work is underway to speed up the 
allocation to dedicated family finders.  
 

9.3.15 Barnet adopters are initially considered, including those who are still in the 
assessment process, with a view to matching at the earliest opportunity. 

66



 

Profiles on children are additionally considered at the North London Adoption 
Consortium (NLAC) managers’ meetings on a monthly basis, enabling 
consideration of potential matches from across the 5 boroughs. The NLAC 
consortium manager also circulates profiles to all other London consortia 
monthly. 
 

9.3.16 Seeking a placement with a voluntary adoption agency is considered if no 
matches are identified within the borough or within our partner consortia. 
However, as these placements cost on average £25,000 in inter agency fees, 
options from within the consortium are considered in the first instance. This 
barrier to greater use of agencies is identified in Further Action on Adoption 
and attempts by the report, to remove this barrier are welcomed, as an 
additional service to those that are already working well. 

 
 Barnet Adoption Action Plan 
 
9.3.17 Analysis of the 2012/13 cohort to the end of November shows that 11 children 

have been adopted with a further 4 placed for adoption. The 11 are within the 
thresholds for measures 1 and 2. However, individual children have fallen 
outside one or more of the measures but none have exceeded either threshold 
by as much as the outliers in the current cohort.  
 

9.3.18 Barnet’s Adoption Action Plan details actions for improvement going forward 
based on an analysis of our performance so far as well as taking account of 
recent and anticipated changes. This will be supported through the use of the 
Adoption Improvement Grant which will fund: 

• A Project Officer in the short term to coordinate all aspects of the 
adoption reform programme. 

• The initial phase of a Principal Officer (Care Proceedings) post to lead 
on implementation of the Family Justice Review recommendations2 in 
order to improve the quality of social work evidence and thereby reduce 
the length of care proceedings. 

• Contribution with colleagues in the North London Consortium to sector 
improvement including the development and implementation of 
assessment models for prospective adopters, implementing fostering for 
adoption approvals, family finding and training.  

 
9.3.19 The key aspects of the Action Plan are: 

• Timely decisions with respect to permanence 

Barnet has held a Permanence Panel since 2006 in response to 
concerns regarding drift in planning for permanence. This panel was 
replaced in September 2012 with a Care Planning Panel which builds on 
the work of the original panel while also focussing on tracking legal 
proceedings.  

• Reduction to the length of court proceedings 

Barnet is working with neighbouring boroughs, the local court and 
CAFCASS to reduce the length of court proceedings in line with the 

                                            

2
 The Family Justice Review includes measures to reduce duplication in the system, ensure that the 
child’s wishes and interests remain prominent and set a clear time limit for the length of care cases. 

 

67



 

Family Justice Review recommendations. This will include the 
appointment of a post in Barnet to support social workers to develop 
their professional confidence and improve the quality of their 
assessments and thereby reduce the need for costly independent expert 
assessments.  This will enable Barnet to secure earlier disposal of 
proceedings and reduce the length of care proceedings.  

• Development of fostering for adoption 

• Restructure of the adoption team to separate out the assessment 
and family finding functions. 

 
9.4 Conclusion  
 
9.4.1 Recruitment of adopters is not the cause of the majority of delays to adoption 

for looked after children in Barnet. This is partly because of effective services 
in place (in supporting adopters and potential adopters) but also due to recent 
innovative work with the North London Consortium. Never-the-less plans to 
remove barriers to greater partnership working with other local authorities and 
external agencies are welcomed, particularly to help find adopters for children 
with the most complex cases and specific needs. 

 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH/MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) HP 

 
 

68



51 

 
 

 
 

Meeting Budget and Performance Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 7 March 2013 

Subject One Barnet Programme Highlight Report 

Report of One Barnet Programme Office 

Summary Appendix 1 provides a summary of the programme status of 
the One Barnet Programme, as at February 2013.   

 

Officer Contributors Tom Pike, Head of Programme and Resources 

James Wills-Fleming, Head of Corporate Programmes  

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All  

Enclosures Appendix 1: –  

One Barnet Programme Highlight Report 

Appendix 2: – 

One Barnet Programme Risk Register 

For decision by Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Contact for further information: James Wills-Fleming, Head of Corporate Programmes 

020 8359 7289, james.wills-fleming@barnet.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

69



 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

note the progress of the One Barnet work streams, as set out in the One 
Barnet Programme Board Highlight Report attached at Appendix 1. 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 21 July 2011, 

agenda item 9 (Highlight Report). 
 
2.2 Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 22 September 

2011, agenda item 11 (Highlight Report). 
 
2.3 Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 6 December 

2011, agenda item 11 (Highlight Report). 
 
2.4 Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 24 April 2012, 

agenda item 7 (Highlight Report). 
 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Panels and Task and Finish Groups 

must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 

3.2 The three priority outcomes set out in the 2012/13 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Better services with less money 

• Sharing opportunities, sharing responsibilities 

• A successful London suburb 
 
3.3 One Barnet has three overarching aims: –  

• A new relationship with citizens  

• A one public sector approach 

• A relentless drive for efficiency 
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Risks are considered on project by project and programme level basis, in line 

with corporate risk management processes. 
 
4.2 Appendix 2 provides the current One Barnet Programme-level Risk Register 
 
 

70



 

5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as 

relating to matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the 
Overview and Scrutiny responsibilities in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; 
and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment 
and retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff 
development, equalities and health and safety. 

 
5.2 It is recognised that such a significant transformation of services is likely to 

have an impact on staff and service users in some, if not all cases. An 
evaluation of impact is carried out at the point of developing a Business Case 
for each project.  

 
5.3 Completed Equalities Impact Assessments will be updated periodically 

throughout the project lifecycle, as appropriate, to assess the impact of 
service transformation. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1  Resource implications for each work stream will be addressed at the 

appropriate stage of the projects. 
 
6.2 The financial information in Appendix 1 reflects the indicative spend as at 

month 10 (January) 2013. 
 
6.3 Appendix 1 also includes the latest budgeted figures for each project currently 

within ‘Wave 1’ of the programme. Wave 1 of the programme is forecasting to 
deliver within the £9.8m budget agreed by Cabinet on 29 November 2010 and 
subsequently amended by Cabinet Resources Committee on 17 December 
2012.  

 
6.4 Appendix 1 also includes a table showing the Wave 1 programme budget, 

split by project, and the related savings achieved and projected to be 
achieved by each project over the period 2010-2019, the cumulative total of 
which is £151.6m. 
 

6.5 Appendix 1 also includes a table showing the ‘Wave 2’ programme budget 
over the period 2011-2015, split by project, the total of which is £5.8m. 
 

 
7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1 Legal issues, in respect of each work stream will be addressed at the 

appropriate stage of the projects.  

71



 

 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS  
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, 

Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules are set out in Part 4 of the 

Constitution.  
 
8.3 The Terms of Reference of the Budget and Performance Overview Scrutiny 

Committee are contained within Part 4 of the Constitution (Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules).  The Committee has the following responsibilities: 

 
“To perform the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the One Barnet 
transformation programme, particularly performance and financial issues; 
 
To receive and consider options appraisals, business cases and closure 
report for the One Barnet projects; and 
 
To monitor the implementation of the One Barnet programme throughout the 
programme lifecycle.” 
 
“To engage with partner organisations, other relevant public sector bodies, 
private sector organisations, trade unions, local residents or any other 
appropriate witnesses when fulfilling the overview and scrutiny role in relation 
to the One Barnet programme. 

 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 Appendix 1 provides a summary of the current programme status of the One 

Barnet Programme  
 
9.2 Appendix 2 provides the current One Barnet Programme-level Risk Register 
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) RP 

 
  

72



Appendix 1 

One Barnet Programme Report 
07/03/13 

 

Section 1: Programme Status and Issues 

 
Overall Programme Status AMBER 

     

WAVE 1

Project Name Overall RAG Schedule Budget HR Comms Resources 

Development and Regulatory Services A A A G G G

New Support and Customer Services Procurement A A A G G A

Customer Services Transformation A A A G G G

Transport A A A A A A

Information Management Systems G G G N/A A G

Libraries G G G G G G

Restructure 

Right to Control

Future of Parking 

Future of Housing Services 

Community Coaches

Legal Services

Health & Social Care Integration G G G G G G

Sport & Physical Activity (SPA) R R R G G A

Safer Communities A G A G G A

Early Intervention & Prevention Project G G G G G G

Music Service G G R G G G

Waste & Street Scene A A A G G A

WAVE 2

 
 

Section 2: Issues  

 
Issues for Decision: 

 

• None escalated for decision to this board meeting. 
 

Issues for information: 
 
 

Section 3: Risks  

 
Risks for Decision: 

 

• None escalated for decision to this board meeting. 
 

Risks for Information: 
 

• One Barnet programme risks are set out in appendix 2 

73



Section 4: Project Status  
 

Project and 

Project Manager 

Project 

Start 

Project 

End 

Lifecycle 

Stage 
Progress made this period Milestones due in next period Current RAG  

Development and 

Regulatory Services  

 

 

Feb 2010 
May 

2013 
Procurement 

The evaluation stage continues and no 

decision will be made until the outcome of 

the Judicial Review hearing  

� Evaluation close  (Pending closure of 
review and challenge process)   

� Pre-decision O&SC (Pending outcome of 

NSCSO JR) 

� Cabinet approval of preferred bidder 

(Pending outcome of NSCSO JR) 

A 

New Support and 

Customer Service 

Organization  

 

 

May 2010 
May 

2013 
Procurement  

Contract Award pending outcome of JR � Contract award (Pending outcome of JR)  

� Service commencement date (Pending 

outcome of JR) 

A 

Customer Services 

Transformation  

 

 

Feb 2011 
April  

2013 
Completion  

Project Closure phase initiated � Closure report to be taken to April 

Programme Board 

 

A 

 

Transport  

 

 

Autumn 

2010 

Jan 

2014 
Delivery  

The participation in WLA transport bureau is 

delayed due to the ongoing work on the 

recovery and development programme 

following the issues encountered by the 

bureau at the start of the academic year 

2012/13. The WLA estimate this work to be 

completed by Sept 2013.  

The delays have effected the achievement of 

the financial and non-financial benefits of the 

WLA transport efficiency programme.  

 

� Implement the Harrow lead transport 

framework contract, April 2013.  

� Review transport bureau progress, 

August 2013.  

A 

 

Information 

Management 

System  

 

 

2011 
March 

2013 
Completion  

Project work completed and handover to 

business as usual function underway 

Closure of project G 

 

Libraries Strategy July 2011 TBC Assessment 

* Literacy and reading have been extended 

by a comprehensive volunteer programme, 

involving a total of 138 volunteers donating 

over 3,700 hours to their local library 

services since November 2011. 

* By the end of March 2013 wifi and self 

service technology will have been extended 

to all but one library (East Finchley to follow 

in 2014 due to English Heritage 

Update report to Programme Board on 19th 

March 2013 

A 

74



requirements) 

Health and Social 

Care Integration  

 

 

 

Dec 2011 TBC Assessment   

Two ‘spearhead project’ business cases 

delivered: 

� Frail Elderly Pilot (Risk Stratification and 

Care Navigators covering a population of 

50K+) approved by the Health & Social 

Care Integration Board on 28th Jan 2013 

� Care Home Quality Improvement Pilot 

business case presented to the Health & 

Social Care Integration Board on 28th 

Jan 2013.  

Further changes and updates on the Care 

Home Quality Improvement Pilot are required 

with updated documentation being re-

presented to the Health & Well Being Board 

Financial Planning Group on 27th Feb 2013. 

G 

 

Sport & Physical 

Activity (SPA) 

 

 

Dec 2011 
May 

2013 
Assessment   

LBB have held contractual meetings with the 

current leisure provider to discuss the desired 

outcomes of the SPA project. These 

commercial negotiations have taken longer 

than anticipated resulting in the project 

timeline slipping.   

� Stakeholder workshop, Feb 2013 
� Update report to Programme Board, 19

th
 

March 2013 

R 

Safer Communities  

 

 

Jan 2012 
Apr 

2014 
Assessment  

Two outline business cases (future of CCTV 

service and enhancements to the partnership 

strategy) are scheduled for decision at 

Cabinet Resources Committee in April.   

� Review of Enhancements Outline 

Business Case by CRC, Apr 2013 
� Review of CCTV Business Case by 

CRC, Apr 2013 

A 

 

Early Intervention 

and Prevention  

 

 

Jan 2012 
July 

2014 
Implementation 

Work stream 2 & 4 are running to plan 

Work stream 1 & 3 are under review  

� Work stream 4 Pilot release Mar 2013 G 

Music Service  

 

 

Feb 2012 
Mar 

2013 
Completion  

The project is on track for the approved 

transfer date of 1st March.  

Lead member DPR decision approved on 

14th February providing authority to sign the 

Business Transfer Agreement and Novation 

Agreement.  

� Novation of Arts Council grant, 1st March 
2013 

� Go Live, 1
st
 March 2013 

G 

Waste & Street 

Scene 
Jan 2012 TBC Implementation 

Programme of activity to be delivered in 

three workstreams supported by a 

communications plan: 

• In-sourcing of May Gurney Recycling 
Contract by October 2013 

• Transformation of Waste Service 

• Transformation of Street Scene and 
Green Spaces 

Progress report to Programme Board, 19
th
 

March 2013 
A 

 

 

75



 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Section 5: Finances 

 
Budget AMBER 

For information The latest budgeted figures for each project currently in the One Barnet Programme are detailed in the tables below. The total budget for Wave 

1 Projects is £9.847m and Wave 1 of the programme is currently projected to be delivered within this budget. The Amber rating reflects the 

fact that allocation of programme contingency against individual projects has yet to be formally approved. 

76



   
Wave 1 Projects 2010/11 2011/12 2013/14 2014/15

Closed Projects

Community Coaches 70,000           -                 42,186           22,205           22,205           -                -                64,390           (5,610)

e-Recruitment 40,000           40,000           -                 -                 -                 -                -                40,000           0

Housing Project 87,966           -                 23,750           24,926           24,926           -                -                48,676           (39,290)

Parking Procurement 170,537         29,159           113,085         22,423           22,423           -                -                164,668         (5,869)

Procurement Project 70,058           70,058           -                 -                 -                 -                -                70,058           0

Prototyping Project 77,129           77,129           -                 -                 -                 -                -                77,129           0

Rapid Improvement Project 22,000           18,500           3,500             -                 -                 -                -                22,000           0

Revenue & Income Optimisation 197,662         197,662         -                 -                 -                 -                -                197,662         0

SAP Optimisation 375,533         174,375         127,147         60,000           80,000           -                -                381,522         5,989

Your Choice Barnet 553,156         163,279         313,895         81,616           81,616           -                -                558,790         5,634

Open Projects -                     

Community Budgets, Childrens Projects 247,493         39,386           29,749           -                 -                 -                -                69,136           (178,357)

Customer Service Transformation 543,113         236,379         309,351         -                 -                 -                -                545,730         2,618

Development & Regulatory Services 1,744,019      319,493         701,617         904,307         1,292,910      163,392         -                2,477,412      733,392

Legal Services 140,000         -                 54,639           106,479         110,771         -                -                165,410         25,410

Libraries Strategy 148,181         60,000           54,003           34,178           34,178           -                -                148,181         0

New Support & Customer Services Organisation 1,654,439      307,446         641,733         914,913         1,107,920      47,446           -                2,104,545      450,106

Passenger Transport 272,106         57,966           111,602         28,095           105,025         -                -                274,593         2,487

Programme Management 2,411,433      450,919         1,593,258      367,256         367,256         -                -                2,411,433      (0)

Right to Control -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                -                -                 0

Contingency - Wave 1 1,022,592      -                 -                 -                 -                 -                -                -                 (1,022,592)

Total 9,847,416      2,241,753      4,119,515      2,566,398      3,249,230      210,838         -                9,821,335      (26,081)

At Cabinet on 20 February 2012 the extension of the corporate change programme to include 5 new major projects and three 'enabling' projects was approved.

The table below details the latest budgeted figures for each of the 5 new projects in the One Barnet Programme. The table also includes projected figures for the Information Management System enabling project, 

the continuation of the Customer Services Transformation Project, the Reorganisation of the Senior Officer and Council Structures Project and the costs of funding the Programme Management Office.

Wave 2 Projects 2010/11 2011/12 2013/14 2014/15

Customer Service Transformation 1,422,000      -                    -                    1,018,360      1,422,000      -                -                    1,422,000      0

Early Intervention 227,000         -                    77,825           117,349         149,194         -                -                    227,019         19

Health & Social Care Integration 100,000         -                    38,881           63,016           63,016           -                -                    101,897         1,897

Information Management System 565,190         -                    148,729         363,181         416,767         -                -                    565,496         306

Programme Management 1,800,000      -                    -                    592,874         1,030,975      575,452         193,573         1,800,000      0

Re-organisation of the Senior Officer and Council Structures 900,000         -                    127,138         807,506         807,506         -                    -                    934,644         34,644

Registrars 25,000           -                    -                    13,465           25,000           -                -                    25,000           (0)

Safer Communities 149,000         -                    39,765           99,014           129,159         -                -                    168,924         19,924

Strategic Review of Sports & Leisure Activity 198,000         -                    48,445           82,598           147,596         -                -                    196,041         (1,959)

Waste & Streetscene 391,000         -                    110,612         131,826         159,145         121,250         -                    391,007         7

Contingency - Wave 2 -                     -                    -                    -                 -                 -                -                    -                 0

Total 5,777,190 0 591,395 3,289,189 4,350,358 696,702 193,573 5,832,028 54,838

2012/13 Total 

Projected 

Spend VarianceTotal Budget Outturn Outturn Actual to Date

Projected 

outturn

Projected 

outturn

Projected 

outturn

2012/13 Total 

Projected 

Spend VarianceBudget Outturn Outturn Actual to Date

Projected 

outturn

Projected 

outturn

Projected 

outturn

 

77



Wave 1 Costs and Savings Programme budget Base budget 

savings to 2011/12 

*

Projected base 

budget savings to 

2012/13**

Projected base 

budget savings 

total ***

Cumulative saving 

to 2011/12 *

Projected 

Cumulative saving 

to 2012/13 **

Projected 

Cumulative saving 

2010-19

Comment

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Community Coaches 0.07                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Development of a volunteer life coaching scheme.  Successfully piloted in partnership with local and 

national charities and community groups.  Currently being developed into an ongoing service for the 

community.

e-Recruitment 0.04                             0.29                          0.34                          0.34                          0.45                          0.78                          2.81                          

The e-Recruitment project has provided the organisation with an online system which is delivering 

process improvements for HR and a reduction in advertising costs for directorates.  

Housing Project 0.09                             -                            0.40                          0.61                          -                            0.40                          3.77                          

The housing needs and resources (HNR) service was transferred from the Council to Barnet Homes 

in April 2012 enabling reduced management costs and greater synergies between Barnet Homes 

and the HNR service. 

Legal Services 0.14                             -                            0.09                          0.19                          -                            0.09                          1.18                          

Savings to be achieved through a shared legal service with London Borough of Harrow which  went 

live September 2012.

Parking 0.17                             -                            0.37                          0.89                          -                            0.37                          5.38                          

As of May 2012 the parking service is being provided by an external contractor (NSL) with 

consequential savings being realised. 

Procurement Project 0.07                             0.92                          0.92                          0.92                          1.79                          2.71                          8.26                          

Procurement savings delivered through review and reduction in number of vendors, and contract 

renegotiation. A small element of the planned savings were substituted with staff savings in the 

procurement service. 

Prototyping Project 0.08                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Successful development of a methodology to quickly develop new services at low cost.  Used to 

develop the Community Coaching service.

Rapid Improvement Project 0.02                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            No direct savings but this project has enabled service-based savings

Revenue Income Optimisation 0.20                             1.83                          2.08                          2.15                          2.17                          4.25                          17.13                       

All of the planned changes have taken place and all relevant income budgets have been adjusted 

appropriately (except for the charging for parking in the boroughs 7 free car parks as per Cllr 

decision).

Right to Control -                               -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            Coordinated support for disabled citizens, including social care, housing and employment support.

SAP Optimisation 0.38                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

No direct savings but this project has enabled service-based savings through improvements to the 

Council's SAP finance/procurement/HR system

Your Choice Barnet 0.55                             -                            -                            0.49                          -                            -                            2.25                          

A subsidiary company to the Council was set up to deliver Adult social care services previously run 

directly by the Council. This went live in January 2012. A surplus is due to be generated across 2013-

16.

School improvement and youth services 0.25                             2.04                          2.04                          2.04                          2.04                          4.08                          16.32                       

Savings achieved in 2011/12 through (i) the reduction of school improvement support service for 

primary and secondary schools and (ii) the reshaping and reducing of youth support services 

through increased commissioning of delivery, seeking efficiencies through integrating services and 

income generation, reducing local authority directly provided activities and reducing universal 

information advice.

Customer Service Transformation 0.54                             0.09                          0.69                          0.67                          0.09                          0.77                          4.84                          

Savings achieved in 2012/13 through the consolidation of telephone contact staff and technology 

into a single service and encouraging significant increase in use of the web for customer contact and 

the reduction in team management roles as a result of this consolidation.

Development & Regulatory Services 1.74                             -                            -                            3.19                          -                            -                            17.16                       

These savings will be achieved in 2013/14 and 2014/15.  The outline solution submissions of both 

the bidders who were taken forward into the second stage of dialogue met or exceded the council's 

requirement to achieve these savings. Final tenders have now been received with the contract due 

to go live in early 2013/14. 

Libraries Strategy 0.15                             0.12                          0.27                          1.21                          0.12                          0.38                          7.23                          

Savings will be achieved primarily in  2013/14 through a restructure of service designed to achieve 

efficiencies without affecting the ability of the service to deliver the Library Strategy.  Further 

savings will be achieved through the Implementation of RFID self-service in all sites (this has already 

been partly implemented in 2012/13), the running of Hampstead Garden Suburb Library by 

members of the community and the creation of a new landmark library in the arts depot (and the 

subsequent closure of Friern Barnet library).

New Support & Customer Services Organisation 1.65                             -                            -                            11.60                       -                            -                            61.30                       

Updated savings expected from NSCSO contract as detailed in the MTFS reported to Cabinet in 

November.

Passenger Transport 0.27                             0.42                          0.50                          0.50                          0.49                          0.99                          3.98                          

Savings have been achieved in 2011/12 and 2012/13 through rationalising the transport costs 

across adults day care transport with Children's Special Needs Transport by merging/remodelling 

routes, and/or reconfiguring opening times of Day Centres.  Savings also derived  from a 

combination of merged SEN and AdSS transport through the availability of additional vehicle and 

driver resources to be utilised at short notice and using improved procurement methods.  

Contingency 1.02                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Programme Management 2.41                             -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Total 9.84                             5.70                          7.69                          24.79                       7.14                          14.83                       151.60                     

* - savings to end of 2011/12

** - projected savings to end of 2012/13

*** - projected savings to end of 2018/19  

78



B
a
rn

e
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il

R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r
2

1
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

3

R
is

k
 R

e
f

R
a
ti

n
g

C
a

te
g

o
ry

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

R
is

k
R

is
k
 D

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
C

o
n

tr
o

l(
s
) 

In
 P

la
c
e

C
a

u
s
e

/c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

O
B

0
0

4
5

 1
2

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y

S
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

re
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
, 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

 w
it
h

 o
r 

e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly

E
a

c
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 

h
a

s
 a

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 p

la
n

 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

n
d

 

s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 S

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 P

la
n

E
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

(I
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

n
d

 e
x
te

rn
a

l)
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
m

e
m

b
e

r 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n

C
a

u
s
e

: 

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a

m
s
 d

o
 n

o
t 

c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
m

a
p

p
in

g

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 P

la
n

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e

S
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 d

o
 n

o
t 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 

th
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 p

ro
je

c
ts

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

:

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

is
s
e

d
 a

s
 

th
e

y
 a

re
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 o

r 

u
n

d
e

rs
to

o
d

P
ro

je
c
ts

 m
a

y
 b

e
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 i
f 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 

is
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 

In
c
o

rr
e

c
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

m
a

d
e

 i
f 

th
e

 v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 a

re
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e

n
 i
n

to
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
8

R
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 J

C
A

D
 R

IS
K

 ©
2

0
0

1
-2

0
1

3
 J

C
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2

79



R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r
B

a
rn

e
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il

R
is

k
 R

e
f

R
a
ti

n
g

C
a

te
g

o
ry

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

R
is

k
R

is
k
 D

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
C

o
n

tr
o

l(
s
) 

In
 P

la
c
e

C
a

u
s
e

/c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

O
B

0
0

4
6

 8
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y

P
ro

je
c
ts

 d
o

 n
o

t 
s
e

e
 t

h
e

 

in
te

r-
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
ie

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

e
a

c
h

 o
th

e
r 

m
is

s
in

g
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 

c
h

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

u
n

in
te

n
ti
o

n
a

l 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

d
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

te
r-

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 D

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
y
 M

a
p

s

R
e

g
u

la
r 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n

d
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs

R
e

g
u

la
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

e
a

m
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 s

h
a

re
 r

is
k
s
, 

is
s
u

e
s
 

a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

C
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs

U
s
e

 o
f 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

m
a

tt
e

r 

e
x
p

e
rt

is
e

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 P

la
n

 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
s

C
a

u
s
e

: 

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
re

g
u

la
r 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 

s
h

a
ri
n

g
 o

f 
k
e

y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

.

P
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 
fo

c
u

s
 o

n
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 i
n

 i
s
o

la
ti
o

n
 n

o
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 w

id
e

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

: 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
it
e

d
 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 

P
ro

je
c
ts

 n
o

t 
re

c
o

g
n

is
in

g
 w

h
e

re
 

o
th

e
rs

 a
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 o
r 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 d

u
p

lic
a

ti
n

g
/w

a
s
ti
n

g
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s

P
ro

je
c
ts

 c
o

u
ld

 u
n

in
te

n
ti
o

n
a

lly
 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

e
a

c
h

 o
th

e
r 

w
h

e
re

 k
e

y
 d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
ie

s
 

h
a

v
e

n
�t
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

O
B

0
0

4
7

 8
S

ta
ff

in
g

 &
 C

u
lt
u

re
L

a
c
k
 o

f 
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 k

e
y
 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

P
ro

je
c
t-

le
v
e

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 p

la
n

s
 

d
e

ta
il 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
, 

p
ro

fi
le

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 l
if
e

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 P

la
n

 a
n

d
 

a
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 P
la

n
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 

e
n

a
b

le
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 

g
a

p
s
 a

n
d

 p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 o

n
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e

C
a

u
s
e

:

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 p

ro
fi
le

 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 d

u
e

 

to
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 w

it
h

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
/o

r 
re

te
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ro
je

c
t 

s
ta

ff

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

:

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
c
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 

d
e

liv
e

r 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 

d
e

la
y
s
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry

S
h

a
re

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 H

R
 

a
n

d
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

u
n

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
k
e

y
 p

o
in

ts
 o

f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 r
e

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 d
e

la
y
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e

liv
e

ry

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

P
a

g
e

 2
 o

f 
8

R
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 J

C
A

D
 R

IS
K

 ©
2

0
0

1
-2

0
1

3
 J

C
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

80



R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r
B

a
rn

e
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il

R
is

k
 R

e
f

R
a
ti

n
g

C
a

te
g

o
ry

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

R
is

k
R

is
k
 D

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
C

o
n

tr
o

l(
s
) 

In
 P

la
c
e

C
a

u
s
e

/c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

O
B

0
0

4
8

 8
R

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l
D

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 

n
e

w
 f

o
rm

s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

fa
ils

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 

c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
n

e
e

d
s

U
s
e

 o
f 

o
u

tp
u

t 
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 

fu
lly

 d
e

fi
n

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 e
x
p

e
rt

s

F
le

x
ib

ili
ty

 b
u

ilt
 i
n

to
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 t
o

 

a
llo

w
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 a

n
d

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 t
o

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

c
o

u
n

c
ils

 /
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 g
o

n
e

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 s

im
ila

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s

U
s
e

 o
f 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 f
u

lly
 

u
n

d
e

rs
to

o
d

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

tu
re

d

C
a

u
s
e

:

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 r
o

b
u

s
tl
y
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
tu

a
lis

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

w
it
h

 n
e

w
 s

u
p

p
lie

rs

 C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

:

F
u

n
d

a
m

e
n

ta
l 
fa

ilu
re

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

s
e

 o
f 

c
o

rr
e

c
ti
v
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 

P
a

c
e

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
a

y
 b

e
 s

lo
w

e
d

 

R
e

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

n
o

t 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 s

ta
te

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

Im
p

a
c
t 

o
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

O
B

0
0

4
9

 8
R

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l
In

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

le
a

d
s
 t

o
 f

a
ilu

re
 o

f 

p
a

rt
 o

r 
a

ll 
o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
o

o
lk

it
 a

n
d

 

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

M
e

c
h

a
n

ic
s
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ts

 c
le

a
rl
y
 

s
e

t 
o

u
t 

th
e

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
p

ro
je

c
ts

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

g
a

te
w

a
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

a
t 

k
e

y
 m

ile
s
to

n
e

s
 o

f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
c
t 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 b

y
 

in
te

rn
a

l 
a

n
d

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 c

le
a

rl
y
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
lin

k
in

g
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

o
a

rd

C
a

u
s
e

:

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 f
o

llo
w

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
e

a
m

s

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

: 

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 t

im
e

, 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
a

n
d

 

q
u

a
lit

y
 c

ri
te

ri
a

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

P
a

g
e

 3
 o

f 
8

R
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 J

C
A

D
 R

IS
K

 ©
2

0
0

1
-2

0
1

3
 J

C
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

81



R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r
B

a
rn

e
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il

R
is

k
 R

e
f

R
a
ti

n
g

C
a

te
g

o
ry

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

R
is

k
R

is
k
 D

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
C

o
n

tr
o

l(
s
) 

In
 P

la
c
e

C
a

u
s
e

/c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

O
B

0
0

5
0

 8
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 N

S
C

S
O

 

a
n

d
 D

R
S

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e

 d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
c
a

p
tu

re
 a

n
d

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
ly

 d
e

fi
n

e
 t

h
e

 m
u

tu
a

l 

in
te

rd
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
ie

s

In
te

rd
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 O

n
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

D
e

s
ig

n
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 i
n

te
rd

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c
ie

s
 

a
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

d

In
te

rf
a

c
e

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
ri
tt

e
n

 

a
n

d
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 w
it
h

 

a
ll 

fo
u

r 
D

R
S

/N
S

C
S

O
 b

id
d

e
rs

C
a

u
s
e

:

T
w

o
 p

a
ra

lle
l 
c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
v
e

 

d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 

d
iv

e
rg

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

G
a

p
s
 i
n

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 e
v
o

lv
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

d
ia

lo
g

u
e

P
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 

a
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s

L
a

c
k
 o

f 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a

m
s

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

:

C
o

u
n

c
il 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 

d
e

liv
e

r 
it
s
 a

s
p

ir
a

ti
o

n
s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 a

ro
u

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n

 o
n

e
 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

a
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l,
 

n
o

n
-d

ia
lo

g
u

e
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

O
B

0
0

5
1

 1
2

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y

A
s
 D

R
S

 a
n

d
 N

S
C

S
O

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 

m
o

v
e

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 f

in
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 

th
e

re
 a

re
 r

is
k
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 

s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 m
o

b
ili

s
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri
o

d
 w

it
h

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
d

e
la

y
 a

n
d

 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 o

v
e

r 
th

a
t 

ti
m

e

S
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 p

a
n

e
ls

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 

th
e

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
fi
n

a
l 
b

id
s
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

p
a

n
e

l 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 i
s
 a

d
h

e
re

d
 t

o
.

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

la
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 m
o

v
e

 

to
 n

e
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 s

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
.

T
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 B

o
a

rd
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
la

n
s
, 

e
s
c
a

la
ti
n

g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
.

C
a

u
s
e

: 
 

T
h

e
 s

ta
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

s
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 

le
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

m
o

o
th

 

tr
a

n
s
it
io

n

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

: 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

s
 u

s
u

a
l 
m

a
y
 s

u
ff

e
r 

o
r 

d
e

la
y
s
 o

c
c
u

r 
if
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

is
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 w

e
ll 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 

s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
o

b
ili

s
a

ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

P
a

g
e

 4
 o

f 
8

R
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 J

C
A

D
 R

IS
K

 ©
2

0
0

1
-2

0
1

3
 J

C
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

82



R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r
B

a
rn

e
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il

R
is

k
 R

e
f

R
a
ti

n
g

C
a

te
g

o
ry

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

R
is

k
R

is
k
 D

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
C

o
n

tr
o

l(
s
) 

In
 P

la
c
e

C
a

u
s
e

/c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

O
B

0
0

5
2

 9
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

F
a

ilu
re

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

lo
w

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

d
e

liv
e

ry

A
ll 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
o

 c
a

rr
y
 

o
u

t 
D

a
ta

 F
lo

w
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 w
h

ic
h

 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 c

a
p

tu
re

 k
e

y
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

a
n

d
/o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

C
a

u
s
e

: 

T
h

e
 f

lo
w

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
L

B
B

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

h
a

s
 h

is
to

ri
c
a

lly
 b

e
e

n
 i
m

p
lic

it
 a

n
d

 

n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

x
p

lic
it
ly

 

u
n

d
e

rs
to

o
d

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

tu
re

d
 a

s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
/o

r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

P
ro

je
c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 s

c
o

p
e

 

a
n

d
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 

w
id

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 

in
te

rd
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
ie

s

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

:

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

fl
o

w
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 L

B
B

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
b

o
d

ie
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
re

 n
o

t 
w

e
ll 

u
n

d
e

rs
to

o
d

; 
la

c
k
 o

f 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 c
o

u
ld

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
 

im
p

a
c
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

O
B

0
0

5
3

 3
F

in
a

n
c
ia

l
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

p
ro

v
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

in
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 o
r 

is
 o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

t

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 t
e

a
m

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

is
 f

u
lly

 c
o

s
te

d
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
to

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 

fo
r 

a
n

y
 u

n
fo

re
s
e

e
a

b
le

 c
o

s
ts

C
a

u
s
e

:

U
n

fo
re

s
e

e
a

b
le

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

c
a

u
s
in

g
 u

n
p

la
n

n
e

d
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re

In
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

b
u

d
g

e
t

C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

:

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
p

a
rt

 o
r 

a
ll 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
d

ra
w

-d
o

w
n

 o
n

 

re
s
e

rv
e

s

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

P
a

g
e

 5
 o

f 
8

R
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 J

C
A

D
 R

IS
K

 ©
2

0
0

1
-2

0
1

3
 J

C
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

83



R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r
B

a
rn

e
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il

R
is

k
 R

e
f

R
a
ti

n
g

C
a

te
g

o
ry

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

R
is

k
R

is
k
 D

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
C

o
n

tr
o

l(
s
) 

In
 P

la
c
e

C
a

u
s
e

/c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

O
B

0
0

5
4

 8
R

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l
C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

lly
 s

e
n

s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

/o
r 

c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 

re
le

a
s
e

d
 e

it
h

e
r 

d
e

lib
e

ra
te

ly
 o

r 

in
a

d
v
e

rt
e

n
tl
y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 

d
o

m
a

in

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
r 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 T

e
a

m
 h

a
v
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
 

c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 

n
o

n
-d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 

a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 n

o
rm

a
l 
te

rm
s
 o

f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

F
u

ll 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
s
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 a

re
 

re
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 s

y
s
te

m
s

C
a

u
s
e

:

In
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 s
e

c
u

ri
ty

 a
t 

th
e

 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 f

a
ilu

re
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 t

o
 

fo
llo

w
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

ri
ty

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 

 C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

:

L
e

g
a

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f

a
ilu

re
 

o
f 

o
n

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

ts
 

U
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 d
is

c
ip

lin
a

ry
/l
e

g
a

l 

a
c
ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

p
a

rt
ie

s
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

ti
a

l 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 

d
o

m
a

in
 o

r 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 m

a
n

a
g

in
g

 

d
a

ta
 i
m

p
ro

p
e

rl
y

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

O
B

0
0

5
5

 4
R

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l
P

ro
je

c
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 m

a
y
 u

s
e

 t
h

e
ir
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 

to
 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

 o
f 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 

g
a

in

C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

re
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
c
la

re
 c

o
n

fl
ic

ts
 o

f 

in
te

re
s
ts

 a
n

d
 s

ig
n

 C
o

n
fl
ic

t 
o

f 

In
te

re
s
t 

d
e

c
la

ra
ti
o

n
s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 

in
v
o

lv
in

g
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t

A
ll 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 A
n

ti
-F

ra
u

d
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

s
 o

f 

fr
a

u
d

 w
it
h

in
 a

n
d

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il�

s
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

A
n

ti
-F

ra
u

d
 T

e
a

m
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 

in
v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 

fr
a

u
d

C
a

u
s
e

: 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
s
u

p
p

lie
rs

 w
ill

 b
e

 

in
 a

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 

in
fl
u

e
n

c
e

 t
h

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 

p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
g

a
in

 

 C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

:

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

u
ld

 a
w

a
rd

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 m
a

y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 t
h

e
 

m
o

s
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 o

r 
v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 

m
o

n
e

y
 c

h
o

ic
e

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
d

 

fo
r 

a
w

a
rd

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

 f
la

w
e

d
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 c

a
u

s
e

 a
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 

re
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

P
a

g
e

 6
 o

f 
8

R
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 J

C
A

D
 R

IS
K

 ©
2

0
0

1
-2

0
1

3
 J

C
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

84



R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r
B

a
rn

e
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il

R
is

k
 R

e
f

R
a
ti

n
g

C
a

te
g

o
ry

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

R
is

k
R

is
k
 D

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
C

o
n

tr
o

l(
s
) 

In
 P

la
c
e

C
a

u
s
e

/c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

O
B

0
0

5
6

 6
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 f

ro
m

 I
C

O
 o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

o
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

r 
d

a
ta

 t
o

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

A
n

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 

w
o

rk
 s

tr
e

a
m

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
fi
n

e
d

 

to
 a

s
s
u

re
 a

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
fe

r.
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

u
d

it
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

to
 c

a
p

tu
re

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

y
p

e
s
, 

lif
e

c
y
c
le

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

p
re

p
a

re
/f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 

e
x
e

rc
is

e

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r

 A
n

 o
n

 g
o

in
g

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
a

ta
 p

o
s
t 

tr
a

n
s
fe

r 
is

 b
e

in
g

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

C
a

u
s
e

: 

U
n

d
e

rd
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
n

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 l
a

c
k
 o

f 
ti
m

e
 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 t
o

 r
e

m
e

d
ia

te
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

 C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

: 

C
o

u
ld

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

IC
O

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

a
 f

in
e

 a
n

d
/o

r 

th
e

 s
to

p
p

a
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 

tr
a

n
s
fe

r 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 

in
 t

u
rn

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

P
a

g
e

 7
 o

f 
8

R
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 J

C
A

D
 R

IS
K

 ©
2

0
0

1
-2

0
1

3
 J

C
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

85



R
is

k
 R

e
g

is
te

r
B

a
rn

e
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il

R
is

k
 R

e
f

R
a
ti

n
g

C
a

te
g

o
ry

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it

N
a

tu
re

 o
f 

R
is

k
R

is
k
 D

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
C

o
n

tr
o

l(
s
) 

In
 P

la
c
e

C
a

u
s
e

/c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

O
B

0
0

5
7

 8
R

e
p

u
ta

ti
o

n
a

l
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 r
is

k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 O
n

e
 

B
a

rn
e

t 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

re
a

lis
e

d

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

R
e

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 a

ll 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
re

 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

it
ia

l 
s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 

e
x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

ro
je

c
t 

lif
e

c
y
c
le

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 h
a

n
d

e
d

 

o
v
e

r 
to

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 o

w
n

e
rs

 

w
it
h

 c
le

a
r 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e

 

a
c
tu

a
l 
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 a
re

 r
e

a
lis

e
d

 

a
n

d
 t

ra
c
k
e

d

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

je
c
t 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 i
n

 

p
la

c
e

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 r

o
b

u
s
t 

s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 

o
f 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 a
t 

a
ll 

s
ta

g
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

lif
e

c
y
c
le

C
a

u
s
e

:

A
s
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 i
n

 

th
e

 o
ri
g

in
a

l 
O

n
e

 B
a

rn
e

t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 w

e
re

 i
n

v
a

lid
 

D
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 l
e

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 

d
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 r
e

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 

U
n

fo
re

s
e

e
a

b
le

 e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

In
a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
ro

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 

d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 

D
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 

 C
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

:

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 g

ro
s
s
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 

b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 

P
a

c
e

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
a

y
 b

e
 s

lo
w

e
d

 

R
e

p
u

ta
ti
o

n
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

n
o

t 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 s

ta
te

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

P
o

s
s
ib

le
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
it
y

O
n

e
 B

a
rn

e
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 (

T
o

 b
e

 

u
s
e

d
 O

N
L

Y
 i
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 

ri
s
k
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
)

P
a

g
e

 8
 o

f 
8

R
e

p
o

rt
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 J

C
A

D
 R

IS
K

 ©
2

0
0

1
-2

0
1

3
 J

C
 A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

86



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Budget and Performance Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 7 March 2013 

Subject Initiatives to Contribute to the Safer 
Communities Strategy 

Report of Cabinet Member for Safety and 
Resident Engagement 

Summary This report provides outlines how the authority’s 
leadership role for community safety is developing 
and provides an update on proposals to implement 
number of initiatives to support delivery of the Safer 
Communities Strategy 2011-14.  

 

 
Officer Contributors James Mass, Family & Community Well-being Lead 

Commissioner  

Ruth Murphy, Project Manager, Deputy Chief 
Executive’s Service 

Status (public or exempt) Public  

Wards Affected All  

Key Decision N/A  

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in 

N/A  

Function of Committee 

Enclosures None 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

James Mass, Family & Community Well-being Lead 
Commissioner 
James.mass@barnet.gov.uk  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM 9

87



 

 
 
1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That the Committee considers the update on the One Barnet project 

considering Enhancements to the Safer Communities Strategy and 
Future CCTV Service as set out in the report and makes appropriate 
comments and recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Resident 
Safety and Engagement as appropriate. 

 
1.2 That the Committee notes that the Outline Business Cases for the 

Enhancements to the Safer Communities Strategy and Future CCTV 
Service are scheduled for decision at Cabinet Resources Committee on 
18th April 2013.  

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Cabinet, 29 November 2010 (Decision item 6) – approved the One Barnet 

Framework and the funding strategy for its implementation. 
 
2.2 Cabinet, 14 September 2011 (Decision item 5) – approved the Safer  

Communities Strategy. 
 
2.3 Cabinet, 20 February 2012 (Decision item 6) – approved the Business 

Planning Report 2012/13 – 2014/15 which included within the report the five 
projects to be developed through strategic outline cases. 

 
2.4 Cabinet Resources Committee, 20 June 2012 (Decision item 6) – approved 

the Strategic Outline Case for the strategic review of Community Safety.  
 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 Crime reduction and community safety are top priorities for Barnet residents. 

One of the new Corporate Plan priorities is “to promote family and community 
well-being and encourage engaged, cohesive and safe communities”.  
 

3.2 The Council is a provider and commissioner of community safety services but 
also has a more significant local leadership role. Through chairing the Safer 
Communities Partnership the Council exerts strategic leadership, provides 
accountability to other agencies working in Barnet and is the driving agent of 
development in the system.  

 
3.3 Two outline business cases have been developed which help the Council to 

fulfil this role and to build on partnership activity and alignment of resources to 
deliver against the priorities set out in the Safer Communities Strategy 2011 – 
2014. This includes tackling the following issues:   

 
- Property Crime, with a focus on domestic burglary 
- Anti-social behaviour 
- Violent crime, with a focus on domestic violence 
- Focus on the places where offences take place 
- Building Reassurance and Confidence 

88



 

 
In line with the Safer Communities Strategy, the proposals aim to reduce the 
fear of crime through greater engagement with citizens around community 
safety and involving them in the design and delivery of community safety 
initiatives.  

 
3.4 The recommendations in the outline business cases fit within the corporate 

change principles. In line with these principles, the enhancement of the 
strategy and refresh of CCTV will deliver:  

 
A new relationship with citizens  

� Improved victim satisfaction through the use of restorative justice approaches.  

� Improved public confidence with visibility of crime and ASB being tackled, 

through community-led schemes.  

� Individual and community ownership of community safety in their local area. 

� Citizens will feel safer and there will be less fear of crime as a result of 
confidence in CCTV to prevent and detect crime.   

 
A one public sector approach 

� Reduced crime and anti social behaviour 

� Reduction in re-offending levels due to multi agency offender management. 

� Improved crime prevention as CCTV is more effectively deployed and is more 
of a deterrent.  

� Improved technology and a more flexible camera estate which can be used to 
respond to crime and anti-social behaviour hotspots. 

 
Relentless drive for efficiency 

� More efficient multi-agency working: more visible and citizen centred 

community safety initiatives resulting in reduced customer contact.  

� A more efficient CCTV monitoring service. 
� Improved crime prevention as CCTV is more effectively deployed leading to a 

reduction in economic and social costs of crime.   
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Risks associated with the delivery of this project are managed and reported in 

accordance with corporate risk and project management processes and will 
also be reported through existing democratic processes. 

 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 The Council and all other organisations exercising public functions on its  

behalf are required under the Equality Act 2010, to have due regard to the 
need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act; advance equality of opportunity 
between those with a protected characteristic and those without; promote 
good relations between those with a protected characteristic and those 
without. The relevant protected characteristics are age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual 

89



 

orientation. It also covers marriage and civil partnership with regard to 
eliminating discrimination. 

 
5.2 As part of the implementation stage, the initiatives to enhance the Strategy 

must incorporate a well-designed insight, consultation and engagement 
programme, to identify and understand the varied needs of the diverse 
communities and user groups within the borough. Officers will ensure that 
consultation events and activities are established as required. In addition, the 
appropriate equality impact assessments will be completed and included in the 
decision-making process. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 To date approved expenditure from the One Barnet Transformation Reserve 

of £149,000 has been allocated to develop the business cases for 
enhancements to the Strategy.  

 
New initiatives  

 
6.2 It is proposed that a number of new initiatives are piloted at relatively low cost, 

on a low risk basis initially.  
 
6.3 There are expected to result in significant financial benefits across partners, 

including substantial savings to the Police and Probation services.  
 
6.4 There is a need for the council to invest to kick-start these initiatives given the 

budgetary constraints of other partners. The intention is that initiatives will be 
evaluated and then rolled out more widely based on initial learning. Wider roll-
out will improve the cost benefit ratio delivered by these initiatives. 

 
6.5 It is proposed that the Council’s contribution for the set up costs and operation 

for the first two years is met through a bid to the Mayor's Office of Policing and 
Crime (MOPAC) for the London Crime Prevention Fund.  

 
6.6 There is agreement from partners that after the benefits of these initiatives 

have been proven that costs will be apportioned in line with the benefits 
attributed to each agency.   

 
CCTV 

 
6.7 The CCTV service has a net operating cost of £811,700 (of which £623,990 is 

staffing). The anticipated annual running costs for 2014/15 are likely to 
increase to £836,700, due to a £25,000 reduction in income from Barnet 
Homes and Transport for London. 

 
6.8 A capital budget of £477,000 is allocated to the upgrade of CCTV and forms 

part of the Council’s capital programme for 2013/14. 
 
6.9 The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) savings requirements have 

been taken into account in assessing options for the future delivery of the 
CCTV service. The Outline Business Case sets out plans to ensure that there 
is a sustainable financial position for the Council. 

90



 

 
6.10 A number of different service models are being considered and evaluated 

based on criteria agreed with partners. It is intended that the recommended 
option will both enhance performance and sustainability, in addition to 
resulting in a decrease in the overall cost of the service.   

 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 Under s.6 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998, the Council with other partner 

authorities has a duty to formulate and implement a strategy for the reduction 
of crime and disorder in its area (including anti-social behaviour adversely 
affecting the local environment), a strategy for combating the misuse of drugs, 
alcohol and other substances in the area and a strategy for the reduction of re-
offending in the area.  Under s.17 of the above Act, it is also a duty of the 
Council (and other partner agencies) when exercising its functions to have due 
regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the need to 
do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder (including anti-
social behaviour), misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances and re-
offending.   

 
7.2 The outline business cases will support the Council's strategy to reduce crime 

and disorder and anti-social behaviour and to reduce re-offending. 
 
7.3  The Council will need to ensure compliance with Data Protection Act 1998 in 

relation to Information sharing. 
 
7.3 The Council will also need to consider and comply with its Contract Procedure 

Rules. 
 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS (Relevant section from the Constitution, 

Key/Non-Key Decision) 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, 

Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees is set out in 

the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution). The 
Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee has within its 
terms of reference the following responsibilities: 
 
“To perform the overview and scrutiny role in relation to the One Barnet 
transformation programme, particularly performance and financial issues. 
 
To receive and consider options appraisals, business cases and closure 
reports for One Barnet projects. 
 
To monitor the implementation of One Barnet projects throughout the 
programme lifecycle. 
 
To engage with partner organisations, other relevant public sector bodies, 
private sector organisations, trade unions, local residents or any other 

91



 

appropriate witnesses when fulfilling the overview and scrutiny role in relation 
to the One Barnet programme.” 

 
 
9.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The Safer Communities Strategy was ratified by the Safer Communities 

Partnership Board (SCPB) in September and Council in November 2011 
covering a three year period until 2014. 
 

9.2 Through chairing the Safer Communities Partnership the Council exerts 
strategic leadership, provides accountability to other agencies working in 
Barnet and is the driving agent of development in the system. Two outline 
business cases have been prepared which help the Council fulfil this role and 
will enhance delivery against the priorities set out in the Safer Communities 
Strategy 2011 – 2014. 
 
New Initiatives 
 

9.3 The purpose of the project is to assist the Safer Communities Partnership in 
achieving the key outcome of the Strategy, a reduction in the level of crime 
and anti-social behaviour.  

 
9.2  In June 2012, a Strategic Outline Case was approved by Cabinet Resources 

Committee which assessed the effectiveness of the work that is taking place 
to deliver the strategy, identified where short and medium term changes to the 
work plan could contribute to the delivery of the agreed strategy and 
considered how to extend the ambition of the strategy in the short and longer 
term.  
 

9.3 The Strategic Outline Case set out four themes to explored further:  
 

• Commissioning model 

• Enhanced Integrated Offender Management  

• A Community based approach to dealing with anti social behaviour and 
domestic violence 

• A new deal with citizens  
 
9.4 Through the development of the Outline Business Case, these themes have 

been subject to further evaluation, using criteria agreed with local partners.  
 
9.5 Based on this evaluation, the outline business case will propose a package of 

initiatives to tackle anti-social behaviour and crime, aiming to prevent and 
reduce offending through introducing appropriate interventions at different 
stages in the justice continuum from prevention through to release from 
prison.  

 
9.6 These include:  
 

1. Neighbourhood Justice Panels 
2. Community Coaches (targeted at individuals with a risk of offending)  
3. Extended use of conditional cautions where appropriate.  
4. Enhanced Integrated Offender Management  

 

92



 

9.7 The model is designed to deliver interventions at critical points of transition 
along the criminal justice continuum to deliver better outcomes and reduce 
demand on the system.   

 
CCTV 
 

9.8 The Council’s CCTV service makes an important contribution towards 
delivering Barnet’s Safer Communities Strategy, by helping the Council and 
Police to prevent and tackle priority issues such as anti-social behaviour, 
violence and theft and by making a significant impact on residents’ perception 
of safety.  
 

9.9 However, the CCTV system in Barnet is out of date, expensive relative to 
more modern systems, and will very quickly no longer be fit for purpose. In 
light of significant saving pressures across the Council, a cost effective 
solution for future management of the monitoring service and technical 
platform is required, with the primary aim of improving delivery against the 
service’s community safety objectives.  
 

9.10 The outcomes Barnet wishes to achieve in part through CCTV are: 
 

- A reduction in crime / ASB. 
- An increase in successful prosecutions for crime / ASB. 
- A reduction in fear of crime / ASB. 
- More effective response to emergencies & business continuity issues. 

 
9.11 The levels of crime vary significantly between the current CCTV sites. A 

detailed review is required in conjunction with the police to determine which 
sites in the Borough would most benefit from CCTV. There would also be 
significant benefit in a more flexible technology that allowed some of the 
cameras to be cheaply relocated to respond to changing crime patterns or 
emerging events. 
 

9.12 The review identified opportunities for more cost effective monitoring service 
through better use of technology. Improvements in remote monitoring 
technology now offered by the market should enable the police to access live 
footage remotely (62% incidents are police-driven).  

 
9.13 It is proposed that the procurement of new CCTV technology includes an 

option to include Automatic Number Plate Recognition to assist the police with 
detection of crime, in particular burglary and vehicle crime. A more detailed 
business case is currently being developed for this with the police to ensure 
any additional investment will be effectively utilised by the police. 
 

9.14 The main application of CCTV for enforcement in the UK is with parking. 
When implementing a new CCTV service we will explore how CCTV could 
assist the council in delivering its existing enforcement activities more 
effectively. 
 

9.15 There are potential opportunities for LBB from the commercialisation of the 
service based on a traded service model. This could include selling CCTV 
services to private and public sector organisations to further deliver the core 
Community Safety aspirations in lower priority areas and to enhance security 

93



 

on private property. Clear principles as to who the service would be offered to 
and how it would be operated will need to be agreed. 
 

9.16 A number of different service models have been considered and evaluated 
based on criteria agreed with partners, including price, pace of transformation, 
citizen focus, flexibility to respond to changing priorities and performance.  

 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JH 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) SW 

 

94



 

 
 
 
 
 
   

 

 

Officer Contributors Andrew Charlwood, Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendix – Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 2012/13 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

N/A 

Contact for further information: Andrew Charlwood, Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

020 8359 2014, andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Meeting Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date 7 March 2013 

Subject Budget & Performance Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee Forward Work Programme 2012/13 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report outlines the Committee’s draft work programme for 
2012/13 

AGENDA ITEM 10

95



 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee consider and comment on the items included in the 2012/13 

work programme of the Budget & Performance Overview & Scrutiny Committee as 
set out in the Appendix. 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is 

reflective of the Council’s priorities 
 
3.2 The three priority outcomes set out in the 2012-2013 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Better services with less money 

• Sharing opportunities, sharing responsibilities 

• A successful London suburb 
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None. 
 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as relating to 

matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the Overview and 
Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment and 
retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff development, equalities 
and health and safety. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 

Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 
 
 

96



 

8 CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, Article 6 

of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Scrutiny Committees are included in the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution). 
 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme 

2012/13 indicates: 

a) items of business carried forward from the Budget and Performance Overview 
and Scrutiny Sub-Committee work programme for the 2011/12 municipal year; 
and  

b) items requested by the Committee in the 2012/13 municipal year.   
 
c) items to carry forward into the 2013/14 municipal year 

 
9.2 The work programme of this Committee is intended to be a responsive tool, which will 

be updated on a rolling basis following each meeting, for the inclusion of areas which 
may arise through the course of the year.  

 
9.3 The Committee is empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own schedule of 

work within the programme.  
 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 

97



98

This page is intentionally left blank



 

       
 

 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

B
a

rn
e

t 
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
3

 
 

 

  
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t:
 A
n
d
re
w
 C
h
a
rl
w
o
o
d
  
0
2
0
 8
3
5
9
 2
0
1
4
  
a
n
d
re
w
.c
h
a
rl
w
o
o
d
@
b
a
rn
e
t.
g
o
v
.u
k
  

 99



 

P
a
g

e
 2

 o
f 

4
 

 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
/ 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
Y
e
a
r 

7
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
  

 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
3
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

 

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 &
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

 

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
 i
n
-d
e
p
th
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 

C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 F
a
m
ili
e
s
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
  

 

O
n
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

H
ig
h
lig
h
t 
R
e
p
o
rt
 

 

T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 l
a
te
s
t 
O
n
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

H
ig
h
lig
h
t 
R
e
p
o
rt
 a
s
 a
t 
F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
  

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
, 

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 /
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

In
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
  

 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 F
u
tu
re
 o
f 
th
e
 C
C
T
V
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
s
id
e
n
t 

S
a
fe
ty
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

F
a
m
ily
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

W
e
ll-
b
e
in
g
 L
e
a
d
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
r 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 D
a
te
 T
B
C
 

D
R
S
 F
in
a
l 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
a
s
e
 a
n
d
 

A
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 B
id
d
e
r 

 

T
o
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 p
re
-d
e
c
is
io
n
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

fi
n
a
l 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
a
s
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
a
 

p
re
fe
rr
e
d
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
e
rv
e
 b
id
d
e
r 
fo
r 
th
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 

    

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 f
o
r 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 H
o
u
s
in
g
, 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 

P
ro
je
c
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

100



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
/ 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 M
u
n
ic
ip
a
l 
Y
e
a
r 

2
0
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
3
 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
F
o
u
r 
a
n
d
 Y
e
a
r 
E
n
d
 

2
0
1
2
/1
3
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
  

 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
F
o
u
r 
a
n
d
 

Y
e
a
r 
E
n
d
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

 

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 &
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

  

T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 E
n
d
 o
f 
Y
e
a
r 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt
. 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 –
 

T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

 

R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
P
a
rk
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
K
P
Is
 o
f 
th
e
 p
a
rk
in
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

  

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
P
la
c
e
 

 

F
in
d
in
g
s
 o
f 
th
e
 N
o
rt
h
 F
in
c
h
le
y
 

P
a
rk
in
g
 P
ilo
t 

 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 h
a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 o
f 
th
e
 N
o
rt
h
 F
in
c
h
le
y
 P
a
rk
in
g
 

R
e
v
ie
w
 P
ilo
t 
S
c
h
e
m
e
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
fo
r 
P
la
c
e
 

 

2
4
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 U
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 

S
h
a
re
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

T
h
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 

th
e
 t
ra
n
s
it
io
n
 t
o
 a
 s
h
a
re
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
 

 

L
e
a
d
e
r 
o
f 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

 
A
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 D
ir
e
c
to
r 

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 

 
T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 m
a
k
e
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
g
a
rd
 t
o
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
la
n
n
in
g
. 

  

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

 

C
h
ie
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
n
g
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

 

101



 S
u
b
je
c
t 

D
e
c
is
io
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
/ 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

A
u
th
o
r 

9
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
, 
M
id
-Y
e
a
r 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 m
id
-y
e
a
r 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
. 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 

 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 –
 

T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
G
ro
u
p
 

 

Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
w
o
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

 

T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 Q
u
a
rt
e
r 
T
w
o
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

R
e
p
o
rt
s
. 
 

 

D
e
p
u
ty
 L
e
a
d
e
r 
a
n
d
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 &
 C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

  

T
B
C
 -
 L
o
n
g
 L
is
t 

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 -
 O
u
tl
in
e
 P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

fo
r 
C
h
ild
s
 H
ill
 &
 G
ra
h
a
m
e
 P
a
rk
 

L
ib
ra
ri
e
s
 

 

T
h
e
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 c
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
o
u
tl
in
e
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
C
h
ild
s
 H
ill
 a
n
d
 G
ra
h
a
m
 P
a
rk
 

lib
ra
ri
e
s
. 
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
fo
r 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
s
 

 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

102


	Agenda
	6 Quarter 3 2012/13 Financial and Corporate Performance
	Annex 1 - Report to Cabinet Resources Committee (25 February 2013)
	Appendicies to Annex 1 (Detailed Financial and Corporate Performance)

	7 Adoption Service Performance
	8 One Barnet Programme Highlight Report
	Appendix 1 - One Barnet Programme Highlight Report
	Appendix 2 - One Barnet Risk Register

	9 Initiatives to Contribute to the Safer Communities Strategy
	10 Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme
	Appendix - Budget and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme


